TERMS OF REORGANIZATION

OF

PUBLIC JOINT -STOCK COMPANY INVL TECHNOLOGY AND

PUBLIC JOINT -STOCK COMPANY BAIP GRUPE

Vilnius
December 23, 2014




According to these Terms of Reorganization pubdimtistock company INVL Technology

which ceases to operate without liquidation processnerged to public joint-stock company
BAIP grups, which continues its operations under a new nasna public joint-stock company
INVL Technology and all the rights and duties obfici joint-stock company INVL Technology

are transferred to the company that continues ¢vate after the merger.

These Terms of Reorganization have been drawn @gadardance with provisions of the Civil
Code of the Republic of Lithuania, Law on Comparoéshe Republic of Lithuania and other
applicable legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania.

Preparation of the Terms of Reorganization was@mua on 5 December 2014 by the decision
of shareholders of private limited company BAIP mgriand on 19 December 2014 by the
decision of general meeting of the shareholderspoblic joint-stock company “INVL
Technology”.

Terms of Reorganization are prepared by the bodrgublic joint-stock company INVL
Technology and public joint-stock company BAIP grup

Alvydas Banys, the Chairman of the Board of pulgiat-stock company INVL Technology,
Darius Sulnis, the Director of public joint-stockmapany INVL Technology and Raimondas
Rajeckas, person authorized to keep records ofiqjdiht-stock company INVL Technology,
also the Chairman of the Board and the Directopublic joint-stock company BAIP grép
Kazimieras Tonknas and the Director of Finance RaimRibinskiere, hereby confirm, that to
the best of their knowledge, information providadhe Terms of Reorganization (including all
Annexes) coincides with the data as of 30 Septer2d®4, and there are no missing data, which
may have substantial impact on the meaning of dafébrmation and assessment of the
Company patrticipating in the Reorganization and Gamy being Reorganized and responsible
persons put all their efforts in order to ensure it

Publication of the Terms of Reorganization does giwe ground for presumption that no
changes shall occur in the public joint — stock pany INVL Technology and public joint-stock
company BAIP grup from the moment of publication and that informatiprovided in this
document shows significant information in every eagpat any moment of validity of this
document.

Investment decisions should be made based on Westors’ knowledge, valuation of situation
of the public joint - stock company INVL Technologynd public joint-stock company BAIP
grupe also documents and information related to the BeomReorganization. The Terms of
Reorganization (including Annexes) should not beatied as business, investment or legal
recommendation. Every investor should contact d@ssaltant for the legal, business or tax
advice.

Chairman of the Board of Chairman of the Baafrdublic joint -
public joint - stock company INVL Technology stoompany BAIP grup
Alvydas Banys Kazimieras Tomhkas



Director Darius Sulnis Director Kazimieras Tanks
Person authorized to keep records Director mamce
Raimondas Rajeckas Ram@&Ribinskiers

1. DEFINITIONS
In these Terms of Reorganization all capitalizechgewill have the meaning indicated below:

Day of Exchange of means the day on which (i) the amended Articles of

Shares Association of the public joint - stock company BPAgrug
stating change of the name of the public jointocktcompany
BAIP grupz and increased authorized capital is registered in
the Register of Legal Entities and (ii) the pulbint - stock
company INVL Technology is deregistered from thegiRier
of Legal Entities. Except if otherwise is providey legal acts,
the moment of registration of amended Articles sBdciation
of the public joint - stock company BAIP grupand
deregistration of the public joint - stock compahyVL
Technology will be deemed concurrent, i.e. bothidatkd
events shall be deemed as occurred at the samenhdrtiey
take place (i) on the same day — at the end of dagh (ii) on
different days - at the end of the day of the lata®ent took
place. Any reference to the Day of Exchange of &havill
mean the reference to end of the Day of Exchangghafes,
except otherwise is provided in the Terms of Reoigion or
other related documents.

Reorganization means the process during which (i) public joint teck
company INVL Technology which ceases to operatéouit
liquidation is merged to public joint-stock compaBAIP
grupe which continues to operate under a new name oliqub
joint - stock company INVL Technology, (ii) all th¢s and
duties of public joint-stock company INVL Technolog
(including the name INVL Technology) are transfdrte the
company that continues to operate, (iii) sharehslaé public
joint company INVL Technology in exchange of thelioary
registered shares held in public joint-stock conypddVL
Technology, receive ordinary registered sharesubfip joint —
stock company BAIP grup which continues to operate under
the name of public joint company INVL Technologyed of
charge, (iv) the authorized capital of the pubbmj — stock
company BAIP grupis increased accordingly.

Terms of Reorganization means these Terms of Reorganization of the pubiiat j—
stock company INVL Technology and public joint-dtoc
company BAIP grup drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Civil Code of the Republic of tuitania, the



Day of preparation of the
Terms of Reorganization

Completion of the
Reorganization

Company participating in
the Reorganization

Meeting of the Company
participating in the
Reorganization

Company being
Reorganized

Meeting of the Company
being Reorganized

Manager of the Register
of Legal Entities

Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania arteo
related legal acts.

23 December 2014

means the end of the day on which the last of thlewing
events will take place: (i) the amended ArticlesAgBociation
of the public joint — stock company BAIP géupvith changed
name and increased authorized capital is registerethe
Register of Legal Entities; (ii) the public jointstock company
INVL Technology is deregistered from the Registér_egal
Entities; (iii) shareholders of the public joinstock company
INVL Technology receives ordinary registered shangsublic
joint-stock company BAIP grupin exchange of the shares of
the Company being Reorganized.

means public joint-stock company BAIP géyplata on which,
on the Day of preparation of the Terms of the Rapization,
is stated under the paragraph 4.2.1.

means the general meeting of shareholders of thap@ny
participating in the Reorganization that shall m#ie decision
regarding the Reorganization, approve the Terms of
Reorganization and approve the amended Articles of
Association of the Company participating in the
Reorganization that continues to operate after the
Reorganization.

means public joint-stock company INVL Technologgta on
which, on the Day of preparation of the Terms o th
Reorganization, is stated under the paragraph 4.3.

means the general meeting of shareholders of trap@ny
being Reorganized that shall make the decisionrdays the
Reorganization, approve the Terms of Reorganizatod
approve the amended Articles of Association of @menpany
participating in the Reorganization that contintesoperate
after the Reorganization.

means Vilnius Branch of the Register of Legal &agi of the
State Enterprise Centre of Registers.

In case indicated otherwise, definitions in singudlarm shall also mean the plural, words
importing one gender shall also mean the otherdsvanporting person shall include legal and

natural person.

Headings of the articles and definitions of therfigiof Reorganization, names of structural parts
are used for convenience only and shall have nadnpn interpretation of the Terms of

Reorganization.



If not provided otherwise in these Terms of Reoizm@tion, any reference to the laws, a
particular law or other legal act shall mean aresfee to the actual wording of the laws,
particular law or other legal acts of the Repuliithuania on the Day of preparation of the
Terms of Reorganization.

2.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

GENERAL TERMS

The goal of the Reorganization is: on the basigro¥isions of the Law on Companies of
the Republic of Lithuania and the Civil Code of tRepublic of Lithuania to merge
public joint-stock company INVL Technology, whiclftex the Reorganization ceases to
operate without liquidation process, to public fetock company BAIP grup which
after all the rights and duties (including the naare transferred, continues its operations
under the new name of public joint-stock companyIINrechnology

Preparation of Terms of Reorganization was approweds December 2014 by the
decision of shareholders of private limited comp&AIP grupg (decision attached as
Annex 1) and by the general meeting of the shadahmslof public joint-stock company
INVL Technology that was held on 19 December 2Qd&étpcol attached as Annex 2).

Terms of Reorganization are prepared in accordaitteArticles 61-69 of the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania and Chaytédrof Book Two of the Civil Code
of the Republic of Lithuania, taking into accouhe trequirements of other legal acts of
the Republic of Lithuania.

Terms of Reorganization are prepared based ondialastatements of public joint-stock
company INVL Technology and private limited compa@W¥IP grup prepared as of 30
September 2014 and taking into account ArticleAssociation of the public joint - stock
company BAIP grupregistered on 18 December 2014 (Annexes 3 and 4).

Together with these Terms of Reorganization a neMept of Articles of Association is
prepared (Annex 6).

Assessment of the Terms of Reorganization is pesdr and report is prepared by
private limited company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS, eod23903963, registered
address J. Kubiliaus st. 6, Vilnius (Report of Assaent of the Terms of Reorganization
from the day it is submitted to the Company pgstting in the Reorganization and the
Company being Reorganized becomes Annex 7 of thes'ef Reorganization).

In accordance with paragraph 8 of Article 63 of Llasv on Companies of the Republic
of Lithuania, the Terms of Reorganization will bebmitted to the Manager of the
Register of Legal Entities, not later than on tlag of the public announcement in the
source that is stated in the Articles of Associatad the Company participating in the
Reorganization and the Company being Reorganizadthe electronic publication for
public announcements which is issued by the Manafytte Register of Legal Entities,
also announced in the Central regulated informabase as well as in the websites of the
Company participating in the Reorganization wwwpigaiipe.lt and the Company being
Reorganized www.invitechology.lt.

The Company participating in the Reorganization #redl Company being Reorganized
during all the period starting from the first ddfypoiblic announcement about preparation
of the Terms of Reorganization in the electroniblmation for public announcements
which is issued by the Manager of the Registerexfdl and finishing no earlier than the



2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

day of Completion of Reorganization, publicly amdef of charge publish the Terms of
Reorganization in their web-sites and indicate jatibn in these websites day.

In accordance with paragraph 2 of Article 62 of tlaev on Companies of the Republic
of Lithuania, meetings of the Company participatingthe Reorganization and the
Company being Reorganized shall make decisions anliele than 30 days after the
Manager of the Register of Legal Entities annouradesut the Terms of Reorganization
received. Protocols of aforementioned meetingd sleasubmitted to the Manager of the
Register of Legal Entities no later than 5 daysrafte meeting.

Each action of the Reorganization shall be perfdritaking into consideration general
principal and goal - ensure smoothness, transpgreffeciency, economy and rapidity of
the Reorganization process despite if the saidcipl® is mentioned or not while
describing particular steps of the Reorganization.

The principle mentioned in paragraph 2.10 abovéd sfean that the time - periods stated
by these Terms of Reorganization and legal actstlier particular actions of the

Reorganization have to be treated as the maximoma tiperiods. Therefore, all efforts

have to be used, when there is real and reasoogplatunity, in order to complete the

said actions immediately, except when it is prdeibiby mandatory provisions of the
laws or other legal acts. The time - periods statetthese Terms of Reorganization may
be missed (or performance of some action delayat) io cases when those time —
periods cannot be kept due to the following reasdhe Reorganization has been
suspended and (or) mandatory provisions of the f@aiibit conduction of the particular

steps in time — periods stated in the Terms of auration.

Additionally, the principle mentioned in paragrapii0 above shall also mean that if in
particular situation any action related with theoRg@nization may be completed more
smoothly, transparently, efficiently and rapidly @another body of the Company
participating in the Reorganization or the Comphaing Reorganized or another person
which has a right to act on behalf of the mentioakdve companies, this action has to be
completed by the said body or person which hasritjet to act on behalf of the
company, except the cases when it is prohibitechégdatory provisions of the laws.

3. THE MODE, LEGAL ASSUMPTIONS, EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE
REORGANIZATION

3.1.

The mode of the Reorganization:

3.1.1. The Reorganization is performed in the manner etéit in paragraph 3 of Article
2.97 of the Civil Code of the Republic of Lithuanihen one legal entity is
merged to the other and all the rights and dutieébeofirst subject are transferred
to the later.

3.1.2. The Reorganization corresponds with paragraph flaof 2 of Article 41 of the
Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of udhia according to which
“entities are reorganised by means of a mergerduoyiaition, i.e. one or more
entities, on being dissolved without going intauidgation, (hereinafter referred to
as the “acquired entities”) are merged with anotiesting entity (hereinafter
referred to as the “acquiring entity”) and, at timee of the merger, all the assets,
rights and obligations of the acquired entity aemsferred to the acquiring entity



3.2.

3.1.3.

3.1.4.

and members of the acquired entity, in exchangéh®ishares (interests, member
shares) held in the acquired entity, receive sh@mésrests, member shares) issued
by the acquiring entity, to which all the asseights and obligations of the
acquired entity are transferred”.

As the Reorganization corresponds with cases ofgasization and transfer
provided in Article 41 oftte Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of
Lithuania,according to part 1 of Article 42 of theaw on Corporate Income Tax
of the Republic of Lithuanjawhen the shareholders of the Company being
Reorganized receive shares in the Company pairtilcgpan the Reorganization in
exchange for those held in the Company being Reared, the increase of the
value of shares shall not be treated as incomeidi shareholders. In this case,
the acquisition price of the shares received in@Goepany participating in the
Reorganization in exchange for the shares of thegamy being Reorganized is
the acquisition price of the shares exchanged befa transfer was effected.

As the Reorganization corresponds with cases ofgasization and transfer
intended in Article 41 offte Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of
Lithuania,according to part 2 of Article 42 of theaw on Corporate Income Tax
of the Republic of Lithuaniawhen the Company being Reorganized transfers
assets to the Company participating in the Reorgdion, the increase in the
value of assets shall not be treated as incomeeo€bmpany being Reorganized.
In this case, the acquisition price of such assieadl be the acquisition price of the
assets before the transfer was effected.

Legal assumptions of the Reorganization are tHeviahg:

3.2.1.

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

3.2.4.

3.2.5.

3.2.6.

the authorized capital of the Company participaimghe Reorganization and the
Company being Reorganized have been fully paidshprés emission price of the
last share issue);

the Company participating in the Reorganization a&hé Company being
Reorganized have not acquired the status of thepanynbeing reorganized or
involved into the reorganization, or the companyingetransformed, or the
company in liquidation, bankruptcy or restructuring

preparation of the Terms of Reorganization was @y by the decision of
shareholders of private limited company BAIP gragm 5 December 2014 (Annex
1) and by the general meeting of shareholders efCtbmpany being Reorganized
on 19 December 2014 (Annex 2);

the Terms of Reorganization have been drawn uphbyBoard of the Company
participating in the Reorganization and the Board tlke Company being
Reorganized;

the Terms of Reorganization are assessed and ploet is prepared by private
limited company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS;

the Board of the Company Participating in the Ranization and the Board of the
Company being Reorganized are preparing reportsutabtbhe intended
Reorganization.



3.3.

Implementation and Completion of the Reorganization

3.3.1. not later than 30 days before the Meeting of then@any participating in the

3.3.1.1.

3.3.1.2.
3.3.1.3.
3.3.1.4.

Reorganization and the Meeting of the Company beReprganized, the
information about the prepared Terms of Reorgamizashall be one time
published in the electronic publication for pubdiotnouncements which is issued
by the Manager of the Register of Legal Entitied arovided to all creditors of
the Company participating in the Reorganization ahd Company being
Reorganized in writing (by registered mail or irrgm). The announcement shall
contain further mentioned data and information whte documents listed under
the paragraph 3.2.2. of the Terms of Reorganizatambe found:

information indicated in Article 2.44 of the Civlode of the Republic of Lithuania
about the Company participating in the Reorgaromatind the Company being
Reorganized,

mode of the Reorganization;
the companies that will continue to operate afterReorganization;

the moment when all the rights and duties of then@any being Reorganized are
transferred to the Company participating in thefiganization.

3.3.2. not later than 30 days before the Meeting of then@any Participating in the

3.3.2.1.
3.3.2.2.

3.3.2.3.

3.3.2.4.

3.3.2.5.
3.3.2.6.

3.3.2.7.

Reorganization and the Meeting of the Company bd¥egrganized, both the
Company being Reorganized and the Company particgpan the Reorganization
will offer a possibility for their shareholders aramteditors to access further
mentioned  documents in  their  web-siteswww.baipgrupe.lt  and
www.invitechnology.lt

Terms of Reorganization;

new wording of the Articles of Association of theo@pany participating in the
Reorganization;

the sets of annual financial statements, annuakrtefor the last three years and a set
of interim financial statements as of 30 Septen20d44 of the Company participating
in the Reorganization;

the sets of annual financial statements, annuakrtefor the last three years and a set
of interim financial statements as of 30 Septen®@t4 of the Company being
Reorganized,

the report of the assessment of the Terms of Raaa#on;

the report about the intended Reorganization pegphy the Board of the Company
participating in the Reorganization;

the report about the intended Reorganization pegphy the Board of the Company
being Reorganized.

3.3.3. The documents listed in paragraph 3.3.2. of then§esf Reorganization will be

available at no charge for the shareholders onwhkbsite of the Company
participating in the Reorganizatiomvw.baipgrupe.ltas well as on the website of




3.3.4.

3.3.5.

3.3.6.

3.3.7.

3.3.8.

3.3.9.

the Company being Reorganized www.invitechnologgtid print or receive
copies of these documents at no charge in theesffaf the Company participating
in the Reorganization and/or the Company being geored during all period
indicated in paragraph 2.8.

If there are any substantial changes in asset#srand liabilities from the Day of
preparation of the Terms of Reorganization, the agan of the corresponding
company will immediately draw up written announceise regarding such
changes and will attach to the documents listqehnagraph 3.3.2. of the Terms of
Reorganization. If there are any substantial chamgeassets, rights and liabilities
from the Day of preparation of the Terms of Reoization till the day of the
Meeting of the Company participating in the Reorgation and the day of the
Meeting of the Company being Reorganized, the mamag the corresponding
company will verbally announce the changes in tleeting of a corresponding
company and inform the manager of the other comaniie is able to inform
shareholders.

Proposals regarding the Terms of Reorganization Ipeagubmitted by the Board,
manager and shareholders of the Company particgpatithe Reorganization and
the Company being Reorganized, holding the shairtstlaeir nominal value not
less than 1/3 of the authorized capital of corraspry company.

The Terms of Reorganization, the report about titended Reorganization drawn
up by the board of the Company participating in Reprganization, the report
about the intended Reorganization drawn up by treedof the Company being
Reorganized and the report of the assessment aisTef Reorganization shall be
submitted to the Manager of the Register of Legdlties no later than on the day
information about their preparation is publishedthe electronic publication for
public announcements which is issued by the Manafé¢he Register of Legal
Entities.

From the day of publication about preparation ef Tlerms of Reorganization, the
public joint - stock company BAIP grépshall acquire the legal status of the
Company participating in the Reorganization and lipufint-stock company
INVL Technology shall acquire the legal status dfe t Company being
Reorganized.

Creditors of the Company patrticipating in the Ramigation and the Company
being Reorganized may submit their claims fromfitst day of publication of the

Terms of Reorganization until the Meeting of then@any participating in the

Reorganization and the Meeting of the Company bBiegrganized.

The decision regarding the Reorganization, approwél the Terms of

Reorganization and approval of the Articles of Asation of the Company
participating in the Reorganization, that will ciowie its operations after the
Reorganization, will be adopted by the Meetinghed Company participating in
the Reorganization and the Meeting of the CompaaiygoReorganized not earlier
than 30 days from the day on which the ManagehefRegister of Legal Entities
announces about Terms of Reorganization received.



3.3.10.Documents confirming the decisions regarding therganization taken by the
Meeting of the Company participating in the Reorgation and the Meeting of
the Company being Reorganized will be submittethéoManager of the Register
of Legal Entities within 5 (five) days of the cosponding meeting.

3.3.11.The Reorganization will be completed after the iliuként of all below stated
conditions:

- the Register of Legal Entities will register newrding of Articles of Association
of the Company participating in the Reorganizatamending the authorized
capital of the company and the name herein;

- the Register of Legal Entities will deregister @@mpany being Reorganized,;

- the shareholders of the Company participating exRleorganization will receive
shares of the Company being Reorganized in exchahte shares held in the
Company Participating in the Reorganization.

4. THE INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN  THE
REORGANIZATION AND THE COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED

4.1. The Company participating in the Reorganizatioerafhe Company being Reorganized
is merged and ceases to operate as legal persand&ated in these Terms of
Reorganization, on the day of Completion of theriganization shall take over all assets,
rights and liabilities of the Company being Reoigead, including assets, rights and
liabilities not indicated in financial statement$ the Company being Reorganized,

without signing any deeds of transfer — acceptamceshall continue its operations.
4.2. The Company participating in the Reorganization:

4.2.1. The data on the Company participating in the Reurgdion as of the Day of
preparation of the Terms of Reorganization:

Description

Name of the legal entity Public join-stock company BAIP grép

Legal form of the legal entity Public joint-stock company

Registered address A. Juozapaviiaus str. 6, Vilnius

Company code 300893533

Register which accumulates and storesThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic

the data about the legal entity Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code LT100003300019

Authorized capital 6 092 685 LTL

Fully paid authorized capital 6 092 685 LTL

Number of shares 6 092 685 units

Nominal value per one share 1LTL

of



Class of the shares

Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares

Uncertificated

ISIN code of the shares

LT0000128860

Regulated market on which the shares
are traded

5 Not traded

Share account manager

Public
Finasta

joint-stock company brokerage hot

|se

4.2.2. The data on the Company participating in the Reurgdion after the Completion

of the Reorganization:

Description

Name of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company INVL Technology

Legal form of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company

Registered address

Gyn¢jy str. 16, Vilnius

Company code

300893533

Register which accumulates and store
the data about the legal entity

sThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic
Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code

LT100003300019

Authorized capital

6114 714 LTL

1773 267.06 EUR

of

Fully paid authorized capital

6114 714 LTL

1773 267.06 EUR

Number of shares

6 114 714 units

Nominal value per one share 1LTL
0.29 EUR
Class of the shares Ordinary registered shares
Type of the shares Uncertificated
ISIN code of the shares LTO000128860

Regulated market on which the shares
are traded

The aim is to include the shares in the ma
within minimal required time indicated in leg

5 NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, Baltic Secondary List.

rket
al

acts.




Share account manager

Public
Finasta

joint-stock company brokerage hot

4.3.

The data on the Company being Reorganized:

Description

Name of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company INVL Technology

Legal form of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company

Registered address

Kalvarijy str. 11A-20, Vilnius

Company code

303299817

Register which accumulates and store
the data about the legal entity

sThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic
Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code

Not VAT payer

Authorized capital 592 730 LTL
Fully paid authorized capital 592 730 LTL
Number of shares 592 730 units
Nominal value per one share 1LTL

Class of the shares

Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares

Uncertificated

ISIN code of the shares

LT0000128738

Regulated market on which the shares
are traded

5 NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

|se

of
of

Share account manager

Public
Finasta

joint-stock company brokerage hot

|se

5. EXCHANGE RATIO OF THE SHARE
THE REORGANIZATION FOR TH
REORGANIZED , AND THE SUBSTAN

THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING
OPERATING

REORGANIZATION AND

S OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN
E SHARES OF THE COMPANY BEING
TIATION THEREOF .

IN THE

AFTER THE REORGANIZATION

ACCORDING TO THEIR CLASSES AND NOMINAL VALUE .

THE RULES OF SHARE ALLOCATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

5.1. As of the Day of preparation of the

Terms of Reargation:

- the authorized fully paid up capital of the Compéeing Reorganized is 592 730 (five
hundred ninety two thousand seven hundred and/XHitas. It is divided into 592 730



(five hundred ninety two thousand seven hundredthmty) ordinary registered shares
with nominal value of 1 (one) litas each. As of thay of preparation of the Terms of
Reorganization the Company being Reorganized hiaaagpiired its own shares;

- the authorized fully paid capital of the Compaayticipating in the Reorganization is 6
092 685 (six million ninety two thousand six hurdland eighty five) litas. It is divided
into 6 092 685 (six million ninety two thousand $ixndred and eighty five) ordinary
registered shares with nominal value of 1 (one}llgach. As of the Day of preparation of
the Terms of Reorganization the Company partiangatn the Reorganization has not
acquired its own shares.

5.2.The exchange ratio at which the shares of teengany being Reorganized are

exchanged to the shares of the Company particgpatir- 6.7856, i.e. for every share of
the Company being Reorganized shareholder of thep@ny being Reorganized shall
get 6.7856 ordinary registered shares with nomraale of 1 (one) litas (which is equal
to 0.29 euro) each of the Company participatindh@Reorganization.

the
Reorganization

5.3. Substantation of the shares exchange ratio:
5.3.1. Major assets of the Company being Reorganized 88 8eptember 2014:
Book value
Asset 30 Description
September P
2014
Shares of the
Company : . : :
participating in | 16 996 189 4 000 000 ordinary registered shares with nomiahlesof 1

(one) litas of the Company participating in the Ramization

Shares of privaté

1%

10 000 ordinary registered shares with nominalealul (one)

limited company 7 555 litas. Due to the fact that the company is not apeg, shares
Inventio are valued at book value (authorised capital (gash)

Cash 112 035 | Cash in the account

Liabilities -11 846 Total liabilities

Equity capital 17 103 933

5.3.2. As of the Day of preparation of the Terms of Reaimation, the Company being

Reorganized owns 4 000 000 ordinary registeredeshaith nominal value of 1 (one)
litas of the Company participating in the Reorgatian, which is 65.65 percent of
total shares of the Company patrticipating in therBanization. These shares are not
exchanged for the shares of the Company particigati the Reorganization.

5.3.3. Shares of the Company being Reorganized are tradedASDAQ OMX Vilnius

Stock Exchange. Weighted average price of theseeshHeom 18 June 2014 to 18
December 2014 was EUR 9.612830 (LTL 33.1912). Stedi on the trading activity
on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange of the shamdsthe Company being
Reorganized is provided in Annex 10.



5.3.4. Determining exchange ratio, shares of the CompamygbReorganized were valued
according to the weighted average price of thedasmonths (as stated in paragraph
5.3.3.), while the value of the shares of the Camgpagarticipating in the
Reorganization is determined by deducting net agsen-related to the shares of the
Company participating in the Reorganization frosritarket capitalization (market

value of the shares):

The number of shares of the Company being Reorgdnumits 592 730
Weighted average price of the Company being ReargdnLTL 33,1912
Market capitalization of the Company being Reorgedj LTL 19 673 420
Other net assets of the Company being Reorganeaduding the shares of

the Company participating in the Reorganizatiof)l. L 107 744
Value of the shares of the Company participatinth@Reorganization

owned by the Company being Reorganized, LTL 19 565 676
Number of shares of the Company participating enReorganization owned

by the Company being Reorganized, units 4 000|000
Value of one share of the Company participatinthenReorganization 4,8914
Exchange ratio (the number of shares of the Comaniicipating in the
Reorganization exchanged for one share of the Coynpaing Reorganized 6,7856

5.3.5. After assessing exchange ratio sensitivity anaglydepending on different share
prices of the Company being Reorganized, price maves between the boundaries
of 28 and 37 litas, the deviation of the excharag®ris negligible and less than 0.1

percent:
Share fice of the
Company being
Reorganized, LTL 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
Share value of th
Company
participating in the
Reorganization,
LTL 4,1222| 4,2704| 4,4185| 4,5667| 4,7149| 4,8631| 5,0113| 5,1595| 5,3076| 5,4558
Exchange rati 6,792t | 6,791| 6,789¢| 6,788:| 6,781| 6,785¢| 6,784 | 6,783 | 6,7827| 6,781¢
Deviation from the
determined
exchange ratio, % 0,10% 0,08%| 0,06%| 0,04%| 0,02%| 0,00%| -0,01%]| -0,03%/| -0,04% -0,06%
5.4. According to the determined exchange ratio andyapgplarithmetic rounding rules:
Number of shares of the Company participating ie fReorganizatiof
entitled to the shareholders of the Company beiegr&anized, units 4 022 029
Number of shares entitled to the shareholders @fGbmpany participating
in the Reorganization (excluding the Company b&egrganized), units 2 092 685




Authorised capital of the Company participatinghe Reorganization after| 6 114 714 (which
the Reorganization isequalto1 773

267.06 EUR)

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

In order to ensure smooth implementation of theesleachange procedure stated in the
Terms of Reorganization, the trading on NASDAQ OMi¥ius Stock Exchange of the
shares of the Company participating in the Reomgdiun will be suspended not later
than 2 (two) days until the Meeting of the Compaayticipating in the Reorganization.
Shares of the Company participating in the Reomgdimn will be included in the list of
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange within the minitname limits indicated in
legal acts.

If a fractional amount occurs while calculatingizesof a new authorized capital and/or
exchanging the shares of the Company participatirtge Reorganization for the shares
in the Company being Reorganized as indicated énTiterms of Reorganization, the
fraction will be rounded to a whole number usinighanetic rounding rules: (i) if the first
digit of decimal fractional part is figure 5 or igr, 1 is added to the last digit of the
whole number; (ii) if the first digit of the decimfiactional part is less than 5, the last
digit of the whole number will remain unchanged.

If due to arithmetic rounding the total sum of €sof the Company participating in the
Reorganization is larger or smaller than the nunifeshares indicated in paragraph
4.2.2., the number of shares held by the largestesiolder will be adjusted accordingly
up or down.

6. THE PROCEDURE AND TIME LIMITS OF THE ISSUE OF SHARES OF THE

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

COMPANY OPERATING AFTER THE REORGANIZATION
6.1.

At the end of the Day of Exchange of Shares theetizdders of the Company being
Reorganized on the basis of these Terms of Reagiaom shall dispose shares of the
Company being Reorganized and obtain 6.7856 sludrgee Company Participating in

the Reorganization.

The share account managers of the Company pattigypia the Reorganization and the
Company being Reorganized in accordance with tmmn3 ®f Reorganization shall make
the necessary records confirming the disposal ef divnership of the shares in the
Company being Reorganized and acquisition of th@eoghip of the shares in the
Company participating in the Reorganization.

The shares of the Company participating in the Baaration after the Completion of
the Reorganization will be included in NASDAQ OMXilMus Stock Exchange
Secondary list on the basis of legal acts.

All rights granted by the shares of the Companygé&teorganized that will continue its
operations after the Reorganization will be obtdioa the day the ownership rights are
obtained.

7. THE PRICE DIFFERENCE, PAID OUT IN CASH, BETWEEN THE SHARES HELD BY THE

SHAREHOLDERS AND THE SHARES TO BE RECEIVED IN THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN
REORGANIZATION THAT WILL CONTINUE ITS OPERATIONS AFT  ER THE REORGANIZATION



7.1. There will be no price difference between the shaechanged, therefore there will be
no payments in cash.

8. THE MOMENT FROM WHICH THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PROFITS OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN
THE REORGANIZATION AND ALL TERMS RELATED TO THE GRA NTING OF THIS RIGHT

8.1. The shareholders of the Company being Reorganizaitltse entitled to participate in the
profit of the Company participating in the Reorgation from the Day of Exchange of
Shares, i.e. the shareholders shall be entitlece¢eive dividends from the Company
participating in the Reorganization from the dayntiened before.

9. THE MOMENT FROM WHICH THE ASSETS , RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY BEING
REORGANIZED SHALL BE ASSUMED TRANSFERRED TO THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN
THE REORGANIZATION .

THE MOMENT FROM WHICH THE CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS AND LIA BILITIES OF THE
COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED SHALL BE ASSUMED TRANSFERR ED TO THE COMPANY
PARTICIPATING IN THE REORGANIZATION AND THE TRANSACTIONS SHALL BE INCLUDE D
INTO ITS ACCOUNTING

9.1. Allthe assets, rights and liabilities of the Compdeing Reorganized, all the contractual
rights and liabilities of the Company being Reoigad shall be assumed transferred to
the Company participating in the Reorganization dredtransactions shall be included
into its accounting on the basis of these Term&edrganization without additionally
signing of transfer — acceptance deeds at the éntheo day the Company being
Reorganized is deregistered from the Register ghLEntities.

9.2. From the day the Company being Reorganized is de#eegd from the Register of Legal
Entities the rights to manage, use and disposéutigs available in the bank accounts of
the Company being Reorganized shall be transfeéadéide Company participating in the
Reorganization or these accounts shall be closet tha funds in them shall be
transferred to the Company patrticipating in theiganization.

9.3. Rights to the assets of the Company being Reorgdrilzat shall be registered according
to the legal acts, duties of the Company being §aured related to the assets that shall
be registered as well as take-over of other ddliasshall be registered according to the
legal acts, shall be registered if registratiomésessary according to mandatory legal
norms. Limitations to the rights to the assets #hall be registered, duties related to the
assets that shall be registered and other dutias stimall be registered according to
mandatory legal norms are transferred to the Compaarticipating in the
Reorganization from the moment these limitationstlé rights and/or duties are
registered/re-registrered according to the legdbk at this is needed according to
mandatory legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania.

9.4. The Company participating in the Reorganizatioresaver all the assets, rights and
duties of the Company being Reorganized, includingnot limited, assets, rights and
duties not stated in the financial statements a6 age all the tax rights and duties,
including but not limited, rights and duties thaight emerge after the tax administrator
or other state institutions add on arrears or fiaesording to the legal acts for the



9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

9.8.

9.9.

operations of the Company being Reorganized unéilday of deregistration from the
Register of Legal Entities.

If any assets, rights or liabilities of the Compabging Reorganized that are not
mentioned earlier will come out after the day ofedgstration of the Company being
Reorganized from the Register of Legal Entitiesytiill be transferred to the Company
participating in the Reorganization by the procedpirovided in paragraph 9.1. of these
Terms of Reorganization.

From the day the Company being Reorganized is d#deegd from the Register of Legal
Entities:

9.6.1. all the assets as well as the rights and liaksligssigned to those assets will be

transferred to the Company patrticipating in the l@anization and included into the
accounting of the Company patrticipating in the Raaization on the basis of these
Terms of Reorganization, if otherwise is not pr@ddy mandatory legal acts;

9.6.2. all rights and liabilities related to the assetnsferred including contractual rights

and liabilities of the Company being Reorganizelll ng transferred to the Company
participating in the Reorganization and will beluded into the accounting of the
Company participating in the Reorganization if otise is not provided by
mandatory legal acts or contracts of the CompaitrygbReorganized. If according to
mandatory legal acts of the Republic of Lithuaniaantracts of the Company being
Reorganized the approval of a creditor is requifed the transfer of particular
liabilities, such liabilities are assigned to theon@pany participating in the
Reorganization from the moment of receiving of jgatar approval of the creditor, if
such moment is subsequent to the moment of assignofdiabilities stated in the
Terms of Reorganization. If such approval is noereed the Company participating
in the Reorganization will put all efforts in ordés agree on a replacement of
liabilities of the similar content and value;

9.6.3. the Company patrticipating in the Reorganization stért fulfilment of the assigned

contractual liabilities in line with the provisions$ the contracts.

The drawing up and publication of the Terms of Raaization will not restrict the right
of the Company participating in the Reorganizaaod the Company being Reorganized
to conduct their activity provided in the Article§Association.

The Company participating in the Reorganizatiorthimithe period from publication of
the Terms of Reorganization till the Completiontbé Reorganization, while signing
contracts, will inform another party of its leg&htsis.

The Company being Reorganized, within the periainfipublication of the Terms of
Reorganization till the Completion of the Reorgaitian, while signing contracts, will
inform another party about its legal status anduéiite potential transfer of rights and/or
liabilities under such contract on the basis oéh&€erms of Reorganization.

10. THE RIGHTS OF CREDITORS AT THE MOMENT OF REORGANIZATION

10.1. The rights of the creditors of the Company partitipg in the Reorganization and the

Company being Reorganized are protected by Ar@cl®1 of the Civil Code of the



10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

11.

Republic of Lithuania and Article 66 of the Law @ompanies of the Republic of
Lithuania.

The information about the drawn up Terms of Reomgdion will be published one time
in the electronic publication for public announcemsewhich is issued by the Manager of
the Register of Legal Entities and provided tocadiditors of the Company participating
in the Reorganization and the Company being Reargdnn writing (by registered post
or in person).

Each creditor of the Company participating in treoRyanization and the Company being
Reorganized will have a right to require to ternénar early discharge of liabilities

according to the agreements, also indemnify logstss is provided in the agreements
or there is a ground for believing that the Reoizmtion will hinder the discharge of the

liability and ,in case of the request of the credit the company will not be able to
provide additional safeguards. The creditors mayige their requests from the first day
of publication of the Terms of Reorganization urthie meeting of the corresponding
company will adopt the resolution of the approviahe Reorganization.

The Company participating in the Reorganization #rved Company being Reorganized
must provide additional safeguards for the disohafgliabilities to each creditor who so
requests, where his rights arose and did not ekgfere the publication of the drawn up
Terms of Reorganization and there is a ground &iebing that the Reorganization will

hinder the discharge of a liabilities.

The Company participating in the Reorganization /@andthe Company being
Reorganized may refrain from providing additionafeguards for the discharge of
liabilities if the discharge of its liabilities tihe creditor is adequately secured by pledge,
mortgage, surety or guarantee.

The documents for the registration of the Articlefs Association of the Company
participating in the Reorganization and deregigiradf the Company being Reorganized
thereof may not be submitted to the Manager of Riegister of Legal Entities if no
additional safeguards for the discharge of liabsithave been provided to the creditor
who so requested as laid down in these Terms ofdRa@ation as well as before a
court’'s decision becomes effective if the disputeroadditional safeguards for the
discharge of liabilities is being heard in court.

THE RIGHTS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN THE

REORGANIZATION THAT WILL CONTINUE ITS OPERATIONS AFT ER THE
REORGANIZATION TO THE HOLDERS OF THE SHARES OF DIFF ERENT
CLASSES, DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES

11.1.

11.2.

There are no any other securities issued by the p@ogn participating in the
Reorganization than 6 092 685 ordinary registetetes with nominal value of 1 litas
(which is equal to 0.29 euro) each. The propriet@ng non-proprietary rights of the
owners of those shares are described by legalaadshe Articles of Association of the
company thereof.

From the Day of preparation of the Terms of Reoizgion till the Completion of the
Reorganization there are no plans to issue additi@ecurities. If any additional
securities are issued, these Terms of Reorganizatibcease to be valid.



11.3.

11.4.

12.

12.1.

After the Completion of the Reorganization the Camyp participating in the
Reorganization will have issued 6 114 714 ordinagistered shares with nominal value
of 1 litas (which is equal to 0.29 euro) each.

After the Completion of the Reorganization ordinaegistered shares of the Company
participating in the Reorganization will grant stfaslders rights set up in the relevant
legal acts and the Articles of Association.

THE SPECIAL RIGHTS GRANTED TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOD IES OF THE COMPANY
PARTICIPATING IN THE REORGANIZATION AND THE COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED
AND TO EXPERTS CARRYING OUT THE ASSESSMENT OF THE TERMS OF
REORGANIZATION

The Terms of Reorganization are assessed and poet ien assessment is prepared by
private limited company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS. Tieport on assessment shall
include:

12.1.1.findings on validity and fairness of the exchanggor,

12.1.2.methods used to determine the exchange ratio artinfls on validity of these

methods and impact on the valuation of the shares;

12.1.3.description of assessment difficulties.

12.2.

Rights granted to private limited company MOORE B8HENS VILNIUS while
assessing the Terms of Reorganization:

12.2.1.receive all the documents needed to assess andrerdpe report on assessment of

the Terms of Reorganization;

12.2.2.receive all the information needed to assess aeplape the report on assessment of

the Terms of Reorganization as well as get theaggtlions of the managers and
employees of the Company participating in the Raoization and the Company
being Reorganized,;

12.2.3.all the other rights provided in the agreement wpitivate limited company MOORE

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

STEPHENS VILNIUS and the legal acts of the Repubfitithuania

As provided in the Articles of Association of ther@pany being Reorganized the bodies
of the company thereof are the following: the gahareeting of shareholders, the Board
(elected from 3 members) and the Manager (Directsujhorization of the Board and
the Manager will cease to be valid from the day @@mpany being Reorganized is
deregistered from the Register of Legal Entities.

As provided in the Articles of Association of theor@pany participating in the
Reorganization the bodies of the company theresotle following: the general meeting
of shareholders, the Board (elected from 5 memizgrd)the Manager (Director).

The structure of the managing bodies of the Compamniicipating in the Reorganization
that will continue its operations after the Reoiigation will not change after Completion
of the Reorganization and will be the following tfhe Board appointed by the decision
of shareholders on 5 December 2014 and (ii) thedganappointed by the Board on 9
December 2014.



12.6. The shareholders of the Company participating enReorganization that will continue
its operations after the Reorganization will haver@ghts stated by the Articles of
Association of the company thereof and legal acts.

12.7. The Board members, Managers and employees of tmep&uwy participating in the
Reorganization and the Company being Reorganizadgithe Reorganization will have
all rights intended in agreements and the ArtioeAssociation of the companies thereof
and as well as legal acts.

12.8. The Boards of the Company participating in the Banization and the Company being
Reorganized will:

12.8.1.prepare the report of the corresponding Board deég@the Reorganization;

12.8.2.make decisions and perform other actions relateieédreorganization and intended
in these Terms of Reorganization, decisions ofgieeral meetings of shareholders
and corresponding legal acts;

12.8.3.manage the Reorganization and control its coursieeotorresponding company;

12.8.4.have all other duties and rights stated by legts and the Articles of Association the
corresponding company.

12.9. The Managers of the Company participating in th@rBanization and the Company
being Reorganized will:

12.9.1.within their competence take decisions and condiictactions related with the
Reorganization and provided in the Terms of Reamgaion and resolutions of the
Board of the corresponding company;

12.9.2.ensure publication of information and documentation is required by mandatory
legal acts;

12.9.3.in accordance with the requirements of law enswrgligation of the information
about drawn up Terms of Reorganization as well idsmngssion of the Terms of
Reorganization and other related documents to taeadders of the Register of Legal
Entities;

12.9.4.ensure the disclosure of decisions related withRberganization in accordance with
the requirements provided by laws;

12.9.5.submit the information and documentation relatethwhe Reorganization to the
shareholders and creditors of the correspondingpeom

12.9.6.makes decision on provision of additional safegsidad discharge of liabilities to
each creditor of the corresponding company;

12.9.7.before the Completion of the Reorganization sidres dgreements on behalf of the
corresponding company;

12.9.8.at the time of the Reorganization managers of tmg@any being Reorganized and
the Company participating in the Reorganizationehall other liabilities and rights
stated by legal acts and the Articles of Assocmtibthe corresponding company.

13. THE COMPLETION OF THE REORGANIZATION



13.1.

13.

13.

13.

14.
14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

14.5.
14.6.

14.7.
14.8.

14.9.

14.10.

The Reorganization shall be completed at the Camoplef the Reorganization, i.e. from
the moment when:

1.1the amended Articles of Association of the Compaparticipating in the
Reorganization that continues its operations aftex Reorganization will be
registered in the Register of Legal Entities;

1.2.the Company being Reorganized will be deregistdéreth the Register of Legal
Entities;

1.3.shares of the shareholders of the Company beinggReized will be exchanged for
the ordinary registered shares in the Company djaating in the Reorganization
(except the Company being Reorganized).

ANNEXES TO THE TERMS OF REORGANIZATION

Annex 1 — The copy of the public joint-stock comp&AIP grupe shareholders decision
dated 5 December 2014.

Annex 2 — The copy of the Protocol of the generaétimg of shareholders of the public
joint - stock company INVL Technology dated 19 Deber 2014.

Annex 3 — The interim financial statements of thel joint-stock company BAIP
grup: as of 30 September 2014.

Annex 4 - The interim financial statements of thebl joint-stock company INVL
Technology as of 30 September 2014.

Annex 5 — The extract of main data of the publiogstock company BAIP grup

Annex 6 — The draft Articles of Association of thablic joint-stock company INVL
Technology.

Annex 7 — The Report on assessment of the TerRgofganization.

Annex 8 — The report on intended Reorganizatiorthef Board of public joint-stock
company BAIP grup

Annex 9 — The report on intended Reorganizatiorthef Board of public joint-stock
company INVL Technology.

Annex 10 — Statistics on the trade of the shard@bepublic joint-stock company INVL
Technology on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius stock exchange.



Extract from private joint-stock company BAIP grupé shareholders decision dated 5 December 2014

PRIVATE JOINT-STOCK COMPANY BAIP GRUPE
Code 300893533
Registered office address A. Juozapawis g. 6, Vilnius city, Vilnius city district
Data about the company is collected and storelderRegister of Legal Entities

SHAREHOL DERSDECISION
Vilnius, fifth of december year two thousand andrfeen

Private joint-stock company BAIP gréip company code 300893533, registered address A.
Juozapawviiaus g. 6, Vilnius city, Vilnius city district (hemafter referred as the company),
registered authorized capital — 5 000 000 (fiveliom) litas. Authorized capital is divided to

5 000 000 (five million) ordinary registered shamish nominal value of 1 (one) litas each. All
shares are fully paid up. Each fully paid up shaith nominal values of 1 (one) litas grants one
vote during the general meeting of shareholders.

All private joint-stock company BAIP grgpshares belong to:

1) Public joint-stock company “INVL Technology” — 40®00 (four million) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grghares, which amounts to 80 per cent of
all issued shares and voting rights of the company;

2) Kazimieras Tonknas — 401 614 (four hunderd one thousand six hdrfiderteen) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grighares, which amounts to 8.03 per cent
of all issued shares and voting rights of the campa

3) Rokas Ralys — 98 387 (ninety eight thousand threedfed seven) ordinary registered
private joint-stock company BAIP grépshares, which amounts to 1.97 per cent of all
issued shares and voting rights of the company;

4) Marius LeS€inskas — 112 903 (one hundred twelwe thousand mimelred three) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grighares, which amounts to 2.26 per cent
of all issued shares and voting rights of the campa

5) Artaras MilaSauskas — 112 903 (one hundred twelwe #ralisine hundred three) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grighares, which amounts to 2.26 per cent
of all issued shares and voting rights of the camgpa

6) Gytis Umantas — 112 903 (one hundred twelwe thalisane hundred three) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grighares, which amounts to 2.26 per cent
of all issued shares and voting rights of the campa

7) Tomas Seikus — 48 387 (fourty eight thousand thma&edred eighty seven) 112 903 (one
hundred twelwe thousand nine hundred three) ordimagistered private joint-stock
company BAIP grup shares, which amounts to 0.96 per cent of aledshares and voting
rights of the company;

8) Vida Juozapaviere — 112 903 (one hundred twelwe thousand nine hanitiree) ordinary
registered private joint-stock company BAIP grighares, which amounts to 2.26 per cent
of all issued shares and voting rights of the camgpa

Above mentioned shareholders jointly have 5 000 @ million) ordinary registered private
joint-stock company BAIP grupshares, providing 100 per cent of all votes dutimg general
meeting of shareholders.

Taking into account paragraph 1 of Article 29 oé thaw on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania, this shareholders decision signed byhalcompany shareholders equals to UAB BAIP
grup: shareholders decision, and minutes of the gesheakholders meeting are not taken.
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Extract from private joint-stock company BAIP grupé shareholders decision dated 5 December 2014

Taking into account mentioned above and provismhe Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania,SHAREHOL DERS DECIDE:

5. REGARDING APPROVAL OF PUBLIC JOINT-STOCK COMPANY BAIP GRUPE PARTICIPATION IN
THE REORGANIZATION

To approve participation of the acting after transfation to a public-joint stock company BAIP
grupé in the reorganization by way of merger, merginghe public joint stock company INVL

Technology. To authorize the Board of public jostdek company BAIP gruépto prepare and

announce the reorganization terms according tteihs.

Private joint-stock company BAIP gréighareholders:

Public joint-stock company “INVL Technology”, regented by director Darius Sulnis

Kazimieras Tonknas

Rokas Ralys

Marius Leginskas

Artaras Milasauskas

Gytis Umantas

Tomas Seikus

Vida Juozapaviené

212



PUBLIC JOINT-STOCK COMPANY INVL TECHNOLOGY
Code 303299817
Registered address municipality of Vilnius, Vilnicigy, Kalvariju str. 11A-20
Data about the company is collected and storeldarRiegister of Legal Entities

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOL DERS NO 2014/02
Vilnius, nineteenth day of december year two thadsand fourteen

The authorized capital of public joint — stock camp “INVL Technology” (hereinafter may be referrex

as AB INVL Technology or the Company) is 592,730€fhundred ninety two thousand and seven hundred
thirty) litas. It is divided into 592,730 ((five hdred ninety two thousand and seven hundred thorginary
registered shares with nominal value of 1 (onaglgach.

Each 592,730 ordinary registered share of AB IN\AcAnology with nominal value of 1 (one) litas, gsan
one vote in the meeting.

The accounting day of the general meeting of sluddelns is 12 December 2014.

The general meeting of shareholders (hereinafiee meeting) was held on 19 December 2014 at pesmis
located Seimyniskiu str. 1, Vilnius.

The beginning of the meeting was at 8.30 a.m.

The date and venue, agenda and projects of degisfdhe meeting were announced on 27 November.2014
The supplemented agenda and projects of decisibtie aneeting were announced on 8 December 2014.
Notifications about the meeting were pubished icoadance with the requirements of the Law on Séeari

of the Republic of Lithuania. The announcementthef meeting were placed in the web site of NASDAQ
Vilnius and in the web site of AB INVL Technologhe internet addresses:
https://newsclient.omxgroup.com/cdsPublic/viewDoscire.action?disclosureld=634698&messageld=78794
9

https://newsclient.omxgroup.com/cdsPublic/viewDiscire.action?disclosureld=636289&messageld=79002
0

1. In total 6 (six) valid general voting bulleti(&31,728 votes) have been provided to the CompHEmy .said

documents are attached hereto.

2. No agreements on the disposal of additionahgatights belonging to the shareholder particigatinthe

meeting were submitted to the Company.

3. A total of 531,728 shares were representedeintbeting. 531,728 shares were entitled to votheat
meeting.

The meeting has a quorum. Since all of the shadeh®lparticipating in the meeting, voted in writiimy
advance, in accordance with paragraph 2 of Artk9eof the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania, the director of the Company Darius Ssjltias documented and signed the minutes accaaling
the votes received.

The agenda of the meeting of AB INVL Technology @mmced in accordance with the laws:

1) Regarding approval of the public joint - stock ce@mp INVL Technology participation in
reorganization;

2) Regarding approval of the public joint - stock cemp INVL Technology reorganization;

3) Regarding election of the audit company to audktfficial statements of the financial year 2014 and
setting the conditions of payment for the audiveess;

4) Regarding replacement of the registered office ltd public joint - stock company INVL
Technology;

5) Regarding election of the Audit Committee members;



6) Regarding approval of the remuneration for the reshelent member of the Audit Committee;
7) Approval of the regulations of the formation anthaty of the Audit Committee.

Considered:
1. Regarding approval of the public joint - stock company INVL Technology participation in the
reor ganization
To approve participation of the public joint-stoobmpany INVL Technology in the reorganization byywa
of merger, merging UAB BAIP group (code 300893588nhsformed into a public joint - stock company to
the public joint-stock company INVL Technology. Baoithorize the Board of public joint-stock company
INVL Technology to prepare and announce accordifpé¢ laws the reorganization terms.

Voted: total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a totahber of votes given by shares.

“For” voted O votes.

“Against” — 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egvoted in advance in writing). Decision was miagla
solid vote.

Decided:

Not to approve patrticipation of the public joinbsk company INVL Technology in the reorganization b
way of merger, merging UAB BAIP group (code 3008%®b transformed into a public joint - stock
company to the public joint-stock company INVL Taology.

Considered:
2. Regarding approval of the publicjoint - stock company INVL Technology reorganization

The announced draft resolution: To approve the reorganization of the public joitite® company INVL
Technology by way of merger, merging the publimjeitock company INVL Technology to UAB BAIP
group (code 300893533) transformed into a pubiiat jostock company. To authorize the Board of fubl
joint — stock company INVL Technology to preparel amnounce according to the laws the reorganization
terms.

According to the fact that on 18 December 2014 UBSIP group was transformed into the public joint
stock companythe supplemented draft resolution is: To approve the reorganization of the publinto
stock company INVL Technology by way of merger, gieg the public joint-stock company INVL
Technology to BAIP group, AB (code 300893533). Tharize the Board of public joint-stock company
INVL Technology to prepare and announce accordinipé laws the reorganization terms.

Voted: total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a tati@hber of votes given by shares.

“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egovoted in advance in writing before 18 December
2014).

“Against” — 0 votes. Decision was made by a sobtev(shareholders who voted for the draft resatutio
writing before 18 December 2014 (before UAB BAIRgp transformation), the votes are counted as votes
for a supplemented draft resolution).

Decided:

To approve the reorganization of the public joitatek company INVL Technology by way of merger,
merging the public joint-stock company INVL Techogy to BAIP group, AB (code 300893533). To
authorize the Board of public joint-stock compahy/L Technology to prepare and announce according to
the laws the reorganization terms.

Considered:
3. Regarding election of the audit company to audit financial statements of the financial year
2014 and setting the conditions of payment for the audit services.

To elect joint-stock company PricewaterhouseCogopade 111473315, to audit annual financial statesne
of the financial year 2014. To set the paymenttlieraudit services not more than LT 8000 (eightisand
litas), VAT is not included in this amount.



Voted: total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a totahber of votes given by shares.
“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egototed in advance in writing).
“Against” voted 0 votes. Decision was made by édsadte.

Decided:

To elect joint-stock company PricewaterhouseCogmede 111473315, to audit annual financial statgsne
the financial year 2014. To set the payment foréhdit services not more than LT 8000 (eight thodsa
litas), VAT is not included in this amount.

Considered:
4. Regarding replacement of the registered office of the public joint - stock company INVL
Technology.

To change the registered office of the public jeistock company INVL Technology and to register tiew
address in the premises located at municipalityibfius, Vilnius city, Seimyniskiu str. 1A (uniquilo.
1399-8031-1015).

Voted: total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a totahber of votes given by shares.
“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egototed in advance in writing).
“Against” voted 0 votes. Decision was made by édsadte.

Decided:

To change the registered office of the public jeistock company INVL Technology and to register tiew
address in the premises located at municipalityibfius, Vilnius city, Seimyniskiu str. 1A (uniquilo.
1399-8031-1015).

Considered:
5. Regarding election of the Audit Committee members.

To elect Danute Kadanaite and Tomas Bubinas (inttkppe member) to the Audit Committee of AB INVL
Technology for the 4 (four) year term of office.

Voted:total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a tatahlmer of votes given by shares.
“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egototed in advance in writing).
“Against” voted 0 votes. Decision was made by ddsabte.

Decided:
To elect Danute Kadanaite and Tomas Bubinas (inttkp@ member) to the Audit Committee of AB INVL
Technology for the 4 (four) year term of office.

Considered:
6. Regarding approval of theremuneration for the independent member of the Audit Committee.

For a work in the Audit Committee of AB INVL Techiogy, to fix a rate not higher than 500 Litas peuh
To delegate to the Board of the Company to detexrttie remuneration payment procedure for the Audit
Committee members.

Voted:total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a tatahlmer of votes given by shares.
“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egototed in advance in writing).
“Against” voted 0 votes. Decision was made by édsadte.

Decided:

For a work in the Audit Committee of AB INVL Techiogy, to fix a rate not higher than 500 Litas peuh

To delegate to the Board of the Company to detexrtiie remuneration payment procedure for the Audit
Committee members.



Considered:
7. Approval of theregulations of the formation and activity of the Audit Committee.

To approve new wording of the regulations of therfation and activity of the Audit Committee of AB
INVL Technology.

Voted: total — 531 728 votes, i.e. 89.7 percent a tati@hber of votes given by shares.
“For” voted 531 728 votes, (out of them 531 728egototed in advance in writing).
“Against” voted 0 votes. Decision was made by ddsabte.

Decided:

To approve new wording of the regulations of tharfation and activity of the Audit Committee of AB
INVL Technology.

Director (signature) Darius Sulnis
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BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapaviéiaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mr. Kazimieras Tonkiinas (Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Mr. Alvydas Banys

Mr. Vytautas Plunksnis

Mr. Nerijus Drobaviius

Mr. Gytis Umantas

Director

Mr. Kazimieras Tonk{inas

Address of the head office and company code

A.Juozapaviéiaus St 6
Vilnius,

Lithuania

Company code: 301318539

Banks
DNB bank AB

Finasta bank AB
SEB bank AB

The financial statements were approved and signed by thé I\‘/Iaﬂwaggm%?nt and the Board of Directors on 19 December 2014,
~—

Management:

e

Managing Director

o,

Kazimieras Tonk{inas s

}w? ot

Ramuté Ribinskiene Finance Director

According to the Law on Companies of Republic of Lithuania, the interim financial statements prepared by the Management
are authorised by the General Shareholders’ meeting. The shareholders hold the power not to approve the financial
statements and the right to request new financial statements to be prepared.



BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapavidiaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in L.TL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statement of comprehensive income

Continuing operations
Sales revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating costs
Other operating revenue/costs
Operating profit
Revenue from financial activities
Costs from financial activities

Profit for the reporting period before tax
income tax (costs)

Net profit for the reporting period

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to
be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Other net comprehensive income (loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) for
the period, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Other information (non-IFRS
indicators):
Operating profit (above)
To add: Depreciation and amortisation
(Notes 5 and 6) amount

To add: Other eliminating amounts
EBITDA (excluding payment in shares)

Notes

o b

The Group The Company
January- January- January- January-
September  September  September September
2014 2013 2014 2013
40.302 31.084 694 444
(29.093) (21.630) - (3)
11.209 9.454 694 441
(9.113) (7.948) (996) (705)
282 (101) 2.526 146
2.378 1.406 2.224 (118)
76 - 86 304
(1.062) (1.087) (1.105) (1.110)
1.392 318 1.205 (924)
(201) (6) - (1)
1.191 312 1.205 (925)
1.253 263 - -
(62) 49 - -
1.191 312 1.205 (925)
30 (83) - -
30 (83)
30 (83) - -
1.221 229 1.205 {925)
1.287 207 - -
(66) 22 - -
1.221 229 1.205 {925)
2.378 1.405
804 1.135
(167) (47)
3.015 2.493

The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapavitiaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand uniess otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 2.057 2.087 16 12
Goodwill 3 12.150 12.150 - -
Non-current intangible assets 11 1.030 1.231 - -
Investments into subsidiaries - - 14.948 14.948
Non-current financial assets - 14 - 665 - -
Deferred income tax asset 9 358 70 2 194
Total non-current assets 15.595 16.203 14.966 15.164
Current assets
Inventories 13 1.290 809 - -
Trade and other amounts receivable 14 18.318 11.733 3.079 709
Prepaid income tax 25 405 - -
Prepayments and deferred charges 589 149 39 -
Other current assets 16 1.364 2.588 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 17 309 1.417 1 50
Total current assets 21.895 16.801 3419 759
Total assets 37.490 33.004 18.085 15.913

(cont'd on the next page)



BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapaviéiaus 5t 8, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of financial position {cont’d)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent

Share capital

Reserves

Retained earnings (loss)

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings
Financial lease liabilities

EU grants

Deferred income tax liability
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Current portion of non-current borrowings
Current portion of financial lease liabilities
Trade payables

Income tax payable

Advances received

Liabilities related to employment relationships
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

18

19

19

21

22

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December
2014 2013 2014 2013
5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000
1.198 1.164 1.011 1.011
2.377 1.124 (2.498) (3.703)
8.675 7.288 3.513 2.308
544 610 - -
9.119 7.898 3.513 2.308
1.271 950 - -
37 46 - -
167 46 - -
41 74 - -
1.516 1116 - -
12.396 12.614 14.347 13.478
12 18 - -
11.083 6.819 74 24
574 46 - -
623 1.012 - 5
1.790 1.570 100 88
377 1.911 51 10
26.855 23.990 14.572 13.605
28.37 25.106 14.572 13.605
37.490 33.004 18.085 16.913
(the end)

The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

+
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BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapavitiaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of changes in equity (cont’d)

Reserve for

acquisition Retained
The Company Share of own earnings

Notes capital shares (loss) Total
Balance as at 31 December 2012 5.000 1.108 (2.732) 3.376
Total comprehensive (loss) during the period = - (925) (925)
Balance as at 30 September 2013 5.000 1.108 (3.657) 2.451
Balance as at 31 December 2013 5.000 1.011 (3.703) 2.308
Total comprehensive income during the period - - 1.205 1.205
Balance as at 30 September 2014 5.000 1.011 (2.498) 3.513
(the end)

The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BAIP GRUPE UAB, company code: 300893533, address: A. Juozapaviciaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of cash flows

The Group The Company
January-  January- January-  January-
September September September September

Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the reporting period 1.191 312 1.205 (925)
Non-cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 804 1.135 4 2
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - - - -
Interest income (70) - (86) (297)
Interest expenses 1.004 1.045 1.105 1.110
Loss (profit) from currency Exchange differences (6) 7 - (7)
Income tax expenses 9 201 6 - 1
Other (116) (5) (2.115) 134
3.008 2.500 113 18
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease (increase) in inventories (481) (259) - -
Decrease (increase) in frade and other receivables (5.920) (3.430) (1.331) (2.866)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 784 530 (39) -
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 4.264 (1.422) 50 37
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities (1.244) (1.802) 48 (166)
Cash flows from operating activities 411 (3.883) (1.159) (2.927)
Income tax (paid) - (152) - )]
Cash flows from operating activities 411 {4.035) (1.159) {2.928)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of non-current assets (except investment
properties) (373) (5086) (8) (9)
Increase of share capital of subsidiaries - - - (10)
Money market fund units - 18 - -
Dividends received - - 1.268 -
Interest received 70 - 86 297
Acquisition and establishment of subsidiaries, less 3
the balance of cash acquired - (5) - (11)
Net cash flows from investing activities (303) (493) 1.346 267
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans/ (Repayment) of loans and
interest (901) 2.757 (236) 2.571
Interest paid
Finance lease payments (15) (107) - -
Dividends - (311) - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - (200) - -
Net cash flows from financing activities (916) 2139 (236) 2.571
Impact of currency exchange on cash and cash
equivalents - - - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents {808) (2.389) (49) (90)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 17
period 1.147 3.548 50 91
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period 17 309 1.159 i 1

The accompanying explanatory notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Notes to the financial statements
1.  General information

BAIP GRUPE UAB (hereinafter - the Company) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of Lithuania on
28

June 2007. The address of its registered office is: A.Juozapavidiaus St 6, Vilnius, Lithuania.

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Lithuania. The Company is one of the major information technology companies
in Lithuania whose primary objective is to invest into information technology (IT) market of Lithuania by getting together
professional specialized IT companies and/or other organized teams of professionals from this field that can create together and
individually cost-efficient solutions with high level of reliability and functionality and to gain ground in the market by providing
services to major clients of national importance.

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 the shareholders of the Company were the following:

30 September 2014 31 December 2013
Number of Votes Number of votes Votes
votes held (%) held (%)
Invalda LT AB - - 4.000.000 80
AB INVL Technology 4.000.000 80 - -
Other shareholders 1.000.000 20 1.000.000 20
Total 5.000.000 100 5.000.000 100

All the shares of the Company are ordinary shares with the par value of LTL 1 each and were fully paid as at 30 September
2014 and 31 December 2013. Subsidiaries did not hold any shares of the Company as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December
2013. The Company did not hold own shares.

As at 30 September 2014 the number of employees of the Group was 150 (as at 31 December 2013 ~148).

The financial statements were approved and sighed by the Company's Management and the Board of Directors on 198 December
2014,

According to the Law on Companies of Republic of Lithuania, the interim financial statements prepared by the Management are
authorised by the General Shareholders’ meeting. The shareholders hold the power not to approve the financial statements and
the right to request new financial statements to be prepared.

The Group consists of the Company and the following directly and indirectly owned subsidiaries (hereinafter - the Group):
30 September 2014 31 December 2013
Share of the  Size of Share of Size of
stock held investment the stock investment

Company Registration by the (acquisition held by (acquisition
({the year of acquisition) country Group (%) cost)  the Group (%) cost) Main activities
Informatikos pasaulis UAB Information technology
(2007) Lithuania 100 941 100 941  solutions
Information technology
Vitma UAB (2007) Lithuania 100 8.452 100 8.452 solutions
Information technology
BAIP* UAB (2007) Lithuania 100 4.971 100 4.971 solutions
Information technology
Acena UAB (2008) Lithuania 100 162 100 162  solutions
Norway Registers Information technology
Development AS (2011) Norway 100 4.298 100 4,298 solutions
Information technology
NRD* UAB (2011) Lithuania 76,50 1.046 76,50 1.046 solutions
Norway Registers
Development East Africa Information technology
Ltd (2011) Tanzania 70 11 70 11 solutions
Information technology
NRD CS UAB (2013) Lithuania 100 10 100 10  solutions
Less: indirect ownership (4.943) (4.943)
Investments into
subsidiaries (Company) 14.948 14.948

* —~ indirectly managed subsidiaries
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the Group’s and the Company's interim financial statements as at
30 September 2014 are as follows:

2.4. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (hereinafter the EU).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented in thousands
of Litas (LTL) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations

The Group and the Company has adopted the new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as of 1 January 2014:

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

This Standard replaces the consolidation guidance in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and S1C-12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities by introducing a single consolidation model for all entities based on control, irrespective
of the nature of the investee. Definition of this concept is supplemented with various application guidelines. The adoption of this
amendment did not lead to any changes in the Group’s and the Company's interim financial statements as at 30 September
2014.

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

The Standard introduces new accounting requirements for joint arrangements, replacing IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. The
option to apply the proportional consolidation method when accounting for jointly controlied entities is removed. Additionally,
IFRS 11 eliminates jointly controlled assets to now only differentiate between joint operations and joint ventures. A joint operation
is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have rights to the net assets. The adoption of this
amendment did not lead to any changes in the Group’s and the Company's interim financial statements as at 30 September
2014.

IFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities”

The Standard will apply to companies with ownership interest in subsidiary, joint arrangement, associated company or
unconsolidated structured entity. IFRS 12 provides mandatory disclosures for companies which apply two new standards: IFRS
10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”. This Standard replaces requirements currently
applied according to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”. The objective of IFRS 12 is to require information
so that financial statement users may evaluate the basis of control, any restrictions on consolidated assets and liabilities, risk
exposures arising from involvements with unconsolidated structured entities and non-controlling interest holders' involvement in
the activities of consolidated entities. In order to meet these objectives the new standard requires disclosures of information in
several areas, including significant decisions and assumptions made while determining whether an entity controls, jointly controls
or has significant effect on its interest in other entities, also to disclose additional information regarding the portion of non-
controliing interest in the company's activities and cash flows, summarised information of subsidiaries with non-controlling
interest and thorough information on the portion of unconsolidated structured entities. The Group and the Company is evaluating
the impact of changes to the annual financial statements.

IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements”

The amendments of this Standard reinstate the equity method as an accounting option for investments in in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements. Guidelines related to control and consolidated financial
statements were replaced by IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. The Group and Company is evaluating the impact
of changes to the annual financial statements.

1AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

This amendment was made according to the Boards project regarding joint companies. When considering the project, the Board
decided to include accounting of joint companies by applying equity method to IAS 28 as this method is applicable to both joint
companies and associated companies. Except for this exception, other guidelines remained unchanged. The adoption of this
amendment did not lead to any changes in the Group's and the Company’s interim financial statements as at 30 September
2014,

IAS 32 “Financial instruments: presentation” ~ Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments provide clarifications on the application of the offsetting rules and focus on four main areas (a) the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”; (b) the application of simultaneous realisation and settlement; (c) the
offsetting of collateral amounts; (d) the unit of account for applying the offsetting requirements. The adoption of this amendment
did not lead to any changes in the Group’s and the Company's interim financial statements as at 30 September 2014.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont‘d)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 — Transition Guidance

The amendments are intended to provide additional transition relief provided in IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.
Entities which apply IFRS 10 should evaluate control as at the first day of the annual period during which IFRS 10 is applied if
the conclusion related to consolidation under IFRS 10 differs from clarification of IAS 27 and SIC 12, data of the latest previous
comparative period (i.e. the year 2012 for entities if the financial year corresponds to the calendar year and IFRS 10 is applied
starting from 2013) is updated unless it would be impossible to due practical reasons. These amendments also provide an
additional transition exemption related to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” and IFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities” with a limitation to provide adjusted comparative information only for the latest previous comparative period. Also, these
amendments eliminated the requirement to provide comparative data for disclosed information related to unconsolidated
structured entities for the periods until the first application of IFRS 12. The adoption of this amendment did not lead to any
changes in the Group’s and the Company’s interim financial statements as at 30 September 2014.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investment Entities

The amendment introduced a definition of an investment entity as an entity that (i) obtains funds from investors for the purpose
of providing them with investment management services, (ii) commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds
solely for capital appreciation or investrment income and (i) measures and evaluates its investments on a fair value basis. An
investment entity will be required to account for its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss, and to consolidate only those
subsidiaries that provide services that are related to the entity's investment activities. IFRS 12 was amended to introduce new
disclosures, including any significant judgements made in determining whether an entity is an investment entity and information
about financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary, whether intended or already provided to the unconsoclidated
subsidiary. The Group and Company is evaluating the impact of changes to the annual financial statements.

Amendments fo IAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments will allow hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a
hedging instrument, is novated (i.e. parties have agreed to replace their original counterparty with a new one) to effect clearing
with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met. The amendments are not relevant to
the Group currently, because it has not recognised any hedging instrument. The changes are not relevant to the Group and
Company, as the Group and the Company does not have derivative financial instruments.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting
policies.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisabie or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses, unrealised gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, are
eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent and is presented separately
in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent
shareholders’ equity. The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between the share of any consideration paid and net carrying value
of the acquired assets by the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains (losses) on sales to non-confrolling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Total comprehensive income (losses) within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance from 1 January 2010. Losses absorbed by the parent company prior to 1 January 2010 werée not reallocated between
non-controlling interests and the parent shareholders.

When the group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in local currency of the Republic of Lithuania, Litas (LTL), and presented in
LTL thousand. Litas is the Company’s functional and the Group’s and the Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency year-end exchange rate. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

At the end of each reporting period the assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (LTL) at the year-end exchange rate and their income statements are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in reserve in equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount

recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Starting from 2 February 2002 Lithuanian Litas is pegged to eurc at the rate of 3.4528 Litas for 1 euro. The exchange rates in
relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

As these financial statements are presented in LTL thousand, individual amounts were rounded. Due to the rounding, totals in
the tables may not add up.

2.4. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the piant and equipment when the cost is
incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Replaced parts are written off.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or change in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings 10-66 years
Machinery and equipment 4-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Other non-current assets 2-8 years

The asset residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
year end to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement within “other income” in the year the asset
is derecognised.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)
2.5, intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be measured reliably. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives
of intangible assets other than goodwill are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method
over the best estimate of their useful lives.

Contracts and customer relationship

Contracts include information technology solution service contracts acquired during information technology solutions entities
acquisition. Customer relationship was recognised during information technology solutions entities acquisition.

Contracts and customer relationship acquired on the acquisition of subsidiaries are capitalised at the fair value established on
acquisition and treated as an intangible asset. Following initial recognition, contracts are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The information technology solution service contracts and customer relationship are amortised during
2-10 years.

Software

The costs of acquisition of new software are capitalised and treated as an intangible asset if these costs are not an integral part
of the related hardware. Software is amortised during 3—4 years.

Costs incurred in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits that the Group and the Company expect from the
performance of existing software systems are recognised as an expense when the restoration or maintenance work is carried
out.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets are amortised during 3—- 4
years.

2.6. Business combinations and goodwill

The group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred from 1
January 2010 (until that they were included in the acquisition cost). Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in
accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity. In instances where the contingent
consideration does not fall within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. In the business
combinations, which was incurred prior to 1 January 2010, subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree at the acquisition-date over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.6. Business combinations and goodwill (cont‘d)

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of annual
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash generating units, or groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group
of units to which the goodwill is allocated:

represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and
is not larger than an operating segment determined in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit (group of cash generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained.

2.7. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group and the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices
for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement within “impairment, write-down and
provisions”.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an
estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in relation to goodwill are not reversed
for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:
Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwili by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)
2.8. Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recoghised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group considers whether a contract contains an embedded derivative
when the entity first becomes a party to it. The embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract which is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives
are not closely related to those of the host contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settflement date. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies its investments in debt and equity securities, and derivatives, as financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception.

(i) Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separable embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

(i) Financial assets desighated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are financial instruments that are not
classified as held for trading but are managed, and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance
with the Group’s documented investment strategy. The Group’s policy requires the Management Board to evaluate the
information about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial
information.

Gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit and loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through
amortisation process. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such technigues include using recent arm's length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument, which is substantially the same; and discounted cash flow analysis.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.9, Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there

is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
~ A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
- The group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficuity, granting to the borrower a concession
that the lender would not otherwise consider;
- It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
- Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:
- (i) Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and
- (i) National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Group and the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss within “impairment, write-down, allowances and provisions”.

The Group and the Company assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets. When
financial asset is assessed as uncollectible and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group and the
Company the impaired asset is derecognised. The objective evidence for that is insolvency proceedings against the debtor is
initiated and the debtor has not enough assets to pay to creditors, the debtor could not be found.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within “impairment, write-down, allowances and provisions”, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group and the Company will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial investments

The Group and the Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group and the Company uses the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortised cost. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss ~ is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.10. Inventories

Inventories are initially recorded at acquisition cost. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Subsequent
to initial recognition, inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

211,  Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

212.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in current bank account as
well as deposit in bank with an original maturity of three months or less.

213.  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group and the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.  Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

214.  Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized
when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,;

~the Group and the Company retain the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but have assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or

- the Group or the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but have transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s and the Company’s continuing involvernent in the asset.

In that case, the Group and the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group and the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company could be required to
repay.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

2.15. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception
date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following

applies:

a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially included in
the lease term;

¢) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in circumstances
gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a), ¢) or d) and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario b).

Financial lease (leasing)

The Group and the Company as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group and the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are reflected in the
income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group and the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.15. Leases (cont’d)

If the result of sales and lease back transactions is financial lease, any profit from sales exceeding the book value is not
recognised as income immediately. It is postponed and amortised over the lease term.

The Group and the Company as a lessor
When property is leased under finance leasing, the current value of lease payments is recognised as an amount receivable.
The difference between gross amount receivable and its current value is recognised as unearned finance revenue.

Leasing revenue is recognised during the period leasing under the net investment method which corresponds to consistent
regular profit rate.

Operating lease

The Group and the Company as a lessee

Leases where the lessor retains all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

If the result of sales and lease back transactions is operating lease and it is obvious that the transaction has been carried out at
fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the sales price is lower than the fair value, any profit or loss is recognised
immediately, except for the cases when the loss is compensated by lower than market prices for lease payments in the future.
The profit is then deferred and it is amortised in proportion {o the lease payments over a period, during which the assets are
expected to be operated. If the sales price exceeds the fair value, a deferral is made for the amount by which the fair value is
exceeded and it is amortised over a period, during which the assets are expected to be operated.

The Group and the Company as a lessor

Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

2.16. Revenue recognition

The Group and the Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the group’s activities as
described below. The group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to
the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods.

Sale of services and long-term contracts

For sales of services, revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services rendered, by reference to stage of
completion of the specific transaction and assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total
services to be provided.

If the final result of a long-term contract can be evaluated reliably, revenue and costs of each long-term contract is recognised
according to the level of contract implementation. If the forecasted contract costs are higher (lower) than the factual contract
costs, then the contract revenue recognised in the current period are respectively lower (higher). When it is probable that contract
costs will exceed the agreed revenue, loss is recognised immediately as costs in the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.16. Revenue recognition (cont‘d)
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the Group and the Company provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over lease term,
on a straightline basis, as a reduction of rental income.

Interest income

Income is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Dividends income
Income is recognised when the Group’s and the Company'’s right to receive the payment is established.
2.17. Cash and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Group and the Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group and the Company. In Lithuania a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. The
liability for non-cash distributions is measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with subsequent fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity as adjustment to the amount of the distribution.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.18. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset
are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recorded.

2.19. Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the standard income tax rate in Lithuania was 15%. After the amendments
of Income Tax Law of Republic of Lithuania had come into force, 15% income tax rate has been established for indefinite period
starting 1 January 2010. Starting from 2010, tax losses can be transferred at no consideration or in exchange for certain
consideration between the Group companies if certain conditions are met.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.19. Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

The standard income tax rate in Norway is 28%. The standard income tax rate in Luxemburg is 28,8% and LTL 5 thousand
minimum fixed income tax.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

By Lithuanian Income Tax Law shall be not taxed sale of shares of an entity, registered or otherwise organised in a state of the
European Economic Area or in a state with which a treaty for the avoidance of double taxation has been concluded and brought
into effect and which is a payer of corporate income tax or an equivalent tax, to another entity or a natural person where the
entity transferring the shares held more than 25% of voting shares in that entity for an uninterrupted period of at least two years.
If mentioned condition is met or will be met by judgement of the management of the Company, there are not recognised any
deferred tax liabilities or assets in respect of temporary differences associated with this investments.

Deferred income tax asset has been recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management believes it
will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred income tax
asset is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax asset are not recognised:

- Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint

ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities and/or
derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the Company changes its activities due to which these
losses incurred except when the Company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not depend on the Company
itself. The losses from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive
years and only be used to reduce the taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
2.20. Grants

Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. The amount of the grants related to assets is
recognized as deferred income and released fo income on a linear basis over the expected useful life of related asset. In the
income statement, depreciation expense account is decreased by the amount of grant amortisation.

2.21. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination (applicable as of 1 January 2010)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured

at the higher of:

- the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above (IAS 37) or

~ the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the guidance
for revenue recognition (IAS 18).

2.22. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Where any group company purchases the company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the company’s equity holders.

2.23. Employee benefits

Social security contributions

The Group and the Company pay social security contributions fo the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its
employees based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution plan
is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as expenses on an accrual basis and included in payroll
expenses.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’'s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after reporting date are discounted to their
present value.

Bonus plans

The Group and the Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont‘d)

2.24. Share-based payments

The Group and the Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an employee benefits expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

- including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales

growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and
- excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit
to equity.

Share - based payments - modification and cancellation

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, at a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

If an equity award is cancelled by forfeiture, when the vesting conditions (other than market conditions) have not been met, any
expense not yet recognised for that award, as at the date of forfeiture, is treated as if it had never been recognised. At the
same time, any expense previously recognised on such cancelled equity awards are reversed from the accounts effective as
at the date of forfeiture.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
2.25. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits is probable.
2.26. Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group’s position as at the end of the reporting

period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes when material.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.27. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management of the Group and the Company to make judgements and estimates
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

The significant areas of estimation used in the preparation of these financial statements are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.6. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note 3).

Impairment loss of trade receivables

The impairment loss of trade receivables and loans granted was determined based on the management’s estimates on
recoverability and timing relating to the amounts that will not be collectable according to the original terms of receivables and
loans. These accounting estimates require significant judgement. Judgement is exercised based on net assets value of
subsidiaries, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans granted
and trade receivables has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The expected cash flows exclude future credit losses that have
not been incurred and are discounted at the original effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate computed at initial
recoghition).

Other areas involving estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and allowances for accounts receivable.
According to the management, these estimates do not have significant risk of causing a material adjustment.
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3. Business combinations and acquisitions of non-controlling interests

In April 2013 the Group acquired 70% of 360° Smart Consulting Ltd shares for LTL 12 thousand in order to implement projects
carried out by the segment of information technology infrastructure in Tanzania as local resident of the state. Subsequently the
company changed its name to Norway Registers Development East Africa Limited. The value of the company's net assets
amounted to LTL 25 thousand, the non-controlling interest increased by LTL 7 thousand due to this acquisition.

Establishment of companies in 2013

In August 2013 the Group established a new subsidiary NRD CS UAB in the segment of information technology infrastructure
by investing LTL 10 thousand into share capital.

Acquisition of non-controlling interest in 2013 and 2012

In January 2013 the Group acquired 5.27% of NRD UAB shares for LTL 200 thousand. The value of additionally acquired
interest amounted to LTL 194 thousand. Negative difference of LTL 6 thousand between acquisition price and the value of
interest acquired was recognised directly in the ownership of shareholders.

Goodwill
Goodwill atiributable to
cash-generating units
30 September 31 December

2014 2013
Acena 41 41
BAIP* 10.509 10.509
NRD subgroup 1.600 1.600
12.150 12.150

In 2013 the recoverable amount of cash generating units has been determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by the Group management covering a 5-year period. The pre — tax
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 11.35% (in 2013: 11.35%), cash flows within the 5-year period are extrapolated
using 5% growth rate (in 2013: 5%) and cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated using 2% growth rate (in 2013: 2%).

The forecasted revenue growth was evaluated according to the market share held by cash-generating units of respective
companies and the forecasted growth of market share. Discount rate was calculated separately for each cash-generating unit
based on its weighted average cost of capital.

4. Income
The Group The Company
3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters
of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013

Sales of technical and software equipment 22776 15.678 - 2
Revenue from services provided 16.986 15.128 - -
Marketing and partnership revenue 430 195 - -
Management and accounting services - . 689 440
Other revenue from main activities 110 83 5 2

40.302 31.084 694 444
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5. Cost of sales

Cost of goods sold

Materials and inventories used
Salaries expenses

Social insurance

Work of subcontractors
Depreciation and amortisation
Other costs

6. Operating costs

Salaries expenses
Social insurance

Other staff-related costs
Transportation costs

Lease and maintenance of premises

Bank and insurance services
Charity and support
Representation and public relations

Professional services (legal, accounting)

Communications costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Other costs

7. Finance income

Interest income
Positive currency rate differences

8. Finance costs

Interest expenses
Other finance costs
Negative Currency rate differences
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The Group
3 quarters 3 quarters

The Company
3 quarters 3 quarters

of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013
19.966 14.329 - 3
4.917 21 - -
1.813 1.788 - -
565 543 - -
1.259 3.756 - -
467 531 -
106 662 - -
29.093 21.630 - 3
The Group The Company

3 quarters 3 quarters

3 quarters 3 quarters

of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013
4.854 3.920 504 373
1.468 1.230 156 117

95 113 1 4
637 561 81 69
481 422 7 3

82 45 (1) 1

40 20 - -
144 146 24 14
701 606 31 34

89 99 29 9
338 604 4 2
184 182 160 79

9.113 7.948 996 705
The Group The Company

3 quarters 3 quarters

3 quarters 3 quarters

of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013
70 - 86 297
6 - - 7
76 - 86 304
The Group The Company

3 quarters 3 quarters

3 quarters 3 quarters

of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013
1.004 1.045 1.105 1.110
58 35 - -
- 7 - -
1.062 1.087 1,105 1.110




9. [Income tax

The Group The Company
3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters
of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013

Components of the income tax credit (expenses)

Current year income tax 522 10 - 1
Deferred income tax expenses (revenue) (321) 4) - -
Income tax expenses stated in the income statement 201 6 - 1

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

The Group The Company
30 Septem~ 31 Decem- 30 Septem- 31 Decem-
ber 2014 ber 2013 ber 2014 ber 2013

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 358 70 2 194
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months

358 70 2 194

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months 41 74
Deferred tax liability to be recovered within 12 months

41 74 - -

The reconciliation of the total income tax to the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of the Group and
the Company is as follows:
The Group The Company
3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters 3 quarters
of 2014 of 2013 of 2014 of 2013

Profit (loss) before tax 1.392 318 1.205 (924)
Income tax calculated at the tax rate of 15% 209 48 181 (139)
Other (expenses) without effect on profit / non-taxable income (8) (42) (181) 140
Income tax gain (loss) stated in the income statement 201 6 - 1
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9. Income tax (cont‘d)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the Group on 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 were
as follows:

Balance as at Recognised Balance as at Recognised Balance as at
31 December in the income Currency Transferable 31 December in the income 30 September
2012 statement  translation tax loss 2013 statement 2014
Deferred tax asset
Tax loss 214 - - (196) 18 321 339
Property, plant and equipment 63 4) - - 59 - 59
Amounts receivable 3 23 3 - 28 - 29
Deferred revenue 52 3 - - 55 - 55
Accruals 69 (10) - - 59 - 59
Intangible assets - 22 (3) - 19 - 19
Other 10 5 - - 15 - 15
Deferred tax asset available for
recognition 411 39 - (196) 254 321 575
Less: unrecognised deferred tax

asset - - - - - - -
Recognised deferred income tax

asset 411 39 - (196) 254 321 575
Asset netted with lability of the

same legal entities - (184) - - (184) (33) 217)
Deferred income tax asset, net 411 (145) . . 70 288 358
Deferred tax liability
Intangible assets 237 (71) 2) - 164 - 164
Amounts receivable - 94 - - 94 - 94
Deferred income tax liability 237 23 2) - 258 - 258
Liability netted with asset of the

same legal entities - (184) - - (184) (33) 17)
Deferred income tax liability, net 237 (161) (2) - 74 {33) 41
Deferred income tax liability

(asset), net 174 16 2 (196) (4) 321 317

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities of the Company on 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013
were as follows:

Balance as Recognised Balance as Recognised Balance as
at 31 in the Transfe- at 31 in the at 30
December income rable tax December income September
2012 statement loss 2013 statement 2014
Deferred tax asset
Tax loss 135 (133) 192 194 (192) 2
Recognised deferred income tax asset, net 135 (133) 192 194 (192) 2
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Computer Other
and Computer and Office property,
construc- and office equipment plant and

The Group tions Vehicles equipment  (lease) equipment Total
Acquisition cost;
Balance as at 31 December 2012 745 90 1.336 2.780 164 5.115
Disposals and write-offs - - (125) (70) - (195)
Transfers between groups - - (99) - 99 -
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 6 : - - 6
Acquisitions - - 154 547 - 700
Balance as at 31 December 2013 745 90 1.272 3.257 269 5.632
Disposals and write-offs - - - (84) - (84)
Acquisitions - - - 562 - 562
Balance as at 30 September 2014 745 90 1.272 3.735 269 5.632
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 31 December 2012 20 18 829 1.882 100 2.849
Depreciation during the period 16 15 106 697 40 874
Transfers between groups (25) - 25 -
Disposals and write-offs - - (177) (57) - (177)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 36 33 733 2.522 165 3.546
Depreciation during the period 12 14 482 - - 508
Balance as at 30 September 2014 48 47 1.272 2.522 165 4.054
Net book value as at

30 September 2014 697 43 - 1.213 104 2.057
Net book value as at

31 December 2013 709 57 481 735 104 2.087

The depreciation charge of the Group's property, plant and equipment for three quarters of 2014 amounts to LTL 508 thousand
(during 2013: LTL 874 thousand). An amount of LTL 467 thousand is included in cost of sales of respective period (during the
same period in 2013; LTL 531 thousand), the remaining part is included in operating expenses.

Property, plant and equipment of the Group with a net book value of LTL 697 thousand as at 30 September 2014 (LTL 709
thousand as at 31 December 2013) was pledged to the banks as a collateral for the loans (Note 19).

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, no borrowing costs were incurred by the Group and capitalised to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
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11. Intangible assets

The Group Internally
Contracts, created Other
customer intangible intangible
relationships  Software assets assets Total

Acquisition cost:

Balance as at 31 December 2012 2.044 742 111 104 3.001
Acquisitions - 62 - - 62
Effect of changes in currency rates - - - - -
Transfers between groups - 4 - (4) -

Balance as at 31 December 2013 2.044 808 111 100 3.063
Acquisitions - - 16 - 16

Balance as at 30 September 2014 2.044 808 127 100 3.079

Accumulated amortisation:

Balance as at 31 December 2012 593 485 37 32 1.147
Amortisation during the period 411 190 47 29 677
Disposals and write-offs - - - - -
Effect of changes in currency rates 8 - - - 8

Balance as at 31 December 2013 1.012 675 84 61 1.832
Amortisation during the period 107 71 16 22 217

Balance as at 30 September 2014 1.119 746 100 83 2.049

Net book value as at 31 December 2013 925 62 27 16 1.030

Net book value as at 30 September 2014 1.032 133 27 39 1.231

The amortisation charge of the Group's intangible assets during nine months of 2014 amounts to LTL 217 thousand (during year
2013: LTL 677 thousand) and they are included in operating costs. Internally created other intangible assets include costs
incurred for improvement and adjustment of software used. Amortisation period of 3 years is applied for these assets.

12. Financial instruments by category

All financial assets of the Group and the Company are attributed to the category of Loans and amounts receivable.

The Group The Company
Loans and amounts receivable As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December
2014 2013 2014 2013

Other financial non-current assets - 665 - -
Trade and other amounts receivable 18.318 11.733 - -
Amounts receivable from Group companies - - 3.079 709
Other current assets 1.364 2.588 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 309 1.117 1 50

19.991 16.103 3.080 759
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12. Financial instruments by category (cont.)

All financial liabilities of the Group and the Company are attributed to Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Amortised cost of financial liabilities

Long-term loans

Other non-current liabilities

Long-term loans for the current year and short-term loans
Trade payables

Other current liabilities

13. Inventories

Consumables
Goods for resale
Other inventories

14. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, gross

Amounts receivable from Group companies

Taxes receivable, gross

Other amounts receivable, gross

Loans granted to Group companies

Impairment of doubtful amount receivable (-)

Non-current trade debtors (-) - Disclosed in Other non-current
assets

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013

1.271 950 - -
51 - 51 -
12.396 12.614 14.347 13.478
11.083 6.819 74 24
326 1.911 - 10
25.127 22,294 14.472 13.512

The Group The Company

As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013
232 265 - -
1.058 541 - -
- 3 - -
1.290 809 - -
The Group The Company

As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013
17.653 12.432 - -
856 157 - -
- 3.079 709
(191) (191) - -
- (665) - -
18.318 11.733 3.079 709

Changes in impairment of doubtful amounts receivable for the year 2014 and 2013 is included under Impairment in the

income statement.

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 10-60 days terms.

Receivables from related parties are disclosed in more details in Note 24.
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14. Trade and other receivables (cont'd)
Movements in the allowance for accounts receivable of the Group (assessed individually) were as follows:

individually determined impairment

__The Group
Balance as at 31 December 2012 12
Impairment calculated during 9 months I
Balance as at 30 September 2013 12
Balance as at 31 December 2013 191
Impairment calculated during the period o
Balance as at 30 September 2014 191

The ageing analysis of trade and other receivables of the Group as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

Trade receivables Impaired
neither past due Less than 3090 90180 More than amounts
nor impaired 30 days days days 180 days receivable Total
As at 30
September 13.785 783 1.360 646 1.079 - 17.653
As at 31
December 2013 10.034 643 222 395 659 479 12.432

Credit guality of financial assets neither past due nor impaired

All trade receivables neither past due nor impaired as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 have no history of
counterparty defaults.

With respect to trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired, there are no indications as at the reporting
date that the debtors will not meet their payment obligations since the Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third
parties. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security, except as mentioned above.

16. Contracts in progress

The Group As at 30 As at 31
September December
2014 2013
Costs incurred on long-term contracts in progress and profit earned* 23.940 20.621
Less: Progress billings (17.522) (18.820)
Revenue from long-term contracts 15.425 12.042
Amounts due from customers for long-term contract work 7.250 1.914
Amounts due to customers for long-term contract work 833 209

* Costs incurred on long-term contracts in progress and profit earned includes all contracts that were not finished at the end of
the reporting period, but were ongoing during the current and earlier financial periods.
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16. Contracts in progress (cont‘d)

Amounts due from customers for long-term contracts work are included in the statement of financial position line Trade and other
receivables. Amounts due to customers for long-term contract work are included in the statement of financial position line Other
current liabilities.

16. Other current assets

As at 30 As at 31
September December

The Group 2014 2013

Accumulated revenue of long-term contracts - 37

Cash pledges and deposits 1.364 2.551
1.364 2.588

17. Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash at bank 309 1113 1 50
Cash on hand - 4 - -
309 1.417 1 50

The fair value of the Group's cash amounted to LTL 309 thousand as at 30 September 2014 (as at 31 December 2013 — LTL
1,117 thousand).

The credit quality of cash can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the banks:

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Moody's ratings
Prime-1 309 1.113 1 50
Not rated - - - -
309 1113 1 50

18. Reserves

Reserve for the acquisition of own shares

An additional reserve of LTL 200 thousand is formed for NRD UAB for acquisition of own shares.

Share based payments reserve

The share-based payment transactions reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions provided to the Group's key management personnel. The key management personnel has the right to share options
if the Group's profit before depreciation, interest and tax meets objectives set for 2009 ~ 2014 (year's and accumulated targets
are used). In 2011 the agreement was changed after acquisition of Norway Registers Development AS and new target was set
for 2012-2014. The share based payment for 2012 was replaced by share based payment for 2012 — 2014. For the year 2009
the objective was not met, but in 2010 and 2011 the target was reached. The value of share based payments was calculated
using binomial method. During the reporting period of the first nine months of 2014 and the corresponding previous period of
2013 the Group and the Company did not recognise expenses of share based payments as achievement of targets was not
evaluated for this period.
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18. Reserves (cont'd)

The Group specified the number of planned options according to approved terms. During the reporting period, based on Group
results, the number of planned options decreased.

19. Borrowings

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December
2014 2013 2014 2013

Non-current
Non-current bank borrowings 1.271 950 - -
Borrowings from related parties - - - -

1.271 950 - -

Current
Current portion of non-current borrowings 2.051 2.836 - -
Borrowings from related parties - 10.345 9.778 14.347 13.478
12.396 12.164 14.347 13.478
Total borrowings 13.667 13.564 14.347 13.478

Significant portion of the Group's borrowings is from related parties. Please refer to Note 24 for more details.

Borrowings at the end of the year in local and foreign currencies expressed in LTL were as follows:

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

Borrowings denominated in: 2014 2013 2014 2013

EUR - 399 - -

LTL 13.667 13.165 14.347 13.478
13.667 13.564 14.347 13.478

The amounts pledged to the banks are as follows:

The Group
As at 30 As at 31
September December

2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment 697 709
Trade receivables 1.033 1.104
Weighted average effective interest rates of borrowings outstanding at the year-end:
The Group

As at 30 As at 31
September December
2014 2013

Borrowings 6,74% 9,12%

As at 30 September 2014, the Group had LTL 307 thousand of unused credit lines or account surplus limit (as at 31 December
2013 — LTL 703 thousand).
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20. Leasing (finance lease)

The assets leased by the Group under finance lease contracts consist of computer and office equipment and vehicles. Apart
from the lease payments, the most significant liabilities under lease contracts are property maintenance and insurance. The
remaining terms of financial lease are from 36 to 60 months. The net carrying amounts of the assets acquired under financial
lease specified by categories are as follows:

The Group
As at 30 As at 31
September December

2014 2013
Other fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment - 5
Vehicles 36 51
36 56

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group’s financial lease payables were denominated as follows:

The Group

As at 30 As at 31
September December

2014 2013
EUR ) 6
LTL 49 58
49 64

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 the interest rate on the financial lease liabilities denominated in EUR is fixed
and amounts to 8%. As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013 the interest rates on the financial lease liabilities
denominated in LTL are 6-month VILIBOR with the margin of 1.5%.

Future minimal lease payments and their present value under the above mentioned financial lease contracts are as follows:

The Group
As at 30 September 2014 As at 31 December 2013
Minimum Present value of Minimum Present value of
payments payments payments payments
Within one year 14 12 18 18
From one to five years 38 37 48 46
Total financial lease obligations 52 49 66 64
Interest 3 L (2)
Present value of financial lease obligations 49 64
Financial lease obligations are accounted for as:
- current 12 18
- non-current 37 46

21. Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 14-60 day terms. For terms and conditions relating to
related parties please refer to Note 24.
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22. Other liabilities

The other current and non-current liabilities are presented in the table below:

The Group The Company
As at 30 As at 31 As at 30 As at 31
September December September December

2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial liabilities
Accrued expenses 313 722 - -
Other amounts payable 64 645 - 10
377 1.367 - 10
Non-financial liabilities
Tax payable - 544 - -
- 544 - -
Total other current and non-current liabilities 377 1.911 - 10
Non-current liabilities - - - -
Current liabilities 377 1.911 - 10

23. Financial risk management
23.1.  Financial risk factors

The risk management function within the Group is carried out in respect of financial risks (credit, market, currency, liquidity and
interest rate), operational risks and legal risks. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are to establish
risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The operational and legal risk management functions
are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures to minimise operational and legal risks.

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and overdrafts, finance leases, trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s and the Company’s operations. The Group has various
financial assets such as trade and other receivables, loans granted, investments in equity and debt securities, deposits held in
banks and cash which arise directly from its operations. :

The Group also enters or may enter into derivative transactions, such as interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts.
The purpose of them is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the operations and its sources of finance.
The Group has not used any of derivative instruments so far, as management considered that there is no necessity for them.

The Group is being managed the way so its main businesses would be separated from each other. This is to diversify the activity
risk and create conditions for selling any business avoiding any risk to the Group.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments are market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The risks are identified and disclosed below.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to outstanding trade receivables, loans granted and debt securities.

At the date of financial statements there are no indications of worsening credit quality of frade and other receivables, which
are neither due, nor impaired, due to constant control by the Group of receivable balances.

The Group trade only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy, that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances of subsidiary companies are monitored
on a monthly basis. There are no significant transactions of the Group or the Company that do not occur in the country of the
relevant operating unit.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise deposits at banks and cash and

cash equivalents, restricted cash and debt securities, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
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23. Financial risk management (cont‘d)
23.4.  Financial risk factors (cont‘d)

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with high credit ratings are accepted.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the non-current debt obligations with
floating interest rates. Current environment is not attractive to seek for fixed interest rates (fixed interest rate is significantly
higher than the float, and due to the volatility in the market fixed interest rates are offered for short period of time only). The
Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk due to loans received with fixed interest rate.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in fleating interest rates with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the Group’s
equity, other than current year profit impact.

Increase/decrease,

% of annual interest Effect on profit before tax
2014
EUR 1 18
EUR -0,5 (9

Increase/decrease,

% of annual interest Effect on profit before tax
2013
EUR 1 4
LTL 1 23
EUR -0,5 2
LTL -0,5 (11

As at 31 December 2013, the majority of the Group's borrowings were with fixed interest rates, therefore the Group was not
exposed to the risk of changes in interest rate.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet their commitments at a given date in accordance with strategic plans. The liquidity risk of
the Group is controlled on an overall Group level. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, bonds and finance leases. The liquidity risk management is divided
into long-term and short-term risk management.

The aim of the short-term liquidity management is to meet daily needs for funds. Each business segment is independently
planning its internal cash flows. Short-term fiquidity for the Group and the Company is controlled through weekly monitoring of
the liquidity status and needs of funds according to the Group's and the Company’s business segments.

Long-term liquidity risk is managed by analysing the predicted future cash flows taking into account the possible financing
sources. Before approving the new investment projects the Group evaluates the possibilities to attract needed funds. On a
monthly basis the business segments report to the Group the forecasted cash inflows and outflows for a future one year period
which allows planning the Group’s financing effectively. The general rule is to finance the Group companies or to take loans
from them through the Company in order to minimise the presence of direct borrowings between the subsidiaries.
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23. Financial risk management (cont‘d)
23.1. Financial risk factors (cont‘d)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 30 September 2014 and 31 December
2013 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

The Group Less than 3 41012 2105

months months months Total
Borrowings with interest 11.637 1.314 1.919 14.870
Finance lease obligations 3 10 38 51
Trade and other payables 11.083 - - 11.083
Other current liabilities 377 - - 377
Balance as at 30 September 2014 23.100 1.324 1.957 26.381
The Group Less than 3 41012 2to5

months months months Total
Borrowings with interest 1.044 12.718 994 14.757
Finance lease obligations 9 10 48 65
Trade and other payables 6.819 - - 6.819
Other current liabilities 1.191 720 - 1.911
Balance as at 31 December 2013 9.063 13.448 1.040 23.552

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

The Group’s liquidity ratio ((total current assets plus assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale) / total current liabilities
plus liabilities of disposal group directly associated with the assets classified as held-for-sale) as at 30 September 2014 was
approximately 0.82 (as at 31 December 2013 - 0.70), the quick ratio ((total current assets ~ inventories) / total current liabilities)
- 0.77 (as at 31 December 2013 - 0.67). The Group’s management considers the liquidity position of the Group and the
Company based on the current market conditions and takes actions to keep the favourable situation.

Foreign exchange risk

As a result of operations the statement of financial position of the Group can be affected by movements in the reporting
currencies’ exchange rates. The Group's policy is related to matching of money inflows from the most probable potential sales
with purchases by each foreign currency. The Group does not apply any financial means allowing to hedge foreign currency
risks, because these risks are considered insignificant.

The foreign currency risk at the Group and the Company is not large, taking into consideration that most monetary assets and
obligations are denominated in each separate company's functional currency or euro.
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23. Financial risk management (cont‘d)
23.2. Fair value evaluations

The Group's principal financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position are cash
and cash equivalents, deposits at banks, restricted cash, trade and other receivables, loans granted, trade and other
payables, non-current and current borrowings.

The fair value is defined as the price that would be received for exchange of assets or services or that would be used in order
to settle liabilities between third parties, intending to buy (sell) assets or to settle liabilities. Fair value of financial assets or
liabilities is based on quoted market prices, models using discounted cash flows or other valuation models, depending on
circumstances.

As at 30 September 2014 and 31 December 2013, the carrying value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities approximates
their fair value.

Methods and assumptions used for fair value measurement of financial instruments are described below:

a) The carrying amount of short-term trade and other receivables, short- term trade and other payables and borrowings
is close to their fair value;

b) The fair value of long term borrowings is estimated using same or similar market price of the borrowings or interest
rate, which is applied for the same term borrowings at the moment. The carrying value of long term borrowings, with
variable and fixed interest rate approximates their fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are ohservable, either
directly or indirectly;
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

23.3.  Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management is to ensure that the Group maintains a strong credit health and healthy capital
ratios in order to support their business and maximise shareholder value. The Group's management supervises the investments
s0 that they are in compliance with requirements applied to the capital, specified in the appropriate legal acts and credit
agreements, as well as provide the Group’s management with necessary information.

The Group's capital comprises share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and specific risks of their activity. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year 2014 and 2013.

The Company is obliged to keep its equity ratio at not less than 50% of its share capital, as imposed by the Law on Companies
of Republic of Lithuania. If subsidiaries, based on the current year results, violate requirements of the laws, according to the
order and terms provided for in laws the Company shall apply the appropriate means so that the aforementioned requirements
on the capital would be met. If needed, the appropriate measures will be taken in order to increase share capitals of the above
mentioned companies capitalising the loans granted by the Company to the equity of subsidiaries.

Besides, some Group subsidiaries have obligations arising out of credit agreements concluded with banks, including capital. For
the purpose of ensuring of bank credits it is required that the ratio of equity plus subordinated borrowings divided by total assets
would be not less than specified in the appropriate agreements. Depending on risks related to projects and activities under
development the ratio required by banks is 0.3-0.4. The Company, when subordinating credits, seeks to ensure that the
subsidiaries comply with this ratio.
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24. Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The related parties of the Group in 2014 and 2013 were the shareholders of the Company (Note 1), key management personnel
of the Company and group companies of Invalda LT AB.

Receivables from related parties are presented in gross amount (without allowance, with interests, which are calculated
according to the agreement on gross amount disregarding the allowance).

Transactions of the Group with associates in January - September 2014 and balances as at 30 September 2014 were as follows:

Revenue from Purchases from Receivables from Payables to
The Group related parties related parties related parties related parties

Other shareholders and the Company's

management
Borrowings 137 185 - 937
Property lease - 184 - -
- 250 - 990
AB Invalda LT group companies
Borrowings 2.336 2.425 - 8.670
Operating activities 361 - 108 -
Property lease - - ~ -
2.697 1.239 108 8.670

The maturity of loans granted is in 2014, effective interest rate is fixed at 11%. Loans hold no collateral.
Transactions of the Group with associates in January - September 2013 and balances as at 31 December 2013 were as

follows:

Revenue from Purchases from Receivables from Payables to
The Group related parties related parties related parties related parties

Other shareholders and the Company’s

management
Borrowings - 88 - 990
Property lease - 162 - -
- 250 - 990
AB Invalda LT group companies - 250 - 990
Borrowings - 1.054 8.789
Operating activities 409 - 16 -
Property lease - 185 - ~
409 1.239 16 8.789
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24, Related party transactions (cont‘d)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free (except as stated above) and settlement occurs in cash.

Key management compensation and other payments

The management remuneration contains short-term employees’ benefits and share-based payments. Key management of the
Group includes Board members of the Company and Chief accountant and the General Managers, which manage the Group's
segment, (excluding associates and joint ventures) and managers of subsidiary BAIP UAB structured departments (9 people
total).

The Group
January-  January-
September September

2014 2013
Wages, salaries and bonuses 1.299 1.086
Social security contributions 381 285
Total key management compensation 1.680 1.371

Transactions with the Group’s management are disclosed in tables of transactions with related parties.

25. Events after the reporting period

On 26 November 2014 the shareholders of INVL Technology AB and BAIP grupe UAB signed the agreement, which provides
that INVL Technology AB and BAIP grupe will merge, in order to issue new shares in 2015 and to attract not less than 10 mio
Eur of new capital. New entity will approach Lithuanian bank to get the license of closed —end Investment Company.

On 26 November 2014 the shareholder decision has been taken to increase share capital of the Company from LTL 5 000 000
(five million LTL) up to LTL 6 092 685 (six millions ninety two thousands six hundred eighty five LTL) by additional cash
contributions, issuing additionally 1 092 685 (one million ninety two thousands six hundred eighty five) common shares by par
value of LTL 1 each. On 10 December and 11 December 2014 the agreements were signed with minority shareholders, shares
were paid by additional contributions.

On 5 December 2014 the shareholders took decision to re-organize BAIP grupé UAB into public limited liability company BAIP
grupe AB. The conversion of BAIP grupé conversion into a public limited company will not affect neither the rights and legitimate
interests of the Company itself or its shareholders’, creditors’ and other parties', neither the Company's business and results of
operations, as the conditions and grounds of the activities does not change.

On 8 December 2014 the by-laws of BAIP grupe AB has been registered.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Management report

INVL Technology has a stake of 80% in BAIP Group, which invests into IT companies. Later it is intended to apply for a
closed-end investment company licence. INVL Technology would become similar to investment fund and would invest
into another IT companies in the Baltic countries, Europe and Africa. INVL Technology intends to be strategic-financial
investor and, together with the managers of IT companies, to seek the growth of investments value.

During 9 months of 2014 consolidated revenue of BAIP group according to preliminary data reached LTL 40.302 million,
which is 30 percent more compared to the same period last year — LTL 31.084 million. BAIP group EBITDA (earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) increased by 21 percent and reached LTL 3.015 million. In the
same period last year EBITDA amounted to LTL 2.493 million.

In Lithuania during the third quarter of this year BAIP group company BAIP successfully implemented a cloud computing
solution between Lithuania and Belarus. Value of the project — LTL 2.247 million. The company also implemented several
projects in the financial sector: for LTL 1.755 million, BAIP has renewed magnetic tape libraries at the Bank of Lithuania,
completed the migration of workplaces at SEB bank and migrated Mokilizingas data from centralized data centre to virtual
servers. Furthermore, BAIP implemented separate, highly reliable data centre for Lithuanian electricity transmission
system operator Litgrid. The project value is — LTL 0.551 million.

The company also implemented projects with DPD, Intermedix Lietuva and signed new contracts: LTL 1.22 million worth
contract with National Courts Administration for archival data separation and storage solutions, LTL 0.314 million worth
equipment sales and installation contract with Euro Vaistine.

NRD, UAB signed a contract with the Police Department and started implementing the Register of Foreigners asylum
module and other related modules software development project. The company also signed and started implementing the
preparation for the introduction of the euro project in Central Mortgage Office.

Specialized cyber security company NRD CS established the first commercial Cybersecurity Incident Response Team in
the Baltics - NRD CIRT which became a full member of an international organisation FIRST (the Forum of Incident
Response and Security Teams). NRD CIRT is also a listed member of Trusted Introducer.

In Africa, BAIP group companies continue to implement the Burundi Central Bank data center modernization project as
well as the development of Mozambique companies register, created by Norway Registers Development AS seven years
ago. In Tanzania and Norway the participants of the first round of Norwegian Peace Corps (Fredskorpset Norway) funded
staff exchange program have started their internships.

BAIP group company Norway Registers Development East Africa Ltd., established in Tanzania, organized its annual
conference Cyber Defence East Africa 2014. The conference took place in September in Arusha and was attended by
nearly 100 IT professionals from Tanzania, Uganda and Burundi. The event was opened by the Deputy Minister of
Internal Affairs of Tanzania Pereira Ame Silima, presentations were made by the Tanzania Police Force Cyber Crime
Unit, Tanzania national Computer Emergency Response Team (TZ-CERT) representatives, ISACA Tanzania and ISACA
Uganda chapters presidents and cyber security experts from Lithuania, Croatia, Tanzania and Uganda. The conference
was also attended by the representatives from the East African Community, the American and Russian embassies,
Tanzanian public institutions, banks and private sector organizations.

During the third quarter of 2014, BAIP group companies implemented projects in Mauritius, Zimbabwe and Uganda.

The results of INVL Technology presents only the five months of activity, as the company started to operate in the market
at the end of April 2014, after the split-off from Invalda LT, AB an asset management company. INVL Technology has
suffered a loss of LTL 3 thousand for the period. Investments into BAIP Group reduced LTL 2.727 million and reached
LTL16.996 million compared with the end of first half of the year. The change in value was influenced by the last twelve
months increase in earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) from LTL 5.111 million (in
June 2014) to LTL 4.805 million (in September 2014) as well as reduce in the average multiplier of the Central and
Eastern Europe technology companies from 7.6 to 7.3




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Interim income statement

Income

Net change in fair value of financial assets
Other income

Total net income

Expenses

Employee benefits expenses

Exchange’s, depository’s and brokers’ fees for securities
Other taxes

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit (loss)
Finance costs
Profit (loss) before income tax

Income tax credit (expenses)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD

Basic and diluted earnings (deficit) per share (in LTL)

Nine months of Il Quarter
2014 2014

Unaudited

57 (2,728)

57 (2,728)

(7) (4)

(42) (13)

(7) (1)

4) 4)

(60) (22)

(3) (2,750)

(3) (2,750)

(3) (2,750)

(0.01) (4.64)




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Interim statement of comprehensive income

Nine months of Ill Quarter
2014 2014
Unaudited

Profit (loss) for the year 3) (2,750)
Net other comprehensive income (loss) that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss subsequent periods -
Net other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the period, net of tax - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX 3) (2,750)




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Interim statement of financial position

As at 30 September

2014
ASSETS Unaudited
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 17,004
Total non-current assets 17,004
Current assets
Trade and other receivables -
Cash and cash equivalents 112
Total current assets 112
Total assets 17.116
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 4 593
Share premium 4 862
Reserves 4 1,999
Retained earnings 13,650
Total equity 17,104
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability -
Other non-current liabilities -
Total non-current liabilities -
Current liabilities
Current borrowings i,
Trade payables 8
Other current liabilities 4
Total current liabilities 12
Total liabilities 12
Total equity and liabilities 17,116




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statement of changes in equity

Reserves

Reserve of purchase of Retained earnings

The Company Share capital Own shares Share premium Legal reserve own shares (accumulated deficit)  Total
Balance as at 29 April 2014 593 - 862 81 1,918 13,653 17,107
Profit (loss) for the nine months of 2014 - - - - - (3) (3)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the

nine months of 2014 - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the

nine months of 2014 - - - - - (3) (3)
Changes in reserves - - - - - - -
Balance as at 30 September 2014

(unaudited) 593 - 862 81 1,918 13,650 17,104




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from (to) operating activities
Net profit (loss) for the period

Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating activities:

Net change in fair value of financial assets
Interest (income)

Interest expenses

Deferred taxes

Current income tax expenses

Changes in working capital:
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
(Decrease) increase in trade payables
(Decrease) increase in other current liabilities
Cash flows (to) from operating activities
Income tax (paid)
Net cash flows (to) from operating activities

Cash flows from (to) investing activities
Loans (granted)

Repayment of granted loans

Interest received

Net cash flows (to) investing activities

Cash flows from (to) financing activities
Cash flows related to owners

(Acquisition) of own shares

Dividends (paid)

Cash flows related to other sources of financing
Cash received according to split-off terms
Proceeds from loans
(Repayment) of loans
Interest (paid)

Net cash flows (to) from financial activities

Impact of currency exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Nine months of
2014

Unaudited

(48)

(48)

414

414

154

(408)

(254)

(254)

112

112




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the interim condensed financial statements

1 General information

AB INVL Technology (hereinafter the Company) is a joint stock company registered in the Republic of Lithuania. It was
established on 29 April 2014, following the split-off of 2.60 % assets, equity and liabilities from AB Invalda LT (code
121304349). A group of specialized information technologies (IT) entities was transferred to the Company (hereinafter the
split-off). More details about the split-off are disclosed in Note 4.

The registration address is as follows:

Kalvarijy str. 11A-20,
Vilnius,
Lithuania.

The address of the office is as follows:
Seimyniskiy str. 1A,

Vilnius,

Lithuania.

These financial statements cover the interim financial period of the Company, starting from the Company’s establishment
date 29 April 2014 and ending on 30 September 2014.

The Company has a stake of 80% in UAB BAIP grupé, which invests into IT companies, and a stake of 100% in dormant
UAB Inventio. BAIP Group is a group of specialized entities, working in the field of IT and legal informatics, and specialises
in the field of business climate improvement reforms, integrated national information system design, critical IT infrastructure
resilience, national cyber security and cyber defence. Currently BAIP group has companies in Lithuania, Norway and
Tanzania and has implemented projects in more than 50 countries around the world.

The Company intends to be strategic-financial investor and, together with the managers of IT companies, to seek the
growth of investments value through mergers, development and sale of businesses.

The Company’s share capital is divided into 592,730 ordinary registered shares with the nominal value of LTL 1 each. All
the shares of the Company were fully paid. Subsidiaries did not hold any shares of the Company. As at 30 September 2014
the shareholders of the Company were (by votes)*:

Number of votes

held Percentage
UAB LJB Investments 180,419 30.44
Mrs. Irena Ona Miseikiene 171,307 28.90
AB Invalda LT 73,751 12.44
UAB Lucrum Investicija 60,159 10.15
Mr. Alvydas Banys 45,500 7.68
Ms. Indré Miseikyté 11,832 2.00
Other minor shareholders 49,762 8.39
Total 592,730 100.00%

* Some shareholders have sold part of their shares under repo agreement (so did not hold the legal ownership title of
shares), but they retained the voting rights of transferred shares.

The Company’s shares are traded on the Baltic Secondary List of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius from 4 June 2014.




AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the Company’s financial statements for the nine months ended
30 September 2014 are as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

The interim condensed financial statements for the nine months ended 30 September 2014 have been prepared in
accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The Company has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity as per IFRS 10. The Company does not
consolidate its subsidiaries, nor prepares the consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in thousands of Litas (LTL) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires the management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current circumstances, events or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)
Adoption of new Standards and Interpretations, which are mandatory from 1 January 2014, is noted below.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in IAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
and SIC-12 Consolidation - special purpose entities. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control so that the same criteria are
applied to all entities to determine control. This definition is supported by extensive application guidance. This standard had
no impact on the financial statements since the Company meets the definition of an investment entity and it does not
prepare the consolidated financial statements. Investments in subsidiaries are carried at fair value through profit or loss.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities—Non-Monetary Contributions by
Ventures. Changes in the definitions have reduced the number of types of joint arrangements to two: joint operations and
joint ventures. The existing policy choice of proportionate consolidation for jointly controlled entities has been eliminated.
Equity accounting is mandatory for participants in joint ventures. This standard had no impact on the financial statements
since the Company meets the definition of an investment entity and it does not prepare the consolidated financial
statements.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

IFRS 12 applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an associate or an unconsolidated
structured entity. IFRS 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards: IFRS 10,
Consolidated financial statements, and IFRS 11, Joint arrangements, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently
found in IAS 28, Investments in associates. IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that helps financial statement
readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates,
joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To meet these objectives, the new standard requires disclosures
in a number of areas, including significant judgments and assumptions made in determining whether an entity controls,
jointly controls, or significantly influences its interests in other entities, extended disclosures on share of non-controlling
interests in group activities and cash flows, summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling
interests, and detailed disclosures of interests in unconsolidated structured entities. None of these disclosure requirements
are applicable for interim condensed consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the Company has not made such
disclosures.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IAS 27 was changed and its objective is now to prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. The guidance on control
and consolidated financial statements was replaced by IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendment had
no impact on the Company’s financial statements for nine months ended 30 September of 2014.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment of IAS 28 resulted from the Board’s project on joint ventures. When discussing that project, the
Board decided to incorporate the accounting for joint ventures using the equity method into IAS 28 because this method is
applicable to both joint ventures and associates. With this exception, other guidance remained unchanged. The
amendment had no impact on the Company’s financial statements for nine months ended 30 September of 2014.

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendment added application guidance to IAS 32 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the
offsetting criteria. This includes clarifying the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’ and that some
gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The amendment had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements for nine months ended 30 September of 2014.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)
Transition Guidance Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

The amendments clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. Entities adopting IFRS 10
should assess control at the first day of the annual period in which IFRS 10 is adopted, and if the consolidation conclusion
under IFRS 10 differs from IAS 27 and SIC 12, the immediately preceding comparative period (that is, year 2013 for a
calendar year-end entity that adopts IFRS 10 in 2014) is restated, unless impracticable. The amendments also provide
additional transition relief in IFRS 10, IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities,
by limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information only for the immediately preceding comparative
period. Further, the amendments will remove the requirement to present comparative information for disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities for periods before IFRS 12 is first applied. The amendment had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements for nine months ended 30 September of 2014.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investment entities

The amendment introduced a definition of an investment entity as an entity that (i) obtains funds from investors for the
purpose of providing them with investment management services, (i) commits to its investors that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for capital appreciation or investment income and (iii) measures and evaluates its investments on a fair
value basis. An investment entity will be required to account for its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss, and to
consolidate only those subsidiaries that provide services that are related to the entity's investment activities. IFRS 12 was
amended to introduce new disclosures, including any significant judgements made in determining whether an entity is an
investment entity and information about financial or other support to an unconsolidated subsidiary, whether intended or
already provided to the subsidiary. This amendment had significant impact on the financial statements since the Company
meets the definition of an investment entity and it does not prepare the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments will allow hedge accounting to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been designated as a
hedging instrument, is novated (i.e parties have agreed to replace their original counterparty with a new one) to effect
clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific conditions are met. The amendments are not
relevant to the Company currently, because it has not recognised any hedging instrument.

2.2. Investment entity and consolidated financial statements

Investment entity

The Company has multiple unrelated investors and holds multiple investments. Ownership interests in the Company are in
the form of equity securities issued by the Company — ordinary registered shares. In the management’s opinion, the
Company meets the definition of an investment entity as the following conditions exist:

(i) The Company obtains funds from investors for the purpose of providing them with investment management services.

(i) The Company commits to investors that its business purpose in to invest funds solely for capital appreciation,
investment income, or both. And

(i)  The management measures and evaluates its investments and makes investment decisions on a fair value as a key
criterion.

Subsidiaries

The Company has no subsidiaries other than those determined to be controlled subsidiary investments. Controlled
subsidiary investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss and not consolidated, in accordance with IFRS 10.
The fair value of controlled subsidiary investments is determined on a consistent basis to all other investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss, and as described in the Fair Value estimation notes below.

Where the Company is deemed to control an underlying portfolio company, whereby the control is exercised via voting
rights or indirectly through the ability to direct the relevant activities in return for access to a significant portion of the
variable gains and losses derived from those relevant activities, the underlying portfolio company and its results are also
not consolidated and are instead reflected at fair value through profit or loss.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)

2.3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared in local currency of the Republic of Lithuania, Litas (LTL), and presented in LTL
thousand. Litas is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Starting from 2 February 2002 Lithuanian Litas is
pegged to euro at the rate of 3.4528 Litas for 1 euro. The exchange rates in relation to other currencies are set daily by the
Bank of Lithuania.

As these financial statements are presented in LTL thousand, individual amounts were rounded. Due to the rounding, totals
in the tables may not add up.

2.4. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement within “impairment, write-down and
provisions”.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in relation to goodwill are not reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount.

2.5. Fair value estimation

The fair value of investments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading, which is the
date closest to the reporting date. The fair value of investments that are not traded in active markets is determined by using
valuation techniques. Such valuation techniques may include the most recent transactions in the market, the market price
for similar transactions, discounted cash flow analysis or any other valuation models.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)
2.6. Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held to maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company classifies its investments in debt and equity securities, and derivatives, as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss at inception.

(i) Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separable embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

(i) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are financial instruments that are not
classified as held for trading but are managed, and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Company’s documented investment strategy. The Company’s policy requires the
Management Board to evaluate the information about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value
basis together with other related financial information. This sub-category includes subsidiaries that are part of
the Company’s investment portfolio.

Gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit and loss within “Net change in
fair value of financial assets”. Interest on debt securities at fair value through profit or loss is recognized within “interest
income” based on the effective interest rate. Dividends earned on investments are recognised in the income statement as
“dividend income” when the right of payment has been established. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through amortisation process. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘loans granted’, ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position.
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AB INVL TECHNOLOGY

INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)

2.7. Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Company uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
— Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
— A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
— The group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
— It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
— The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
— Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:
(i) Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and
(i) National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance
account.

The Company assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets. When financial
asset is assessed as uncollectible and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company the impaired
asset is derecognised. The objective evidence for that is insolvency proceedings against the debtor is initiated and the
debtor has not enough assets to pay to creditors, the debtor could not be found.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within “impairment, write-down, allowances and
provisions”, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

2.8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in current bank account
as well as deposit in bank with an original maturity of three months or less.
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INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2014
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)

2.9. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.10. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

— the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

— the Company retain the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but have assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or

— the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.
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(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)

2.11. Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as
described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or
duty. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Disposal of investments

Gain (loss) from sale of investment is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the investment have
passed to the buyer.

Interest income
Income is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset).

Dividends income

Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

2.12. Cash and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. In Lithuania a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. The liability
for non-cash distributions is measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with subsequent fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in equity as adjustment to the amount of the distribution.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of
the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)
2.13. Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

The standard income tax rate in Lithuania was 15 % in 2014. Starting from 2010, tax losses can be transferred at no
consideration or in exchange for certain consideration between the Company’s entities if certain conditions are met.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse based on
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

— Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss;

— In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

By Lithuanian Income Tax Law shall be not taxed sale of shares of an entity, registered or otherwise organised in a state of
the European Economic Area or in a state with which a treaty for the avoidance of double taxation has been concluded and
brought into effect and which is a payer of corporate income tax or an equivalent tax, to another entity or a natural person
where the entity transferring the shares held more than 25% of voting shares in that entity for an uninterrupted period of at
least two years. If mentioned condition is met or will be met by judgement of the management of the Company, there are
not recognised any deferred tax liabilities or assets in respect of temporary differences associated with this investments.

Deferred income tax asset has been recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management
believes it will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the
deferred income tax asset is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial
statements.

Deferred tax asset are not recognised:

— Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

— In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities
and/or derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the Company changes its activities due to
which these losses incurred except when the Company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not depend
on the Company itself. The losses from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried forward
for 5 consecutive years and only be used to reduce the taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.
From 1 January 2014 current year taxable profit could be decreased by previous year tax losses only up to 70%.
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2 Basis of preparation and accounting policies (cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.14. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Where any Company’s entities purchases the
company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
company’s equity holders.

2.15. Employee benefits

Social security contributions

The Company pay social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its employees
based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution plan is a plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as expenses on an accrual basis and included in
payroll expenses.

Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.16. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits is
probable.

2.17. Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s position as at the end of the

reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. These estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year are
addressed below.

3.1. Fair value of investments not quoted in an active market

The fair values of securities that are not quoted in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques, primarily
earnings multiples, discounted cash flows and recent comparable transactions. The models used to determine fair values
are periodically reviewed and compared against historical results to ensure their reliability.

Details of the inputs and valuation models used to determine Level 3 fair value, is provided in Note 5.

3.2. Investment entity status

The management periodically reviews whether the Company meets all the defining criteria of an investment entity referred
to in Note 2.2. In addition, the management assesses the Company‘s operation objective (Note 1), investment strategy,

origin of income and fair value models. According to the management, the Company met all the defining criteria of an
investment entity throughout the period from its establishment to the financial reporting date.
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4 Split-off

On 21 March 2014 the split-off terms of AB Invalda LT (code 121304349) were announced. The General Shareholders
Meeting approved the terms of the Company’s split-off on 28 April 2014. The Split-off was completed on 29 April 2014.
According to the terms, three entities AB INVL Baltic Farmland, AB INVL Baltic Real Estate and AB INVL Technology,
comprising 47.95% of AB Invalda LT assets calculated at carrying amounts, were split-off from AB Invalda LT. Following
the split-off, 2.60% of the assets, equity and liabilities were transferred to the Company.

The Company’s equity was formed in accordance with procedure set forth in the terms of the split-off, whereas assets
received and liabilities assumed were estimated at fair values at the date of Split-off. The subsidiary UAB Inventio was

estimated according to its equity, subsidiary UAB BAIP grupé was estimated by using earnings multiple technique (3 level,
Note 5).

Below the starting statement of financial position of the Company is presented:

As at 29 April 2014

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,947
Loans granted 414
Trade and other receivables 154
Cash and cash equivalents -
Total assets 17,515
Share capital 593
Share premium 862
Reserves 1,999
Retained earnings 13,653
Total equity 17,107

Deferred income tax liability

Current borrowings 408
Total liabilities 408
Total equity and liabilities 17,515

During the split-off part of liability rising from credit agreement with Siauliy bankas was transferred to the Company. The
credit was fully repaid in the beginning of May 2014.
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5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprised subsidiaries UAB BAIP grupé and UAB
Inventio. These assets ate non-current assets and are Level 3 instruments by valuation. The main assets of UAB Inventio is
cash at the bank, therefore the entity are measured according to its equities. UAB BAIP grupé owns specialized information
technology entities. Consolidated group financials were used for the valuation which was performed using EBITDA
(earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) multiple technique. 12 months trailing EBITDA was used
and value after multiplication was corrected by:

- deducting difference between total liabilities and short-term assets increased by the amount of 4 months moving

average of working capital,
- deducting non-controlling interest value, measured as its book value.

Performing the valuation, possible obligation to issue new shares of UAB BAIP grupé was taken into account. Model was
built in a way that newly issued shares reduce the part of UAB BAIP grupé owned by the Company.

EBITDA multiple used in calculations is 7.3 representing average Central and Eastern Europe IT sector companies’
EV/EBITDA ratio (Equity Value-to-EBITDA) according to these entities (source Bloomberg; 30 September 2014):

Name of the entity EBITDA multiple

ACTION S.A. 8.7
ATEA ASA 9.0
SYGNITY S.A. 6.0
ASSECO POLAND S.A. 6.6
COMARCH S.A. 6.2
AB S.A. 7.1

If EBITDA multiple goes by 1 to either direction, correspondingly the value of shares of UAB BAIP grupé would move to the
same direction by LTL 3,303 thousand as at 30 September 2014 (29 April 2014 — LTL 3,067 thousand; EBITDA multiple —
7.6).

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the nine months ended September 2014.

Total

Opening balance 16.947

Gains and losses recognised in profit or loss 57

Closing balance 17,004

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held

at the end of the reporting period 57
The main indicators of the statements of the financial position of UAB BAIP grupé are presented below:
Non-current assets 15,767
Current assets 21,896
Total assets 37,663
Total equity 9,290
Non-current liabilities 1,577
Current liabilities 26,796
Total liabilities 28,373
Total equity and liabilities 37,663
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6 Exchange’s, depository’s and brokers’ fees for securities

The Company had suffered one-off expenses for admission of securities into exchange trading lists of LTL 24 thousand.

7 Related party transactions

The related parties of the Company were the shareholders of the Company (note 1) and the entities of the group of AB
Invalda LT. The Company was established after the split-off from Invalda LT (transactions were with AB Invalda LT, UAB
Cedus Invest).

The Company’s transactions with related parties during the nine months of 2014 and related quarter-end balances were as

follows:

Amounts in LTL
Nine months of 2014 Sales to related  Purchases from Receivables from Payables to related
Company parties related parties related parties parties
AB Invalda LT (accounting services) - 3,000 - 3,630
UAB Cedus Invest (loan) 307 - - -

307 3,000 - 3,630

Liabilities to shareholders and management - - - -

8 Material events, which have announced during 2014

On 20 May 2014, the company informed that the Supervisory Authority of the Bank of Lithuania on 20 May 2014
decided to treat the information submitted in the split-off terms of AB Invalda LT, in other related documentation, in
the list of references related to AB INVL Technology, in the description of the risk factors as information equivalent
to the information that is required to be disclosed in the prospectus of AB INVL Technology. The Board of AB INVL
Technology decided to present a requisition for NASDAQ OMX Vilnius stock exchange for registering company's
shares into the Secondary list from 4 June 2014.

On 3 of June 2014, AB INVL Technology presented company’s portfolio. UAB BAIP Grupe is the first portfolio
investment of AB INVL Technology. AB INVL Technology has a stake of 80% in UAB BAIP Grupe. The audited
revenue of UAB BAIP Grupe in 2013 grew 25.3 percent to LTL 50.752 million (EUR 14.7 million). The EBITDA of
UAB BAIP Grupe grew 65.6 percent to LTL 4.45 million (EUR 1.3 million).

On 29 of July 2014, AB INVL Technology portfolio company of UAB BAIP Grupe announced unaudited
consolidated results. AB INVL Technology has a stake of 80% in UAB BAIP Grupe, which operates in information
technology and legal informatics sector. Compared to the first half of 2013, UAB BAIP Grupe consolidated
revenue in the first half of 2014 increased by 30 percent and reached LTL 24.82 million (EUR 7.188 million). In the
same period last year it was LTL 19.101 million (EUR 5.532 million). Consolidated EBITDA increased by 58
percent and reached LTL 2.257 million (EUR 0.654 million EUR). In the same period last year EBITDA amounted
to LTL 1.429 million (EUR 0.414 million). In the second quarter of 2014 consolidated revenue of UAB BAIP Grupe
according to preliminary data reached LTL 14.698 million (EUR 4.257 million) - 41 percent increase, compared to
the same period last year — LTL 10.409 million (EUR 3.015 million). UAB BAIP Grupe consolidated EBITDA
(earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) also increased by 41 percent and reached LTL
1.168 million (EUR 0.338 million). In the same period last year EBITDA amounted to LTL 0.829 million (EUR 0.24
million).

On 26 August 2014 AB INVL Technology announced unaudited results for 6 months of 2014. Unaudited net profit
of AB INVL Technology amounted to LTL 2.747 million (EUR 0.796 million). The equity of AB INVL Technology
amounted to LTL 19.854 million (EUR 5.75 million) or LTL 33.5 (EUR 9.7) per share at the end of June 2014.

23



(]

CENTRE OF REGISTERS

Name:

Legal persons code:
Legal form:

Legal status:

Office address:
Registration date:
The rule accordingg to which

persons are acting on behalf of a

legal person:

Manager:
The Board:

Chairman of the Board:
Authorized capital amount:
Operating restrictions:
Contact information:
Mobile phone:

E-mail adress:

Version:

Data status:

The Registrar:

Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania
Main data extract

AB BAIP grupé

300893533

Public joint-stock company

Legal status not registered

A.Juozapavié€iaus str. 6, Vilnius city, Vilnius city district
2007-06-27

Sole representation

On behalf of a legal person acts manager
KAZIMIERAS TONKUNAS, Director
ALVYDAS BANYS, Member
NERIJUS DROBAVICIUS, Member
VYTAUTAS PLUNKSNIS, Member
GYTIS UMANTAS, Member
KAZIMIERAS TONKUNAS, Member
KAZIMIERAS TONKUNAS

6092685 LTL

Not registered

862017820

info@baipgrupe.It

37 (2014-12-18)

Fully sorted data

State company Centre of Registers Vilnius branch



o o M w

7.1.
7.2.
7.3.

10.

11.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
of the public joint — stock company INVL Technology

l. GENERAL PROVISIONS
Public joint-stock company INVL Technology (herdiea — the Company) is a limited civil liability
private legal person with economic, financial anglamizational independence.

The Company shall act in accordance with the pteAgticles of Association, Civil Code of the
Republic of Lithuania, Law on Companies and LawS®mturities of the Republic of Lithuania and
other legal acts.

The Company’s legal form - public joint-stock compa
The period of the Company’s activity is unlimited.
The Company'’s financial year is the calendar year.

The Company’s name is the public joint-stock conyp&tVL Technology.

. TARGETS AND SUBJECT OF THE COMPANY 'S ACTIVITY

The Company's activity target is satisfaction oé tGompany’s shareholders’ interests, ensuring a
constant increase in value of shares owned by thmp@ny’s shareholders. For this purpose the
Company shall:

improve the structure of the investment portfolio;
carry out an active investing and re-investing\atgti
supervise economic-financial activity of compardestrolled by the Company.

The subjects of the Company’s activity are theofelhg: investment activity, services, construction,
manufacturing, sales. The Company has a righttald® involved into other activities which do not
contradict with the targets of the Company andhar flaws of the Republic of Lithuania. Licensed
activity and activity to be performed accordingestablished procedure shall be performed by the
Company provided that all appropriate licenseseomits have been obtained.

. AUTHORIZED CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

The authorized capital of the Company is EUR 1 268.06 (one million seven hundred seventy three
thousand two hundred sixty seven EUR and 6 cents).

The authorized capital can be increased upon résolwf the General Meeting of Shareholders
according to the order established in the Law omg@amies of the Republic of Lithuania.

The authorized capital can be decreased upon tesolaf the General Meeting of Shareholders
according to the order established in the Law om@anies of the Republic of Lithuania or upon a
court decision in cases provided in the Law on Camgs of the Republic of Lithuania.
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V. NUMBER OF SHARES, THEIR NOMINAL VALUE AND RIGHTS PROVIDED BY THEM TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company's authorized capital is divided intal® 714 (six million one hundred fourteen
thousand seven hundred fourteen) ordinary registgrares.

Nominal value per share is EUR 0.29.

The Company’s shares are uncertificated. They $lmbiocumented by appropriate records made on
personal securities accounts of shareholders. Thesmunts are managed according to the procedure
laid down in the legal acts regulating the se@sitharket.

The Company may issue ordinary shares having #tesstf employee shares.

The rights and duties of the shareholders are pbestby the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania and other legal acts of the Republic itfiliania.

V. COMPANY 'S GOVERNING BODIES

The governing bodies of the Company are the Geregting of Shareholders, the Board and the
Company manager. The Supervisory Board is not fdime¢he Company.

The Board is a collegial management body of the @om. The Board shall consist of 5 (five)
members and function for the 4 (four) year periite Board members shall elect the Chairman of the
Board.

The Company has a sole managing body — the man&tgg Company.

The scope of competence of the General Meetinghafeholders, its convocation order as well as
other issues related to the activity and decistorthe General Meeting of Shareholders, the scépe o
competence of the Board and the manager of Complagygrder of election (appointment) and recall

as well as other issues related to the activityhef Board and the manager of the Company are
prescribed in chapter V of the Law on CompaniethefRepublic of Lithuania.

A decision to issue the bonds is taken by the Bo&ate Company.

The manager of the Company has the right to isqueauration the Company’s employees according
to the order established in the Civil Code of tlepiblic of Lithuania.

VI. PROCEDURE OF ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE COMPANY 'S NOTIFICATIONS

Notices about convocation of the General Meetin§ludreholders as well as the documents related to
it shall be publicly announced to the shareholdersording to the rules established in the Law on
Companies and Law on Securities of the Republldtbfiania.

All notices (except for notices referred to in Akt 23 of the provided Articles of Association)ath
have to be announced publicly according to the banCompanies of the Republic of Lithuania and
other laws, shall be announced in the electroniigation for public announcements which is issued
by the register of legal entities in accordancehvtite terms established by the Government of the
Republic of Lithuania.
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VII. PROCEDURE REGARDING DOCUMENTS AND OTHER INFORMATION SUBMISSION TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Upon a shareholder’'s written demand, the Comparylater than within 7 days from the date of
receipt of the written demand will make availaliethis shareholder the requested documents at the
registered office of the Company during working fgar at the other place indicated by the manager
of the Company in which such documents are kepviged these documents do not contain
Company’'s commercial (industrial) secrets and darftial information. Copies of the requested
documents may be sent to the shareholder by regispost or submitted in person.

A shareholder or a group of shareholders holdingnanaging 1/2 and more shares after having
provided the Company with its set form of a writteemmitment not to disclose the Company’s
commercial (industrial) secrets and confidentidbimation, shall have the right to inspect all the
Company’s documents. The form of commitment isogethe manager of the Company.

In case a shareholder requires providing the capighe Company documents, a certain fee can be
imposed in regard with the Company’s expenseseelat copying, submission and employees’ time

spent and other expenses, however the amount ©ffeki cannot exceed the documents and other
information submission expenses fixed and apprdyethe manager of the Company. The copies will

be submitted to the shareholder after the apprgpshareholder’s written demand is received and
remuneration to the Company is paid as indicatetdifarticle.

VIII. PROCEDURE REGARDING ESTABLISHMENT OF THE COMPANY 'S BRANCHES AND
REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES AND TERMINATION OF THEIR ACT IVITY

A decision regarding establishment of the Compahyésich and representative offices and its activity
termination as well as regarding approval of thiticles of Association shall be adopted by the
Company’s Board according to the present ArticfeAssociation and existing laws.

The Company’s Board shall appoint and recall tredhef the Company’s branches and representative
offices.

IX. PROCEDURE OF AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The procedure of amendment of the Company's AgioleAssociation is the same as indicated in the
Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.

All the other issues not being agreed in the predeticles of Association shall be governed by Qi
Code of the Republic of Lithuania, the Law on Comnipa and Law on Securities of the Republic of
Lithuania and other legal acts of the Republic itfiliania..

The present Articles of Association were signed on , 2015.

Authorized person
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AB ,,BAIP Grupé“
A. JuozapaviCiaus g. 6, Vilnius

2014 m. gruodzio 23 d.

Gerbiamieji,

Mes atlikome akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology” ir akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé” reorganizavimo salyguy,
patvirtinty akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology" valdybos 2014 m. gruodZio 23 d., vertinima, vadovaujantis Lietuvos
Respublikos akciniy bendroviy jstatymo 63 straipsnio 2 ir 3 dalimis bei Civilinio kodekso reikalavimais.

Prijungimo salygy vertinimas buvo atliktas vadovaujantis prielaida, kad visi mums pateikti dokumentai ir juose
nurodyta informacija yra teisinga ir atspindi esama situacija, taip pat, kad visi paragai ir antspaudai yra tikri, kopijos
atitinka originalus, dokumentai nebuvo pakeisti ar pataisyti po to, kai buvo mums pateikti. Mes netikrinome, ar visa
mums pateikta informacija yra teisinga ir iSsami, idskyrus atvejus paminétus ataskaitoje. Misy vertinimas neapima
jokiy kity akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology” ir akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé” dokumenty, idskyrus iSvardintus
ataskaitoje, ir apsiriboja informacija ir dokumentais, kurie mums buvo pateikti vertinimo tikslais. Uzklausos dél
papildomos informacijos treciosioms Salims siun¢iamos nebuvo. Mes taip pat neprisiimame jsipareigojimo atnaujinti
vertinimo ataskaita, jei atsirasty pasikeitimy po ataskaitos paruodimo datos.

(ki prijungimo veikusiy akciniy bendroviy ,,INVL Technology” ir ,,BAIP Grupé” vadovybés yra atsakingos u? teisinga $iy
Prijungimo salygy parengima pagal Lietuvos Respublikos Akciniy bendroviy jstatymg ir kity teisés akty reikalavimus.

Prijungimo salygy vertinimo apimtis apsiribojo tik vertinimu, ar akcijy keitimo santykis yra teisingas ir pagristas, o
metodai taikyti nustatant akcijy keitimo santykj ir jy jtaka akcijy vertés nustatymui yra tinkami. Jokie kiti prijungimo
aspektai vertinti nebuvo. Sios procediros buvo atliktos vien tik akcinés bendrovés ,INVL Technology” numatomo
prijungimo prie akcinés bendrovés ,,BAIP Grupé” tikslais, todél Reorganizavimo (Prijungimo) sglygy vertinimo ataskaita
negali buti naudojama jokiems kitiems tikslams.

Masy darbo apimtis yra gerokai maZesné nei auditas ar perzvalga, kurie atliekami siekiant idreikiti nuomone apie
finansine ir kitokia Reorganizavime dalyvaujanéiy ir Reorganizuojamy bendroviy informacijg vadovaujantis
Tarptautiniais audito standartais ar kitais taikomais profesiniais standartais. Jei bitume atlike auditg ar perzvalga,
musy vertinimas bty turéjes kitus tikslus bei bty pateiktos kitos iSvados, komentarai ar rekomendacijos.

WLMC&&D& guté Pranckéniené

Auditoriaus pgzymeéjimo Nr. 000345

UAB “Moore Stephens Vilnius”, audito jmonés pazyméjimo Nr. 001226

Moore Step
International Limited
tinklo narys
-nariai pagrindinivose
pasaulio miestuose

Uzdaroji akciné bendrové ,Moore Stephens Vilnius®, Jmonés kodas 123903963, PVM moketojo kodas LT 239039610
AB Bankas Swedbank, banko kodas 73000, atsiskaitomosios saskaitos Nr. LT25 7300 0100 7613 6264
Duomenys kaupiami ir saugomi Vaistybés jmonés Registry centro Juridiniy asmeny registre



REORGANIZAVIMO (PRIJUNGIMO) SALYGY VERTINIMO ATASKAITA
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1. Prijungimo sglygy jvertinimo apimtis ir procediros

Mes atlikome Cia pridedamy akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology” ir akcinés bendrovés ,,BAIP Grupé“ reorganizavimo
salygy, patvirtinty akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology" valdybos sprendimu 2014 m. gruod?io 23 d. ir akcinés
bendroves ,BAIP Grupé“ valdybos sprendimu 2014 m. gruodzio 23 d., (toliau - Prijungimo salygos) vertinima pagal
Lietuvos Respublikos Akciniy bendroviy jstatymo 63 straipsnio ir Civilinio kodekso reikalavimus.

Reorganizavimg numatyta atlikti prijungimo biidu prie AB ,BAIP Grupé“ (toliau — Reorganizavime dalyvaujanti
bendrove), kuri tes veikly nauju pavadinimu — akciné bendrove ,INVL Technology” (toliau —Bendrove), prijungiant
akcing bendrove ,INVL Technology” (toliau — Reorganizuojama bendrove), kuri baigs veikla, o visos Reorganizuojamos
bendrovés teisés ir pareigos pereina po reorganizavimo tesiandiai veikla Bendrovei.

Prijungimo sglygy vertinimas buvo atliktas vadovaujantis prielaida, kad visi mums pateikti dokumentai ir juose
nurodyta informacija yra teisinga ir atspindi esamga situacija, taip pat, kad visi paraai ir antspaudai yra tikri, kopijos
atitinka originalus, dokumentai nebuvo pakeisti ar pataisyti po to, kai buvo mums pateikti. Mes netikrinome, ar visa
mums pateikta informacija yra teisinga ir i$sami, iSskyrus atvejus paminétus ataskaitoje. Miisy vertinimas neapima
jokiy kity akcinés bendrovés "INVL Technology” ir akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé” dokumenty, i§skyrus idvardintus
ataskaitoje, ir apsiriboja informacija ir dokumentais, kurie mums buvo pateikti vertinimo tikslais. Uzklausos dél
papildomos informacijos treiosioms 3alims siunciamos nebuvo. Mes taip pat neprisiimame jsipareigojimo atnaujinti
vertinimo ataskaitg, jei atsirasty pasikeitimy po ataskaitos paruosimo datos.

ki prijungimo veikusiy akciniy bendroviy ,INVL Technology” ir ,BAIP Grupé” vadovybés yra atsakingos u? teisinga $iy
Prijungimo salygy parengimg pagal Lietuvos Respublikos akciniy bendroviy jstatyma, Civilinj kodeksa ir kity teisés akty
reikalavimus.

Prijungimo salygy vertinimg atlikome pagal TUUS 3000 "Uztikrinimo uZduotys, iSskyrus istorinés finansinés
informacijos auditus ar pervalgas”, tikslu pateikti:

a) I3vada dél akcijy keitimo santykio teisingumo ir pagristumo;

b) Metodus, panaudotus akcijy keitimo santykiui nustatyti ir i¥vadas dél $iy metody tinkamumo bei jtakos
nustatant akcijy verte;

c) Kilusiy vertinimo sunkumy apradyma.

Prijungimas vykdomas iki prijungimo veikusios akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé“ veikla, susijusia su investavimu j
Lietuvos informaciniy technologijy rinkg, prijungiant akcing bendrove ,INVL Technology®, kurios pagrindinis turtas yra
AB ,,BAIP Grupé” akcijos.

Visiems akcinés bendrovés ,INVL Technology” akcininkams po prijungimo prie akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupe®, kuri
tesia veikla nauju pavadinimu - ,INVL Technology®, akcijos skirstomos proporcingai keic¢iant turimas Reorganizuojamos
bendroveés akcijas j Reorganizavime dalyvaujancios bendroveés akcijas.

Vertindami Prijungimo sglygas, mes perziGréjome $iuos dokumentus:

- AB,INVL Technology” (Reorganizuojama bendrové) 2014 m. 9 ménesiy neaudituotos tarpinés sutrumpintos
finansinés ataskaitos, parengtos pagal tarptautinius finansinés atskaitomybés standartus, priimtus taikyti
Europos Sajungoje;

- UAB,BAIP Grupé” (Reorganizavime dalyvaujanti bendrové) tarpinés konsoliduotos ir atskiros 2014 m. rugsejo
30 d. finansinés ataskaitos, parengtos pagal tarptautinius finansinés atskaitomybeés standartus, priimtus
taikyti Europos Sajungoje;
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- UAB ,BAIP Grupé” 2013 m. konsoliduotasis metinis pranedimas ir konsoliduotosios 2013 mety finansinés
ataskaitos, parengtos pagal tarptautinius finansinés atskaitomybés standartus, priimtus taikyti Europos
Sagjungoje, pateikiamos kartu su nepriklausomo auditoriaus i$vada;

- UAB ,BAIP Grupé” jstatai, patvirtinti 2014 m. lapkri¢io 26 d.;

- AB ,BAIP Grupé” jstatai, patvirtinti 2014 m. gruodZio 18 d.;

- AB,INVLTechnology” (Reorganizuojama Bendroveé) jstatai, patvirtinti 2014 m. balandZio 29 d.;

- UAB ,BAIP Grupé” akcininky sprendimas 2014 m. gruodZio 5 d.;

- AB,INVL Technology” (Reorganizuojama Bendrové) visuotinio akcininky susirinkimo protokolas Nr. 2014/02,
2014 m. gruodzio 19 d.;

- AB,INVL Technology” (Bendrové) jstaty projektas;

- AB,INVLTechnology” ir AB ,BAIP Grupé“ Reorganizavimo sglygos 2014 m. gruodZio 23 d.;

Vertindami Prijungimo sglygas mes atlikome $ias procediras:

a. |jvertinome Prijungimo salygy atitikimg Lietuvos Respublikos akciniy bendroviy jstatymo 63 straipsnio
reikalavimams;

b. jvertinome metody, panaudoty Prijungimo salygose akcijy keitimo santykiui nustatyti, tinkamuma bei jy jtakg
nustatant akcijos verte;

¢. jvertinome Prijungimo salygose nurodyto akcijy keitimo santykio tikslumg ir pagrjstuma.

Sios procediiros buvo atliktos vien tik akcinés bendrovés ,INVL Technology” numatomo prijungimo prie akcinés
bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé” tikslais, todél Prijungimo salygy vertinimo ataskaita negali biiti naudojama jokiems kitiems
tikslams. Prijungimo sglygy vertinimo ataskaita gali bati pateikta juridiniy asmeny registro tvarkytojui.

2. Metodai, panaudoti akcijy keitimo santykiui nustatyti

Reorganizuojamos bendrovés jregistruotas ir apmokétas jstatinis kapitalas yra 592 730 Lt, padalintas j 592 730 vnt. 1 Lt
nominalo paprastasias vardines akcijas. Reorganizavime dalyvaujancios bendrovés jregistruotas ir apmokétas jstatinis
kapitalas yra 6 092 685 Lt, padalintas j 6 092 685 vnt. 1 Lt nominalo paprastasias vardines akcijas.

Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijomis yra prekiaujama NASDAQ OMW Vilniaus prekybiniy popieriy birzoje.
Nustatant akcijy keitimo santykj Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijos buvo vertinamos pagal vidutine svertine $eiy
ménesiy kaing, imant periodg nuo 2014-06-18 iki 2014-12-18. Per tg laikg buvo akcijy apyvartg biroje sudaré 1813
vnt. (0,31 proc. esamy akcijy) Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijy uz 60175,61 Lt suma, i3 jy 593 vnt. (32,71 proc.) uz
20542,57 Lt (34 proc.) vadovy atlikti akcijy pirkimo - pardavimo sandoriai. Misy manymu, reorganizuojamos
bendrovés akcijos rinkoje yra mazai likvidZios. Mes perskaitiavome, kokia jtakg Reorganizuojamos bendrovés svertinei
akcijy kainai turéjo vadowvy akeijy pirkimo — pardavimo sandoriai, atlikti reguliuojamoje rinkoje, ir nustatéme, kad jie
reikSmingos jtakos Reorganizuojamos bendrovés svertinei kainai neturéjo. Neatsizvelgiant j tai, kad Reorganizuojamos
bendrovés akcijos likvidumas rinkoje yra 2emas, Reorganizuojamos bendrovés 1 vnt. paprastosios akcijos vidutiné
svertiné 3ediy ménesiy kaina sudaré 9,611788 euro (33,18758327 Lt).

Prijungimas vykdomas prie iki prijungimo veikusios akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP Grupé“ veiklos, susijusios su investavimu j
Lietuvos informaciniy technologijy rinkg, prijungiant akcing bendrove ,INVL Technology®, kurios pagrindinis turtas yra
AB ,BAIP Grupé” akcijos. Kaip jau buvo minéta, nustatyta Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijos vidutiné svertine kaina
yra 33,1912 Lt, o akcijy skaiCius yra 592 730 vnt., taigi Reorganizuojamos bendrovés kapitalizacija sudaro 19 673 420 Lt
(33,1912 Lt/vnt.*592 730 vnt.). Be Reorganizavime dalyvaujanéios bendrovés akcijy, Reorganizuojama bendroveé 2014-
09-30 dieng turi 10 000 vnt. UAB ,Inventio” akcijy, kuriy verté 7555 Lt, pinigy saskaitoje 112 035 Lt ir turi
jsipareigojimy uZ 11 846 Lt sumg; taigi kitas grynasis turtas sudaro 107 744 Lt suma. I3 Reorganizuojamos bendrovés
kapitalizacijos sumos 19 673 420 Lt atéme Reorganizuojamos bendrovés kita grynajj turta 107 744 Lt gauname
Reorganizuojamos bendrovés turta 19 565676 Lt, kuris priskiriamas turimoms 4 000 000 vnt. Reorganizavime
dalyvaujantios bendrovés akcijoms ir i to i$skaiiuojama 1 vnt. akcijos verté 4,8914 Lt.
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3. Bvados dél 3iy metody tinkamumo ir jtakos nustatant akcijy verte

Vienos paprastos akcijos iki prijungimo veikusioje Reorganizucjamoje bendrovéje apskaitiuotos remiantis vidutine
svertine Sios bendrovés akcijy kaina Vilniaus vertybiniy popieriy birzoje. Toks akcijy vertes nustatymo metodas yra
tinkamas, taCiau reikéty atsizvelgti j tai, kad akcijos aktyvumas per 6 ménesius buvo emas. Pakankamo aktyvumo
nebuvimas gali turéti tam tikros jtakos akcijy tikrajai vertei: jos gali biiti nepakankamai rinkoje jvertintos arba
pervertintos. Mes perZiliréjome, kaip Reorganizuojama bendrové tarpinése finansinése ataskaitose jvertino investicijg
| AB ,BAIP Grupe” akcijas. Reikéty atkreipti démesj, kad po tarpiniy finansiniy ataskaity sudarymo 2014 m. rugséjo
mén. 30 d., jvyko tokie jvykiai kaip: AB ,BAIP Grupé“ naujos akcijy emisijos ileidimas, dél kurio Reorganizuojamos
bendrovés akcijy dalis sumazéjo nuo 80 proc. iki 65,65 proc. Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijy rinkoje aktyvumas
buvo Zemas ir rinka j §j esminj jvykj nesureagavo, nors jis galéjo turéti tam tikros jtakos Reorganizuojamos bendrovés
akcijy kainai. Nustatyta Reorganizuojamos vienos akcijos verté 33,1912 Lt.

Reorganizavime dalyvaujanéios bendrovés akcijos verté buvo nustatyta kaip idvestiné i§ patronuojanéios jmonés akcijy
vertes, nustatytos remiantis vidutine svertine akcijy kaina Vilniaus vertybiniy popieriy birzoje ir todél turi tuos pacius
trikumus, kaip ir Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijy verté. Tokiu bidu nustatyta vienos Reorganizacijoje
dalyvaujancios jmonés akcijos verté 4,8914 Lt.

Keiciant Reorganizuojamos bendrovés akcijas j Reorganizavime dalyvaujanéios bendrovés akcijas, skaiciuojama, kad
keitimo santykis bus 6,7856, kuris gautas i§ akcijy vertés santykio 33,1912/4,8914. Tokiu badu 592 730 vnt.
Reorganizuojamos bendroveés akcijy bus pakeistos j 4 022 29 vnt. Reorganizavime dalyvaujancios bendroves akcijy.

4. Kilusiy vertinimo sunkumy aprasymas
Pagrindiniai sunkumai, su kuriais susidiiréme atlikdami vertinima, buvo &ie:

a) akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP grupé” tarpinés konsoliduotosios ir atskiros finansinés ataskaitos 2014-09-30 dienai
nebuvo audituotos;

b} akcinés bendroves ,,,INVL Technology” tarpinés konsoliduotosios ir atskiros finansinés ataskaitos 2014-09-30
dienai nebuvo audituotos;

¢) verslo vertintojy nebuvo nustatyta akcines bendrovés ,BAIP grupé” verslo verté;

d) akcinés bendrovés ,BAIP grupé” vidutiné akcijy verté, naudota skaitiavimuose buvo 4,8914 Lt u} akcija,
taciau ji galéjo sumaZzéti 2014-11-27 d. nusprendus i§leisti akcijy emisija, kurios emisijos kaina buvo 1,5652 Lt
ir kuri buvo baigta platinti 2014 m. gruodZio 11 d.

5. Ivados dél akcijy keitimo santykio teisingumo ir pagristumo

Musy nuomone, iSskyrus ankstesnése pastraipose nurodyty dalyky galimg poveikj, Prijungimo salygose nustatytas
akeijy keitimo santykis yra teisingai ir pagristai apskai¢iuotas naudojant tinkama metoda.

&jimo Nr. 000345

Auditoriaus pazyny
UAB “Moore Stephens Vilnius”
Audito jmonés pazymeéjimo Nr. 001226

2014 m. gruodzio 23 d.
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DEFINITIONS

All capitalized terms used in this report about i@nded reorganization prepared by the Board
of the public-joint company BAIP grépshall have the same meaning indicated in the Tefms
Reorganization of public joint-stock company INVIedhnology and public joint-stock company
BAIP grup: (hereinafter referred to as the Terms of Reorgditn).

THE GOAL OF THE REORGANIZATION

The goal of the Reorganization is: on the basiprolisions of the Law on Companies of the
Republic of Lithuania and the Civil Code of the Rblic of Lithuania to merge public joint-stock
company INVL Technology, which after the Reorgatitaa ceases to operate without liquidation
process, to public joint-stock company BAIP gruwhich after all the rights and duties (including
the name) are transferred, continues its operatioder the new name of public joint-stock
company INVL Technology.

ECONOMIC AND LEGAL GROUNDS FOR REORGANIZATION
The mode of the Reorganization:

3.1.1. The Reorganization is performed in the manner mtdid in paragraph 3 of Article 2.97 of
the Civil Code of the Republic of Lithuania, whemedegal entity is merged to the other and
all the rights and duties of the first subject memsferred to the later.

3.1.2. The Reorganization corresponds with paragraph paof 2 of Article 41 of the Law on
Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuaniecading to which “entities are
reorganised by means of a merger by acquisitian, ane or more entities, on being
dissolved without going into liquidation, (hereiteafreferred to as the “acquired entities”)
are merged with another existing entity (hereimaftderred to as the “acquiring entity”)
and, at the time of the merger, all the assethtgignd obligations of the acquired entity are
transferred to the acquiring entity and memberthefacquired entity, in exchange for the
shares (interests, member shares) held in the rach@intity, receive shares (interests,
member shares) issued by the acquiring entity,Hiclwall the assets, rights and obligations
of the acquired entity are transferred”.

3.1.3. As the Reorganization corresponds with cases afgamization and transfer provided in
Article 41 of the Law on Corporate Income Tax of tRepublic of Lithuania, according to
part 1 of Article 42 of the Law on Corporate Incofirex of the Republic of Lithuania, when
the shareholders of the Company being Reorganieegive shares in the Company
participating in the Reorganization in exchange floose held in the Company being
Reorganized, the increase of the value of sharal sbt be treated as income of such
shareholders. In this case, the acquisition pritehe shares received in the Company
participating in the Reorganization in exchange fioe shares of the Company being
Reorganized is the acquisition price of the sharehanged before the transfer was effected.

3.1.4. As the Reorganization corresponds with cases afgamization and transfer intended in
Article 41 of the Law on Corporate Income Tax of tRepublic of Lithuania, according to
part 2 of Article 42 of the Law on Corporate Incofirex of the Republic of Lithuania, when
the Company being Reorganized transfers assethiecoCbmpany participating in the
Reorganization, the increase in the value of assietdl not be treated as income of the
Company being Reorganized. In this case, the atigunigrice of such assets shall be the
acquisition price of the assets before the transéer effected.

In the opinion of the Board Reorganization will ued the cost of business administration, the
Company participating in the Reorganization after Reorganization (i) will be able to optimize
investments in new businesses, (ii) increase tlabalility to find new sectors suitable for
investments, (iii) this will create conditions feuccessfull transactions and shareholders value
increase.

Legal grounds for Reorganization:

3.3.1. the authorized capital of the Company participaiimghe Reorganization and the Company

being Reorganized have been fully paid up (sharéssion price of the last share issue).
2
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3.3.2. The Company patrticipating in the Reorganization treCompany being Reorganized have
not acquired the status of the company being reizgd or involved into the reorganization,
or the company being transformed, or the compatigindation, bankruptcy or restructuring.

3.3.3. Preparation of the Terms of Reorganization was@amat by the decision of shareholders of
private limited company BAIP grépon 5 December 2014 and by the general meeting of
shareholders of the Company being Reorganized d»et@mber 2014.

3.3.4. The Terms of Reorganization have been drawn up®Bbard of the Company participating
in the Reorganization and the Board of the Comimaigg Reorganized.

3.3.5. The Terms of Reorganization are assessed and puogtris prepared by private limited
company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS.

REORGANIZATION ACTIONS AND TIME LIMITS

Not later than 30 days before the Meeting of then@any participating in the Reorganization and
the Meeting of the Company being Reorganized, ttierination about the prepared Terms of
Reorganization shall be one time published in teeteonic publication for public announcements
which is issued by the Manager of the Registeragfdl Entities and provided to all creditors of the
Company participating in the Reorganization and Gloenpany being Reorganized in writing (by
registered mail or in person). The announcementl simmtain further mentioned data and
information where the documents listed under thragraph 4.2. can be found:

4.1.1. information indicated in Article 2.44 of the Civ@ode of the Republic of Lithuania about
the Company participating in the Reorganization tnedCompany being Reorganized;

4.1.2. mode of the Reorganization;
4.1.3. the companies that will continue to operate afterReorganization;

4.1.4. the moment when all the rights and duties of them@any being Reorganized are transferred
to the Company participating in the Reorganization.

Not later than 30 days before the Meeting of then@any Participating in the Reorganization and
the Meeting of the Company being Reorganized, bothCompany being Reorganized and the
Company participating in the Reorganization wilfesfa possibility for their shareholders and
creditors to access further mentioned documentsthair web-siteswww.baipgrupe.lt and
www.invitechnology.lt

4.2.1. Terms of Reorganization;

4.2.2. new wording of the Articles of Association of theor@pany participating in the
Reorganization;

4.2.3. the sets of annual financial statements, annuartegdor the last three years and a set of
interim financial statements as of 30 Septemberd26flthe Company participating in the
Reorganization;

4.2.4. the sets of annual financial statements, annuartegdor the last three years and a set of
interim financial statements as of 30 Septembed2the Company being Reorganized,;

4.2.5. the report of the assessment of the Terms of Raaion;

4.2.6. the report about the intended Reorganization pezpdy the Board of the Company
participating in the Reorganization;

4.2.7. the report about the intended Reorganization pezpay the Board of the Company being
Reorganized.

The documents listed above will be available atharge for the shareholders on the website of
the Company participating in the Reorganizatiomw.baipgrupe.lias well as on the website of the
Company being Reorganizedvw.invitechnology.ltand print or receive copies of these documents
at no charge in the offices of the Company parditiig in the Reorganization and/or the Company
being Reorganized during all period indicated iregaaph 2.8 of the Terms of Reorganization.
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4.4. If there are any substantial changes in assetstsrand liabilities from the Day of preparation of
the Terms of Reorganization, the manager of theesponding company will immediately draw up
written announcements regarding such changes dhdttaich to the documents listed in paragraph
4.2. of the Terms of Reorganization. If there ang aubstantial changes in assets, rights and
liabilities from the Day of preparation of the Terwf Reorganization till the day of the Meeting of
the Company participating in the Reorganization #nedday of the Meeting of the Company being
Reorganized, the manager of the corresponding coynpdl verbally announce the changes in the
meeting of a corresponding company and inform theager of the other company so he is able to
inform shareholders.

4.5. Proposals regarding the Terms of Reorganization bgagubmitted by the Board, manager and
shareholders of the Company participating in theorBanization and the Company being
Reorganized, holding the shares with their nomiadlie not less than 1/3 of the authorized capital
of corresponding company.

4.6. The Terms of Reorganization, the report about ttenided Reorganization drawn up by the board
of the Company participating in the Reorganizatite, report about the intended Reorganization
drawn up by the board of the Company being Reorganand the report of the assessment of
Terms of Reorganization shall be submitted to thenddjer of the Register of Legal Entities no
later than on the day information about their prapan is published in the electronic publication
for public announcements which is issued by the &gen of the Register of Legal Entities.

4.7.  From the day of publication about preparation & Trerms of Reorganization, the public joint -
stock company BAIP grépshall acquire the legal status of the companyiqpating in the
reorganization and public joint-stock company INVechnology shall acquire the legal status of
the company being reorganized.

4.8. Creditors of the Company participating in the Ranigation and the Company being Reorganized
may submit their claims from the first day of pahbliion of the Terms of Reorganization until the
Meeting of the Company participating in the Reorgation and the Meeting of the Company
being Reorganized.

4.9. The decision regarding the Reorganization, approf/the Terms of Reorganization and approval
of the Articles of Association of the Company paigating in the Reorganization, that will
continue its operations after the Reorganizatioll,lve adopted by the Meeting of the Company
participating in the Reorganization and the Meetihthe Company being Reorganized not earlier
than 30 days from the day on which the ManagehefRegister of Legal Entities announces about
the Terms of Reorganization received.

4.10. Documents confirming the decisions regarding therganization taken by the Meeting of the
Company participating in the Reorganization andMeeting of the Company being Reorganized
will be submitted to the Manager of the RegisterLefjal Entities within 5 (five) days of the
corresponding meeting.

4.11. The Reorganization will be completed after theifimént of all below stated conditions:

4.11.1.the Register of Legal Entities will register newrding of Articles of Association of the
Company participating in the Reorganization amegdie authorized capital of the company
and the name herein;

4.11.2. the Register of Legal Entities will deregister @mpany being Reorganized,;

4.11.3. the shareholders of the Company participating @Rlorganization will receive shares of the
Company being Reorganized in exchange of the shmeslesin the Company Participating in
the Reorganization.

5. BUSINESS CONTINUITY

5.1. The Company patrticipating in the Reorganizatioerafhe Company being Reorganized is merged
and ceases to operate as legal person as indicathdse Terms of Reorganization, on the day of
Completion of the Reorganization shall take ovéraabets, rights and liabilities of the Company
being Reorganized, including assets, rights arlili@s not indicated in financial statements loé t
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Company being Reorganized, without signing any deddransfer — acceptance and shall continue

its operations.
5.2.

The Company participating in the Reorganization:

5.2.1. The data on the Company participating in the Retdrggion as of the Day of preparation of

the Terms of Reorganization:

Description

Name of the legal entity

Public join-stock company BAIP grap

Legal form of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company

Registered address

A. Juozapamiaus str. 6, Vilnius

Company code

300893533

Register which accumulates and stores th
data about the legal entity

eThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic

Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code

LT100003300019

Authorized capital

6 092 685 LTL

Fully paid authorized capital

6 092 685 LTL

Number of shares

6 092 685 units

Nominal value per one share

1LTL

Class of the shares

Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares Uncertificated
ISIN code of the shares LT0000128860
Regulated market on which the shares are Not traded

traded

|

Share account manager

Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finastg

5.2.2.
Reorganization:

Description

Name of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company INVL Technology

Legal form of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company

Registered address

Gynrejy str. 16, Vilnius

Company code

300893533

Register which accumulates and stores th
data about the legal entity

eThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic
Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code

LT100003300019

Authorized capital

6114 714 LTL

1773 267.06 EUR

Fully paid authorized capital

6114 714 LTL

1773 267.06 EUR

The data on the Company participating in the Reuegdion after the Completion of the

of
of
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Number of shares

6 114 714 units

Nominal value per one share 1LTL
0.29 EUR
Class of the shares Ordinary registered shares
Type of the shares Uncertificated
ISIN code of the shares LT0000128860

Regulated market on which the shares are
traded

2 NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, Baltic Secondary List. The

minimal required time indicated in legal acts.

Share account manager

Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finasta

5.3.

The data on the Company being Reorganized:

Description

Name of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company INVL Technology

Legal form of the legal entity

Public joint-stock company

Registered address

Kalvarijy str. 11A-20, Vilnius

Company code

303299817

Register which accumulates and stores th

data about the legal entity

eThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic
Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre
Registers

VAT payer’s code

Not VAT payer

Authorized capital 592 730 LTL
Fully paid authorized capital 592 730 LTL
Number of shares 592 730 units
Nominal value per one share 1LTL

Class of the shares

Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares

Uncertificated

ISIN code of the shares

LT0000128738

Regulated market on which the shares ar¢ NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

traded

Share account manager

Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finastg

ES OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN THE
RES OF THE COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED ,

ION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

6. EXCHANGE RATIO OF THE SHAR
REORGANIZATION FOR THE SHA
AND THE SUBSTANTIATION THEREOF .
THE RULES OF SHARE ALLOCAT

6.1. As of the Day of preparation of the T

erms of Reaigation:

aim is to include the shares in the market within

of
of

- the authorized fully paid up capital of the Compdeing Reorganized is 592 730 (five hundred
ninety two thousand seven hundred and thirty) litas divided into 592 730 (five hundred ninety
two thousand seven hundred and thirty) ordinarysteged shares with nominal value of 1 (one)
litas each. As of the Day of preparation of the m®rof Reorganization the Company being
Reorganized has not acquired its own shares;
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- the authorized fully paid capital of the Compamarticipating in the Reorganization is 6 092 685
(six million ninety two thousand six hundred andghay five) litas. It is divided into 6 092 685 (six

million ninety two thousand six hundred and eigfite) ordinary registered shares with nominal
value of 1 (one) litas each. As of the Day of pratian of the Terms of Reorganization the
Company participating in the Reorganization hasagguired its own shares.

6.2. The exchange ratio at which the shares of the Coypaing Reorganized are exchanged to the
shares of the Company participating in the Reomgdiun — 6.7856, i.e. for every share of the
Company being Reorganized shareholder of the Compamng Reorganized shall get 6.7856
ordinary registered shares with nominal value ¢6rie) litas (which is equal to 0.29 euro) each of
the Company participating in the Reorganization.

6.2.1. Major assets of the Company being Reorganized 88 &eptember 2014:
Book value
Asset 30 Description
September P
2014

Shares of the

Company

participating in 16 996 189

4 000 000 ordinary registered shares with nomiahlesof 1 (one)
litas of the Company participating in the Reorgation

the

Reorganization

Shares of private 10 000 ordinary registered shares with nominalevaliul (one) litas.
limited company 7 555 Due to the fact that the company is not operashgyes are valued at
Inventio book value (authorised capital (cash)).

Cash 112 035 | Cash in the account

Liabilities -11 846 Total liabilities

Equity capital 17 103 933

6.2.2. As of the Day of preparation of the Terms of Reaigation, the Company being
Reorganized owns 4 000 000 ordinary registeredeshaith nominal value of 1 (one) litas of
the Company participating in the Reorganizationicivhis 65.65 percent of total shares of the
Company patrticipating in the Reorganization. Thelsares are not exchanged for the shares
of the Company participating in the Reorganization.

6.2.3. Shares of the Company being Reorganized are tradeNASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock
Exchange. Weighted average price of these shawas I8 June 2014 to 18 December 2014
was EUR 9.612830 (LTL 33.1912). Statistics on tradihg activity on NASDAQ OMX
Vilnius Stock Exchange of the shares of the Complamiyg Reorganized is provided in
Annex 10 of the Terms of Reorganization.

6.2.4. Determining exchange ratio, shares of the Compaeingb Reorganized were valued
according to the weighted average price of thedasmonths (as stated in paragraph 5.3.3.),
while the value of the shares of the Company pagting in the Reorganization is
determined by deducting net assets non-relateldetahares of the Company participating in
the Reorganization from its market capitalizatioratket value of the shares):

The number of shares of the Company being Reorgdnimits 592 730

Weighted average price of the Company being ReagdnLTL 33,1912

Market capitalization of the Company being Reorgedj LTL 19 673 420

Other net assets of the Company being Reorganedu@ing the shares of the
Company participating in the Reorganization), LTL 107 744

Value of the shares of the Company participatinthp@nReorganization owned by

19 565 676
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the Company being Reorganized, LTL

Number of shares of the Company participating & Reorganization owned by the

Company being Reorganized, units 4 000 000
Value of one share of the Company participatinthenReorganization 4,8914
Exchange ratio (the number of shares of the Compaanticipating in the

Reorganization exchanged for one share of the Coynpaing Reorganized) 6,7856

6.2.5. After assessing exchange ratio sensitivity anglypending on different share prices of the
Company being Reorganized, price movements bettieehoundaries of 28 and 37 litas, the

deviation of the exchange ratio is negligible aesklthan 0.1 percent:

Share price of the
Company being
Reorganized, LTL 28 29 30 31 32 33 34

35 36 37

Share value of the
Company
participating in the
Reorganization,

4,1222| 4,2704| 4,4185| 4,5667| 4,7149| 4,8631| 5,0113

5,1595

5,3076| 5,4558

Exchange ratio

6,7925| 6,791| 6,7896| 6,7882| 6,787| 6,7858| 6,7847

6,7837

6,7827| 6,7818

Deviation from the
determined
exchange ratio, %

0,10% 0,08%| 0,06%| 0,04%/| 0,02%/| 0,00%/  -0,01%

-0,03%

-0,04%

-0,06%

6.3.

According to the determined exchange ratio andyapglarithmetic rounding rules:

Number of shares of the Company participating ie fReorganizatiof

entitled to the shareholders of the Company beiegréanized, units 4 022 029
Number of shares entitled to the shareholders @fQbmpany participating
in the Reorganization (excluding the Company b&egrganized), units 2 092 685

Authorised capital of the Company participatinghie Reorganization after
the Reorganization

6 114 714 (which
isequalto 1773
267.06 EUR)

6.4. In order to ensure smooth implementation of theeslexchange procedure stated in the Terms of
Reorganization, the trading on NASDAQ OMX Vilniugo8k Exchange of the shares of the
Company participating in the Reorganization willdaespended not later than 2 (two) days until the
Meeting of the Company participating in the Reoigation. Shares of the Company participating
in the Reorganization will be included in the BSINASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange within

the minimal time limits indicated in legal acts.

6.5. If a fractional amount occurs while calculatingizesof a new authorized capital and/or exchanging
the shares of the Company participating in the gatration for the shares in the Company being
Reorganized as indicated in the Terms of Reorgtiaizathe fraction will be rounded to a whole
number using arithmetic rounding rules: (i) if tlirst digit of decimal fractional part is figure d
bigger, 1 is added to the last digit of the whalenber; (i) if the first digit of the decimal fraohal

part is less than 5, the last digit of the wholenbar will remain unchanged.
7. EXPLANATION OF THE TERMS OF REORGANIZATION

7.1.
Reorganization and the Board of the Company berwgrganized.

The Terms of Reorganization are prepared by therdBo& the Company participating in the
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Terms of Reorganization are prepared in accordaiiteArticles 61-69 of the Law on Companies
of the Republic of Lithuania and Chapter VIII of @oTwo of the Civil Code of the Republic of
Lithuania, taking into account the requirementstbier legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania.

The Reorganization corresponds with paragraph dadf 2 of Article 41 of the Law on Corporate
Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania accordiogmhich “entities are reorganised by means of a
merger by acquisition, i.e. one or more entitigs being dissolved without going into liquidation,
(hereinafter referred to as the “acquired entilieafe merged with another existing entity
(hereinafter referred to as the “acquiring entitgi)d, at the time of the merger, all the assaihisi
and obligations of the acquired entity are tramsfirto the acquiring entity and members of the
acquired entity, in exchange for the shares (istsfanember shares) held in the acquired entity,
receive shares (interests, member shares) issuadebgicquiring entity, to which all the assets,
rights and obligations of the acquired entity aamsferred".

All the assets, rights and liabilities of the Comp&eing Reorganized, all the contractual right$ an
liabilities of the Company being Reorganized sHadl assumed transferred to the Company
participating in the Reorganization and the tratisas shall be included into its accounting on the
basis of the Terms of Reorganization without addaily signing of transfer — acceptance deeds at
the end of the day the Company being Reorganizedkeiiegistered from the Register of Legal
Entities.

From the day the Company being Reorganized is ddeegd from the Register of Legal Entities

the rights to manage, use and dispose the fundslalesin the bank accounts of the Company being
Reorganized shall be transferred to the Companyicfmating in the Reorganization or these

accounts shall be closed and the funds in thent Baalansferred to the Company participating in
the Reorganization.

The Company patrticipating in the Reorganizatioresatver all the assets, rights and duties of the
Company being Reorganized, including but not lichitassets, rights and duties not stated in the
financial statements as well as all the tax riging duties, including but not limited, rights and
duties that might emerge after the tax administrat@mther state institutions add on arrears adin
according to the legal acts for the operationshef Company being Reorganized until the day of
deregistration from the Register of Legal Entities.

The Company participating in the Reorganizationstased above, after assuming all assets, rights,
obligations and name of the Company being Reorgdnidll continue its activities. Reorganization
will have no influence on the strategy and goalthefComapny participating in the Reorganization.

INFORMATION ABOUT PREPARATION OF THE REPORT ON ASSES MENT OF THE
TERMS OF REORGANIZATION

According to paragraph 2 of Article 63 of the Laftbe Republic of Lithuania, the Terms of
Reorganization are assessed and the report onsass#sis prepared by private limited company
MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS. The report on assessmeall girclude:

8.1.1. findings on validity and fairness of the exchanggor,

8.1.2. methods used to determine the exchange ratio adihfjs on validity of these methods and
impact on the valuation of the shares;

8.1.3. description of assessment difficulties.

Rights granted to private limited company MOORE SHENS VILNIUS while assessing the
Terms of Reorganization:

8.2.1. receive all the documents needed to assess anareréye report on assessment of the Terms
of Reorganization;

8.2.2. receive all the information needed to assess apgape the report on assessment of the
Terms of Reorganization as well as get the expiamatof the managers and employees of
the Company participating in the Reorganization tnedCompany being Reorganized;

8.2.3. all the other rights provided in the agreement wtfivate limited company MOORE
STEPHENS VILNIUS and the legal acts of the Repubfitithuania.
9
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8.3.  The report on assessment of the Terms of Reorgamizaill be submitted to the Manager of the
Register of Legal Entities and will be publishedirdicated in the Terms of Reorganization not
later than on the day an announcement about preéfamns of Reorganization was published.

This report of the Board was approved by the degisif the Board of public joint-stock company BAIP
grup: dated 23 December 2014.

Chairman of the Board Kazimieras Tamks
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1. DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms used in this public joint-stocknpany INVL Technology board‘s report on the
intended reorganization have the same meaningvaes ¢o them in public joint-stock company
BAIP grup: and public joint-stock company INVL Technology Ter of Reorganization,
prepared on December 23, 2014 (further — Termseafrganization).

PURPOSE OF THE REORGANIZATION

The purpose of the Reorganization is on the bdgisavisions of the Law on Companies of the

Republic of Lithuania and the Civil Code of Lithuarto public joint-stock company INVL Technology
which ceases to operate without liquidation procesgublic joint-stock company BAIP gréjpwhich after
assuming all the rights and duties of INVL Techmgidincluding the name) continues its operationdesin
a new name as a public joint-stock company INVLAredtogy.

ECONOMIC AND LEGAL BASIS OF THE REORGANIZATION

3.1. The mode of the Reorganization:

3.1.1.

3.1.2.

3.1.3.

3.1.4.

The Reorganization is performed in the manner atéit in paragraph 3 of Article 2.97
of the Civil Code of the Republic of Lithuania, whene legal entity is merged to the
other and all the rights and duties of the firdijeat are transferred to the later.

The Reorganization corresponds with paragraphdadf2 of Article 41 of the Law on
Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuantcaading to which “entities are
reorganised by means of a merger by acquisitien,one or more entities, on being
dissolved without going into liquidation, (hereiteaf referred to as the “acquired
entities”) are merged with another existing entfhereinafter referred to as the
“acquiring entity”) and, at the time of the mergall, the assets, rights and obligations
of the acquired entity are transferred to the aaggientity and members of the
acquired entity, in exchange for the shares (istsremember shares) held in the
acquired entity, receive shares (interests, memitaes) issued by the acquiring entity,
to which all the assets, rights and obligationthefacquired entity are transferred”.

As the Reorganization corresponds with cases afjagization and transfer provided
in Article 41 of he Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic @huania,
according to part 1 of Article 42 of theaw on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic
of Lithuanig when the shareholders of the Company being Reiae@d receive shares
in the Company participating in the Reorganizaiiorexchange for those held in the
Company being Reorganized, the increase of theevaflgshares shall not be treated as
income of such shareholders. In this case, theisitiqn price of the shares received in
the Company participating in the Reorganizationexthange for the shares of the
Company being Reorganized is the acquisition pfabe shares exchanged before the
transfer was effected.

As the Reorganization corresponds with cases ofjaization and transfer intended
in Article 41 of he Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic @huania,
according to part 2 of Article 42 of theaw on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic
of Lithuania,when the Company being Reorganized transfers agséite Company
participating in the Reorganization, the increasehe value of assets shall not be
treated as income of the Company being Reorganizelis case, the acquisition price
of such assets shall be the acquisition price ef dasets before the transfer was
effected.
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3.2.  In the opinion of the Board Reorganization willoail to decrease business administration costs, the
Company participating in the Reorganization after Reorganization (i) will be able to optimize
investments into new businesses, (ii) increase pitodability to find new sectors suitable for
investments, (iii) this will create conditions feuccessfull transactions and shareholders value
increase.

3.3. Legal assumptions of the Reorganization are tHeviahg:

3.3.1. the authorized capital of the Company Participaimthe Reorganization has been fully
paid up (at the price of the last share issue);

3.3.2. the Company Participating in the Reorganization gredCompany being Reorganized
have not acquired the status of the company be2ogganized or involved into the
reorganization, or the company being transformedthe company in liquidation or
restructuring;

3.3.3. the drawing up of the Terms was approved by thegmeeting of shareholders of the
Company participating in the Reorganization on sédeber 2014 (Annex 1) and by the
general meeting of shareholders of the CompanygbREorganized on 19 December
2014 (Annex 2);

3.3.4. the Terms have been drawn up by the Board of theapgaay Participating in the
Reorganization and the Board of the Company beegganized.

3.3.5. Terms of the Reorganization are assesed and tluet rppepared by private limited
company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS.

REORGANIZATION ACTIONS AND TIME LIMITS

4.1.1. not later than 30 days before the Meeting of then@any participating in the
Reorganization and the Meeting of the Company b&agrganized, the information
about the prepared Terms of Reorganization shallohe time published in the
electronic publication for public announcementschihis issued by the Manager of the
Register of Legal Entities and provided to all d@d of the Company participating in
the Reorganization and the Company being Reorgamieeriting (by registered mail
or in person). The announcement shall contain éuthentioned data and information
where the documents listed under the point 4.Zbegiound:

4.1.2. Information that coresponds with the article 2.44he Civil Code of the Republic of
Lithuania about the Company participating in theofganization and the Company
being Reorganized;

4.1.3. mode of the Reorganizatipn
4.1.4. the companies that will continue to operate afterReorganizatign

4.1.5. the moment when all the rights and duties of then@any being Reorganized are
transfered to the Company participating in the Banization.

4.2. not later than 30 days before the Meeting of them@any Participating in the
Reorganization and the Meeting of the Company b&egrganized, both the Company
being Reorganized and the Company participatinghm Reorganization will offer a
possibility for their shareholders and creditorsatwess further mentioned documents in
their web-sitesvww.baipgrupe.lir www.invitechnology.lt

4.2.1. Terms of Reorganization;

4.2.2. new wording of the Articles of Association of theor@pany participating in the
Reorganization;
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4.2.3. the sets of annual financial statements, annualrtfor the last three years and a set of

interim financial statements as of 30 Septembe#r 2tflthe Company participating in
the Reorganization;

4.2.4. the sets of annual financial statements, annualtgfor the last three years and a set of

interim financial statements as of 30 September42@f the Company being
Reorganized,;

4.2.5. the report of the assessment of the Terms of Reaaj#on;
4.2.6. the report about the intended Reorganization pegbay the Board of the Company

participating in the Reorganization;

4.2.7. the report about the intended Reorganization pegbay the Board of the Company

being Reorganized.

The documents listed in paragraph 3.3.2. of than§eof the Reorganization will be
available at no charge for the shareholders omwtiesite of the Company participating in
the Reorganizationvww.baipgrupe.ltas well as on the website of the Company being
Reorganizedvww.invltechnology.ltand print or receive copies of these documentsoat
charge in the offices of the Company participatingthe Reorganization and/or the
Company being Reorganized all the time — periodvidedl in paragraph 2.8 of the
Reorganization Terms.

If there are any substantial changes in assethisrignd liabilities from the Day of
preparation of the Terms of Reorganization, the agan of the corresponding company
will immediately draw up written announcements regay such changes and will attach to
the documents listed in paragraph 3.3.2. of then§eof Reorganization. If there are any
substantial changes in assets, rights and liaslitiom the Day of preparation of the Terms
of Reorganization till the day of the Meeting ofetiCompany participating in the
Reorganization and the day of the Meeting of than@any being Reorganized, the
manager of the corresponding company will verbafipounce the changes in the meeting
of a corresponding company and inform the manafjveoother company so he is able to
inform shareholders.

Proposals regarding the Reorganization Terms maysudamitted by the Company
participating in the Reorganization and the Compaeyng Reorganized boards, the
company manager and the Shareholders holding Hreskthe face value whereof is at least
1/3 of the authorized capital of corresponding canyp

The Terms of Reorganization, the report about thended Reorganization drawn up by
the board of the Company participating in the Ranization, the report about the intended
Reorganization drawn up by the board of the Comeeityg Reorganized and the report of
the assessment of Terms of Reorganization shakutenitted to the Manager of the

Register of Legal Entities no later than on the odgrmation about their preparation is

published in the electronic publication for pubéinnouncements which is issued by the
Manager of the Register of Legal Entities.

From the day of publication of the Terms the pufdiat - stock company BAIP grgpshall
acquire the legal status of the Company partiangati the Reorganization and public joint-
stock company INVL Technology shall acquire thealegtatus of the Company being
Reorganized.

Creditors of the Company participating in the Remigation and the Company being
Reorganized may submit their claims from the faaly of publication of the Terms of
Reorganization until the Meeting of the Companytipgrating in the Reorganization and
the Meeting of the Company being Reorganized.
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4.9. The decision regarding the Reorganization, appro¥ahe Terms of Reorganization and
approval of the Articles of Association of the Camp participating in the Reorganization,
that will continue its operations after the Reoigation, will be adopted by the Meeting of
the Company patrticipating in the Reorganization #rel Meeting of the Company being
Reorganized not earlier than 30 days from the dawloich the Manager of the Register of
Legal Entities announces about Terms of Reorgadoiza¢ceived.

4.10. Documents confirming the decisions regarding thergamnization taken by the Meeting of
the Company patrticipating in the Reorganization #rel Meeting of the Company being
Reorganized will be submitted to the Manager of Register of Legal Entities within 5
(five) days of the corresponding meeting.

4.11. The Reorganization will be completed after theilimént of all below stated conditions:

4.11.1.the Register of Legal Entities will register newrding of Articles of Association of
the Company participating in the Reorganization raaiteg the authorized capital of
the company and the name herein;

4.11.2 the Register of Legal Entities will deregister dempany being Reorganized;

4.11.3.the shareholders of the Company participating éRkorganization will receive shares
of the Company being Reorganized in exchange ofshiaes held in the Company
Participating in the Reorganization.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

5.1. The Company participating in the Reorganizatioerafihe Company being Reorganized is
merged and ceases to operate as legal personieaténdin these Terms of Reorganization,
on the day of Completion of the Reorganization Iskeaite over all assets, rights and
liabilities of the Company being Reorganized, iddhg assets, rights and liabilities not
indicated in financial statements of the Companindéreorganized, without signing any
deeds of transfer — acceptance and shall contiswgerations.

5.2.  The Company Participating in the Reorganization:

5.2.1. The data on the Company Participating in the Retrg#ion as of the Day of the Terms:

Description
Name of the legal entity Public join-stock company BAIP grap
Legal form of the legal entity Public joint-stock company
Registered address A. Juozapamiaus str. 6, Vilnius
Company code 300893533
Register which accumulates and stores the dataThe Register of Legal Entities of the Republic| of
about the legal entity Lithuania, manager — Vilnius Branch of Centre| of
Registers
The VAT payer's code
LT100003300019
Authorized capital 6 092 685 LTL
Fully paid authorized capital 6 092 685 LTL
Number of shares 6 092 685 units

Nominal value per one share 1LTL
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Class of the shares Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares Uncertificated

ISIN code of the shares LT0000128860

Regulated market on which the shares are Not traded

traded

Share account manager Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finasta

5.2.2. The data on the Company participating in the Reurgdion after the Completion of
the Reorganization:

Description
Name of the legal entity Public joint-stock company INVL Technology
Legal form of the legal entity Public joint-stock company
Registered address Gyrejy str. 16, Vilnius
Company code 300893533

Register which accumulates and stores theVilnius Branch of the Register of Legal Entities
data about the legal entity

The VAT payer's code

LT100003300019

Authorized capital 6114 714 LTL

1773 267,06 EUR
Fully paid authorized capital 6114 714 LTL

1773 267,06 EUR
Number of shares 6 114 714 units
Nominal value of one share 1LTL

0,29 EUR
Class of the shares Ordinary registered shares
Type of the shares Uncertificated
ISIN code of the shares LT0000128860
Regulated market on which the shares ar¢ NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, Baltic Secondary List. The
traded aim is to include the shares in the market within

minimal required time on the legal basis.

Share account manager Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finasta

5.2.3. The data on the Company being Reorganized:

Description
Name of the legal entity Public joint-stock company INVL Technology
Legal form of the legal entity Public joint-stock company
Registered address Kalvarijy str. 11A-20, Vilnius
Company code 303299817
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Register which accumulates and stores thgeVilnius Branch of the Register of Legal Entities
data about the legal entity

The VAT payer's code Non VAT payer

Authorized capital 592 730 LTL

Fully paid authorized capital 592 730 LTL

Number of shares 592 730 units

Nominal value per one share 1LTL

Class of the shares Ordinary registered shares

Type of the shares Uncertificated

ISIN code of the shares LT0000128738

Regulated market on which the shares aré¢ NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

traded

Share account manager Public joint-stock company brokerage house Finasta

6. EXCHANGE RATIO OF THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN THE
REORGANIZATION FOR THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY BEING REORGANIZED ,
AND THE SUBSTANTIATION THEREOF .

THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF THE COMPANY PARTICIPATING IN THE
REORGANIZATION AND OPERATING AFTER THE REORGANIZATION
ACCORDING TO THEIR CLASSES AND NOMINAL VALUE

THE RULES OF SHARE ALLOCATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

6.1. As of the Day of the Reorganization Terms:
- the authorized fully paid up capital of the Compdeing Reorganized is 592 730 (five hundred
ninety two thousand seven hundred and thirty) lilais divided into 592 730 (five hundred ninety
two thousand seven hundred and thirty) ordinarysteged shares with nominal value of 1 (one)
litas each. As of the Day of preparation of the m®rof Reorganization the Company being
Reorganized has not acquired its own shares;
- the authorized fully paid capital of the Compamayticipating in the Reorganization is 6 092 685
(six million ninety two thousand six hundred andghay five) litas. It is divided into 6 092 685 (six
million ninety two thousand six hundred and eigfite) ordinary registered shares with nominal
value of 1 (one) litas each. As of the Day of pratian of the Terms of Reorganization the
Company participating in the Reorganization hasagguired its own shares.

6.2. The exchange ratio at which the shares oCtirapany being Reorganized are exchanged to theshar
of the Company participating in — 6.7856, i.e. ®wvery share of the Company being Reorganized
shareholder of the Company being Reorganized gjealb.7856 ordinary registered shares with nominal
value of 1 (one) litas (which is equal to 0.29 gugach of the Company patrticipating in the Reorzgtion.
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6.3. Reasoning behind the exchange ratio:

6.3.1.Major assets of the Company being Reorgar8@efeptember 2014:

Book value
Asset 30 Description
September P
2014

Shares of the
Company
Participating in 16 996 189
the 4 000 000 ordinary registered shares par value(ohé) litas of the
Reorganization Company Participating in the Reorganization
Shares of private 10 000 ordinary registered shares par value ohg)(titas. Due to the
limited company 7 555 fact that the company is not operating, sharevalteed at book valug
Inventio (authorised capital (cash)).
Cash 112 035 | Cash in the bank
Liabilities -11 846 Total liabilities
Authorised 17 03
capital 933

6.3.2.As of the Day of preparation of the Terms of Reaigation, the Company being Reorganized
owns 4 000 000 ordinary registered shares with namyalue of 1 (one) litas of the Company
participating in the Reorganization, which is 65.p8rcent of total shares of the Company
participating in the Reorganization. These sharesat exchanged for the shares of the Company
participating in the Reorganization.

6.3.3. Shares of the Company being Reorganized are tradeNASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock
Exchange. Weighted average price of these shavas I8 June 2014 to 18 December 2014 was
EUR 9.612830 (LTL 33.1912). Statistics on the tngdactivity on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock
Exchange of the shares of the Company being Reiaeghrs provided in Annex 10.

6.3.4.Determining exchange ratio, shares of the Compaing Reorganized were valued according
to the weighted average price of the last six m®ifds stated in paragraph 5.3.3.), while the value
of the shares of the Company participating in tle®rganization is determined by deducting net
assets non-related to the shares of the Compatigipating in the Reorganization from its market
capitalization (market value of the shares):

The number of Shares of the Company being Reorgdnimits 592 730
Weighted average price of the Company being ReargdnLTL 33,1912
Market capitalization of the Company being Reorgedj LTL 19 673 420
Other net assets of the Company being Reorganedu@ding the Shares of the

Company Participating in the Reorganization), LTL 107 744
Value of the Shares of the Company ParticipatintpéReorganization owned by

the Company being Reorganized, LTL 19 565 676
Number of Shares of the Company Participating @Rleorganization owned by the

Company being Reorganized, units 4 000 000
Value of one share of the Company Participatindgp@éReorganization 4,8914

Exchange ratio (the number of the Shares of the gaom Participating in th
Reorganization exchanged for one share of the Coynpaing Reorganized) 6,7856

D
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6.3.5. After assessing exchange ratio sensitivity angyd@pending on different share prices of the
Company being Reorganized, price movements betwleerboundaries of 28 and 37 litas, the
deviation of the exchange ratio is negligible aggklthan 0.1 percent:

Share price of the
Company being
Reorganized, LTL 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
Share value of the
Company
Participating in the
Reorganization,
LTL 4,1222| 4,2704| 4,4185| 4,5667| 4,7149| 4,8631| 5,0113| 5,1595| 5,3076| 5,4558
Exchange ratio 6,7925| 6,791| 6,7896| 6,7882| 6,787| 6,7858| 6,7847| 6,7837| 6,7827| 6,7818
Deviation from the
determined
exchange ratio, % 0,10% 0,08%| 0,06%| 0,04%| 0,02%| 0,00%| -0,01%| -0,03%| -0,04% | -0,06%
6.4. According to the determined exchange ratio andyapglaritmetic rounding rules:
Number of shares of the Company Participating i@ Beorganization entiteled to t
Shareholders of the Company being Reorganizeds unit 4 022 029
Number of shares entiteled to the Shareholdershef Company Participating in the
Reorganization (excluding the Company being Reaorgal), units 2 092 685
6114 714
(which
equals to 1
Authorised capital of the Company Participating the Reorganization after th 773 267.06
Reorganization, LTL EUR)

6.5. In order to ensure smooth implementation of theeslexchange procedure stated in the
Terms of Reorganization, the trading on NASDAQ OMMnius Stock Exchange of the
shares of the Company patrticipating in the Reomgditn will be suspended not later than
2 (two) days until the Meeting of the Company maptting in the Reorganization. Shares
of the Company participating in the Reorganizatioih be included in the list of NASDAQ

OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange within the minimal tintienits indicated in legal acts.

6.6. If a fractional amount occurs while calculatingiaesof a new authorized capital and/or
exchanging the shares of the Company participatirige Reorganization for the shares in
the Company being Reorganized as indicated in #ren3 of Reorganization, the fraction
will be rounded to a whole number using arithmetiending rules: (i) if the first digit of
decimal fractional part is figure 5 or bigger, Jagkded to the last digit of the whole number;

(i) if the first digit of the decimal fractionalgpt is less than 5, the last digit of the whole
number will remain unchanged.

7. EXPLANATION OF REORGANIZATION TERMS

7.1. The Terms of the Reorganization are prepared ob&3mber, 2014 by the Board of the

Company participating in the Reorganization andthyy Board of the Company being
Reorganized.
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Terms of the Reorganization are prepared on thés bafsprovisions of the Law on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania Articles-689 of the Law on Companies of the
Republic of Lithuania and Chapter VIII of Book Tved the Civil Code of the Republic of
Lithuania, taking into account the requirementstbier related legal acts of the Republic of
Lithuania.

The Reorganization corresponds with paragraph faof 2 of Article 41 of the Law on
Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuan@ading to which subjects being
reorganized by merger i.e. one or few subjects wb&ased to operate without liquidation
process (acquired subjects) are merged to the stiigect (acquiring subject) and at the
moment of the merger all the assets, rights ani@éslof the acquired subjects are transferred
to the acquiring subject. Acquired subjects’ pgraots get issued acquiring company's
which takes all the assets, rights and duties gfiiaed subject shares (parts) in exchange for
acquired company's shares (parts).

All the rights and liabilities of the Company beiRgorganized shall be assumed by the
Company Participating in the Reorganization andhedl contractual rights and liabilities of
the Company being Restructured shall be assumethéyCompany Participating in the
Reorganization and the transactions shall be imecuidto its accounting on the basis of
these Terms without additional signing of TransfeAcceptance Certificates at the end of
the day of the deregistration of the Company b&egrganized from the Register of Legal
Entities.

As of the day of the Company being Reorganizedgistration from the Register of Legal
Entities the rights to manage use and disposeeofuinds available in the bank accounts of
the Company being Reorganized shall be transfaoatie Company Participating in the
Reorganization or else these accounts shall beedtl@sd the funds in them shall be
transferred to the Company Participating in therBaoization.

The Company participating in the Reorganizationuass all the assets, righths and
obligations of the Company being Reorganized, iiclg but not limited to the assets, rights
and obligations not reflected in financial statetsesf Company being Reorganized, also all
tax rights and liabilities, which might turn outtef the tax authorities or other state
institutions calculate tax or other payments agepenalties and interest according to the
laws for the Company being Reorganized activitiedil the end of the day of the
deregistration of the Company being Reorganizeah fitee Register of Legal Entities.

Company participating in the Reorganization, asedtaabove, after assuming all assets,
rights, obligations and name of the Company beiagrBanized will continue its activities.
Reorganization will have no influence on the stgteand goals of the Comapny
participating in the Reorganization.

INFORMATION ABOUT PREPARATION OF THE ASSESMENT OF THE TERMS OF REORGANIZATION

On the basis of the Law on Companies of the RepuldliLithuania article 63 part 2,
assesment of the Terms of Reorganization is peddriand report prepared by private
limited company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS. Report tve tassesment of the Terms of
the Reorganization, inter alia, should include:

8.1.1. the conclusions whether the share exchange raftiiriand justifiegl

8.1.2. the methods used to determine the share exchatigearal the conclusions on the appropriateness of

these methods for and their impact on the detetinmaf the value of the shares

8.1.3. a description of the difficulties encountered dgrthe assessment

While performing the assesment of the Terms ofRbBerganization private limited liability
company MOORE STEPHENS VILNIUS has the followinghts:
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8.2.1. To receive all the documents neccessary to perémsasment and prepare report on the Terms
of the Reorganization;

8.2.2. To receive all the information neccessary to penf@assesment and prepare report on the
Terms of the Reorganization and explanations of rtfemagement and employees of the
Company participating in the Reorganization andGbenpany being reorganized.

8.2.3. All other rights stated in the agreement with prévdimited liability company MOORE
STEPHENS Vilnius and legal acts of the Republitittiuania.

8.3. Assesment of the Terms of the Reorganization velpbovided no later than the day of the
public announcement about the prepared Reorgamizdagrms to the the manager of

Register of Legal and will be announced publicly teyms stated in the Terms or
Reorganization.

This report of the Board is approved on 23 Decemb@t4 by the Board of joint stock company
INVL Technology.

Chairman of the Board Alvydas Banys
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Annex 10

Statistics on the trade of the shares of the publipint-stock company INVL
Technology on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius stock exchange

Source
http://www.nasdagomxbaltic.co
m/market/?currency=EUR& instr
ument=L T0000128738& list=3&
pg=detail s& tab=historical & lang
=It& downloadcsv=0

SECURITY DETAIL VIEW (EQUITY)
INVL Technology (INC1L)

Period: 2014-06-15 - 2014-12-15
Marketplace: VLN

Name: INC1L
Date Number of Turnover Currency
share
2014.06.18 19 173,99 EUR
2014.06.19 9 83,7 EUR
2014.06.20 33 300,6 EUR
2014.06.23 21 191,03 EUR
2014.06.25 110 990,9 EUR
2014.06.26 0 0 EUR
2014.06.27 7 63,7 EUR
2014.06.30 0 0 EUR
2014.07.01 0 0 EUR
2014.07.02 0 0 EUR
2014.07.03 78 707 EUR
2014.07.04 7 65,1 EUR
2014.07.07 30 279 EUR
2014.07.08 9 83,7 EUR
2014.07.09 0 0 EUR
2014.07.10 12 112,56 EUR
2014.07.11 0 0 EUR
2014.07.14 0 0 EUR
2014.07.15 0 0 EUR
2014.07.16 0 0 EUR
2014.07.17 9 83,25 EUR
2014.07.18 0 0 EUR
2014.07.21 10 90,1 EUR
2014.07.22 24 2238 EUR
2014.07.23 0 0 EUR
2014.07.24 0 0 EUR
2014.07.25 6 55,2 EUR




2014.07.28 22 198,58 EUR
2014.07.29 19 181,83 EUR
2014.07.30 0 0 EUR
2014.07.31 0 0 EUR
2014.08.01 20 178,4 EUR
2014.08.04 0 0 EUR
2014.08.05 9 81 EUR
2014.08.06 18 169,2 EUR
2014.08.07 6 55,8 EUR
2014.08.08 18 160,38 EUR
2014.08.11 14 1232 EUR
2014.08.12 0 0 EUR
2014.08.13 0 0 EUR
2014.08.14 0 0 EUR
2014.08.15 0 0 EUR
2014.08.18 18 162 EUR
2014.08.19 9 82,2 EUR
2014.08.20 23 211,6 EUR
2014.08.21 0 0 EUR
2014.08.22 0 0 EUR
2014.08.25 1 9,21 EUR
2014.08.26 49 451,45 EUR
2014.08.27 5 46,25 EUR
2014.08.28 15 138,75 EUR
2014.08.29 62 590,35 EUR
2014.09.01 0 0 EUR
2014.09.02 14 134,4 EUR
2014.09.03 101 986,77 EUR
2014.09.04 8 80 EUR
2014.09.05 13 131,3 EUR
2014.09.08 16 173 EUR
2014.09.09 48 489,6 EUR
2014.09.10 16 163,2 EUR
2014.09.11 11 113,2 EUR
2014.09.12 0 0 EUR
2014.09.15 0 0 EUR
2014.09.16 0 0 EUR
2014.09.17 0 0 EUR
2014.09.18 4 40,8 EUR
2014.09.19 0 0 EUR
2014.09.22 0 0 EUR
2014.09.23 2 20,4 EUR
2014.09.24 0 0 EUR
2014.09.25 3 30,5 EUR
2014.09.26 0 0 EUR
2014.09.29 11 111,1 EUR
2014.09.30 0 0 EUR
2014.10.01 0 0 EUR
2014.10.02 2 20,2 EUR
2014.10.03 0 0 EUR




2014.10.06 0 0 EUR
2014.10.07 173 1747,3 EUR
2014.10.08 113 11413 EUR
2014.10.09 0 0 EUR
2014.10.10 0 0 EUR
2014.10.13 4 40,4 EUR
2014.10.14 0 0 EUR
2014.10.15 0 0 EUR
2014.10.16 4 40,4 EUR
2014.10.17 6 60,6 EUR
2014.10.20 2 20,2 EUR
2014.10.21 0 0 EUR
2014.10.22 0 0 EUR
2014.10.23 0 0 EUR
2014.10.24 0 0 EUR
2014.10.27 0 0 EUR
2014.10.28 0 0 EUR
2014.10.29 30 303 EUR
2014.10.30 0 0 EUR
2014.10.31 6 60,6 EUR
2014.11.03 4 40,4 EUR
2014.11.04 5 50,5 EUR
2014.11.05 0 0 EUR
2014.11.06 0 0 EUR
2014.11.07 30 325,7 EUR
2014.11.10 22 222,2 EUR
2014.11.11 0 0 EUR
2014.11.12 0 0 EUR
2014.11.13 0 0 EUR
2014.11.14 0 0 EUR
2014.11.17 2 20,2 EUR
2014.11.18 0 0 EUR
2014.11.19 15 151,5 EUR
2014.11.20 3 30,3 EUR
2014.11.21 78 752,52 EUR
2014.11.24 0 0 EUR
2014.11.25 0 0 EUR
2014.11.26 7 66,78 EUR
2014.11.27 0 0 EUR
2014.11.28 0 0 EUR
2014.12.01 1 9,54 EUR
2014.12.02 0 0 EUR
2014.12.03 0 0 EUR
2014.12.04 0 0 EUR
2014.12.05 0 0 EUR
2014.12.08 0 0 EUR
2014.12.09 328 3133,4 EUR
2014.12.10 0 0 EUR
2014.12.11 15 143,25 EUR
2014.12.12 0 0 EUR




2014.12.15 10 96 EUR
2014.12.16 13 124,13 EUR
2014.12.17 1 9,54 EUR
2014.12.18 0 0 EUR
Ammount 1813 17428,06

Weighted average price of
the shares of the public joint
stock company “INVL
Technology”

9,612829564






